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brief

® Arion Bank provides services to households, corporates, institutions

and investors. The Bank has three business segments: Retail Bank-
ing, Corporate & Investment Banking (CIB), and Markets. The ser-
vice offering is further augmented by the subsidiaries Stefnir and
Vordur. Stefnir is an Icelandic fund management company, and
Vordur is an insurance company providing non-life and life insurance
with sales channels through CIB and Retail Banking

® Arion Bank plays an important role in the community through the
financing of progressive and sustainable initiatives. Sustainability is
a part of the Bank’s day-to-day activities, its decision-making and
processes

The diverse service offering at Arion Bank means that the revenue

base is broad and the loan portfolio is well diversified between retail
and corporate customers. The high percentage of mortgages and
the healthy distribution of loans across different sectors reduces
credit risk

The Bank is a market leader in digital solutions and innovation sup-
ported by the Bank's app, which has been awarded the best banking
app in Iceland six years in a row. Numerous new digital solutions
have been launched in the past few years, enhancing service to
customers and making the Bank’s operations more efficient, which in
the long term reduces operating expenses

The Bank places a strong emphasis on customer experience, both in

digital and face-to-face services, and meeting the financial needs of
its customers via a customized product offering and quality financial
services which contribute to the success of customers and society
as a whole

Return on equity (%)

21.8

Key figures
(ISK m)

Net earnings

ROE

Net interest margin

Cost to Core income ratio

Core operating income / REA

Total assets

Loans to customers
Deposits
Borrowings

Total equity

Stage 3 gross
Leverage ratio

Number of employees

EUR/ISK

Q12023

6,291

13.7%
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The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements of Arion Bank for the period from 1 January to 31 March 2023 include the
Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements of Arion Bank ("the Bank") and its subsidiaries, together referred to as "the Group".

Operations during the period

Income Statement

Net earnings amounted to ISK 6.3 billion for the first quarter of 2023 and return on equity was 13.7%. Earnings per share were ISK 4.32. Core
income, defined as net interest income, net commission income and net insurance income, increased by 18.3%, compared with the previous
year. There was strong growth in net interest income, compared with the previous year, mainly due to the increased base rate and 2.7% growth
in the loan book from year-end 2022. Diversified fee generating operations support continued momentum in net fee and commission income.
Net insurance income has been affected by challenging conditions and an unusually high volume of claims. Operating expenses increased
between years, partly due to new wage agreements and inflation. The number of full-time employees has increased by 36 from the end of March
2022. The cost-to-core income ratio was 47.0%, compared with 47.4% in the first quarter of 2022.

Balance Sheet

The Bank's balance sheet grew by 2.1% from year-end 2022. Loans to customers increased by 2.7% from year-end. The increase was 4.5% in
corporate lending and 1.1% in loans to individuals, mainly mortgages. Deposits increased by 2.6%. Total equity amounted to ISK 179,932
million at the end of March. The Group's capital ratio was 23.7% and the CET1 ratio 18.6%. The ratios are determined on the basis of the
unaudited net earnings in the quarter, and take into account the deduction of 50% of net earnings as foreseeable dividend in line with the Bank’s
dividend policy, and ISK 0.9 billion of the outstanding buyback program that had been authorized by the Financial Supervisory Authority of the
Central Bank of Iceland (FSA). The Group's capital ratio, as calculated under the Financial Undertakings Act No. 161/2002, was 23.3% and the
CET1 ratio was 18.3%. These ratios comfortably exceed the requirements made by the FSA and Icelandic law. The liquidity position was also
strong at year-end and well above the regulatory minimum.

Arion Bank's medium-term financial targets compared with the operational results for the period

Actuals

Q12023 Arion Bank's medium-term financial targets
Return on equity 13.7% Exceed 13%
Core operating income / REA 6.9% Exceed 6.7%

Premium growth (net of reinsurance) to exceed
Insurance premium growth (YoY) 11.6% the growth of the domestic market by more than 3%
(Premium growth in the domestic insurance market was 7.5% for 2022)

Cost-to-core income ratio 47.0% Below 48%
CET1 ratio 270 bps 150-250 bps management buffer

(~17.3 - 18.3% based on current capital requirements)

Pay-out ratio of approximately 50% of net earnings attributable to
Dividend pay-out ratio 50% shareholders through either dividends or buyback of the Bank's shares or a
combination of both

Economic outlook

Despite the complicated global environment and somewhat familiar domestic economic challenges, the Icelandic economy remains in an
relatively robust position. According to preliminary figures from Statistics Iceland, GDP increased by 6.4% between years in 2022, outperforming
our main trading partners by a significant margin. Growth was mainly driven by a robust recovery in exports, led by the tourism industry, and
record-breaking private consumption. The return of tourism, especially in the latter half of the year, left its mark on the country’s foreign trade
and played a significant part in curbing the current account deficit, which amounted to 2% of GDP in 2022.

The Icelandic economy started 2023 strongly, with indicators implying that domestic demand had exceeded expectations. The payment card
turnover of Icelandic consumers increased by 8% between years in Q1, adjusted for inflation and exchange rate fluctuations, partly due to
substantial wage increases in the private market. On average, the wage index is expected to increase by 10% in 2023, fuelling concerns over
wage-price spiral. The labour market is currently very tight, with 3.6% registered unemployment and 40% of firms reporting staffing shortages.
These conditions are conducive to supporting continued private consumption growth. In addition, the saving ratio is still well above its pre-
pandemic average, which means that households can maintain a higher level of spending than most analysts had previously expected. Overall,
household consumption is, and will most likely continue to be, one of the main driving forces of economic growth, although high inflation and
rising interest rates might put a spanner in the works.

The other pillar of growth is the tourism industry, which is well on its way to reaching previous heights. Tourist arrivals are expected to reach 2.2
million in 2023, a 30% increase between years. With tourism forging ahead and private consumption remaining strong, the Icelandic economy is
set for strong growth in 2023, with the latest forecasts expecting growth to be in the range of 3-4%. Nevertheless, the economic outlook remains
uncertain, with financial institutions facing difficulties in the international markets and a rocky road to recovery. Quelling inflation has also proven
to be difficult, especially in Iceland where inflation passed 10% in February despite 150 bps rate hikes in Q1. The housing market is rapidly
cooling, but domestic inflationary pressures remain persistent and import prices continue to rise. Thus, further actions by the Central Bank are
likely.

Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim
Financial Statements 31 March 2023 4
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Outlook for the Bank

Arion Bank’s operating performance in the first quarter of 2023 is robust, building on the positive momentum of previous years. The diversified
pillars of the business continue to complement each other and support the Group’s performance through the evolving external environment.
With the rapid changes in the external environment over the past years it is clear that some areas of the Bank's business are impacted more
than others, and again the relative stability of the operating performance demonstrates the importance of the diversification of our business
model.

The recent events involving Silicon Valley Bank and Credit Suisse are reminders of the importance of long-term strategy and risk management
combined with a diversified and agile business model. These aspects have all been core to Arion Bank’s strategy and will continue to underpin
its long-term performance through the cycle.

While the Icelandic economy has demonstrated its resilience through recent rapid changes to the inflationary and rate environment, it should be
expected that over time some of our clients will be impacted by these changes. Arion Bank is in a strong position to support our clients through
this period with varied and proven products and services and a long-term strategic perspective. Loan provisioning has also continued to reflect
the evolving external environment where IFRS 9 model assumptions scenarios again deteriorated in the quarter, again reflecting a conservative
forward perspective.

Funding and liquidity

In terms of funding and liquidity management the Group’s liquidity position remains strong. The Bank’s liquidity position was above the required
minimum, and the liquidity ratio at the end of March 2023 was 174%, with the minimum requirement being 100%.

The Bank issued two private placements, NOK 200m and SEK 300m, despite turbulent market conditions in the first quarter.

Arion Bank continued to issue covered bonds in the domestic market. Total issuance was ISK 32.9 billion (of which ISK 21.6 billion was for the
Bank’s own account) in the first three months of 2023.

Capital adequacy and dividends

Arion Bank's dividend policy states that the Bank aims to pay 50% of net earnings in dividends and that additional dividend or share buybacks
can be considered when the Bank's capital levels exceed the minimum regulatory requirements together with the Bank's management buffer.
The Bank aims in the medium term to maintain capital adequacy ratios 150-250bps above total regulatory requirements. In the near term
however considering more volatile external industry landscape following recent events in the banking sector in Europe and the US as well as the
rapid change in global and domestic interest rate environment the Bank will manage capital prudently and maintain a capital buffer above the
medium term target.

In March 2023, the Bank paid a dividend of ISK 8.5 per share, approximately ISK 12.5 billion, as authorized by the Annual General Meeting. The
Board of Directors has the authority to propose that the Bank pay dividends or other disbursements of equity and may convene a special
shareholders' meeting later in the year to propose a payment. The Board is authorized to purchase up to 10% of the Bank's issued share
capital.

Arion Bank's capital position is strong and will remain so for the foreseeable future. This underpins the Bank's ability to support its customers
and the Icelandic economy, as it faces challenging economic conditions owing to a number of factors including geopolitical tensions, continually
rising interest rates, and high inflation.

The Group's capital adequacy ratio on 31 March 2023 was 23.7% and the CET1 ratio was 18.6%, when the unaudited interim net earnings for
the first quarter of 2023 are included. The ratios account for a deduction due to foreseeable dividend payments that represent 50% of net
earnings, in line with the Bank's dividend policy. This compares to a regulatory capital requirement of 20.8%, including the combined buffer
requirement.

Having temporarily vacated the 2% countercyclical capital buffer in March 2020, the Central Bank of Iceland reinstated the buffer at the same
level, effective from 29 September 2022. In March 2023 the Central Bank announced that it would increase the countercyclical buffer to 2.5%,
effective from 15 March 2024. Other things being equal, this will increase Arion Bank's total capital requirement by the corresponding
percentage.

The Bank's REA increased by ISK 23 billion in the first quarter of 2023. This was driven primarily by an increase of ISK 23.2 billion in the loan
portfolio REA, offset by an ISK 3.1 billion decrease in the REA arising from other credit risk. REA changes for other risk factors were less
material.

The Central Bank of Iceland’s Resolution Authority approved the resolution plan of Arion Bank on 26 April 2022. With the approval of the
resolution plan, the Resolution Authority decided on the minimum required own funds and eligible liabilities (MREL), in accordance with the Act
on Resolution of Credit Institutions and Investment Firms, No. 70/2020. On 29 September, the Resolution Authority issued Arion Bank’s MREL
requirement based on the financial position at year-end 2021. The requirement as a percentage of REA is 23.0%. The Bank is in full compliance
with this requirement.

Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim
Financial Statements 31 March 2023 5
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Group ownership

At the end of March 2023 Gildi lifeyrissjédur was the largest shareholder in Arion Bank with a shareholding of 9.60%. Arion Bank held 3.84% of
its own shares at the end of March, see Note 36. The number of shareholders was 11,970 at the end of March, compared with 12,059 at the
beginning of the year. Further information on Arion Bank's shareholders can be found in Note 36. At the AGM in March 2023 a motion was
passed to reduce the company's share capital by ISK 50 million at nominal value, by cancelling the company's own shares. The reduction took
place on 25 April 2023.

Governance

At the Bank’s AGM on 15 March 2023, six members were elected to serve on the Board of Directors until the next AGM, three women and three
men. Additionally, two Alternate Directors (one woman and one man) were elected. All Directors and Alternates are independent of Arion Bank,
its management and major shareholders. The Board’s composition as regards gender representation complies with statutory requirements,
which stipulate that companies employing more than 50 people must ensure that the gender ratio of the board of directors and alternate board is
no less than 40%.

Endorsement of the Board of Directors and the Chief Executive Officer

The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements of Arion Bank for the period ended 31 March 2023 have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting as adopted by the European Union and
additional requirements in the Icelandic Financial Statements Act, Financial Undertakings Act and Rules on Accounting for Credit Institutions.

It is our opinion that the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the financial performance and cash
flow of the Group for the period ended 3 March 2023 and its financial position as at 31 March 2023. Furthermore, in our opinion the Condensed
Consolidated Interim Financial Statements and the Endorsement of the Board of Directors and the CEO give a fair view of the development and
performance of the Group's operations and its position and describe the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group.

The Board of Directors and the CEO have today discussed the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements of Arion Bank for the
period ended 31 March 2023 and confirm them by means of their signatures.

Reykjavik, 4 May 2023

Board of Directors
Brynjdlfur Bjarnason, Chairman
Paul Richard Horner, Vice Chairman
Gunnar Sturluson
Kristin Pétursdottir
Liv Fiksdahl
Steinunn Kristin Thérdardottir

Chief Executive Officer

Benedikt Gislason

Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim
Financial Statements 31 March 2023 6



Consolidated Interim Income Statement

Notes 2023 2022
1.1.-31.3. 1.1.-31.3.

LG EEES L Telo ] 1[I 29,233 17,329
L T (eI A=Y o =T T PP OURP PPN (18,218) (7,801)
NEL INTEIEST INCOME ...oviviiietieeieteeee ettt ettt et et a et s st et e s e et eseas s et eseesetete s et ese s et et esessesesesaseseanenas 6 11,015 9,528
Fee and COMMISSION INCOME .......uuuiiiiiiiiiiie et e et e e e e e et e e e e e e e e et e e e e e esaa e e eeeeesasaaeseeessssbansaeeaees 5,286 4,068
Fee and COMMISSION EXPENSE ......eieiiiieiiiieaie ettt ettt ettt e aa e et e e s et e e e sa e e e e s bt e e aabe e e anba e e e bbeeenneeennes (933) (516)
Net fee and COMMISSION INCOME ........coieieuiieieeiete ettt ettt ettt ettt e et s st e e et et es e s et ese e s eseae s esesess 7 4,353 3,552
NEL INSUFANCE INCOIMIE ...ttt ettt h et e et e et e e e st e e et e e e e st e e es bt e e s s e e e naneeeanneeeaas 8 118 5
NEt fINANCIAI INCOMIE ...ttt ettt et e et e ettt e e bt e et bt e e set e e e anb e e neeeeenteeennneas 9 839 991
Share Of Profit Of ASSOCIALES ......cciuiiiiiieiiiiiit et e et e e e st b e e e e s sttt e e e e e e anaaeeeeseesbbeeeeas 25 (17) 203
Other OPErating iNCOIMIE ..........eiiiiiiii ettt ettt b e s e s e e e e r e e st e ses e e e e sneesaeesseesaee e 10 36 235
Other NEt OPEIALING INCOME ..ue.iiviieiieeieiiieeteteeeeetes et ete et atete st e eete st seeseseeeseseseeeesesessebete e ebete e aeeteseasasesensesenens 976 1,434
OPEFALING IMCOME ....oovivieeecei ettt s ettt s st e s e s s s e s st sttt s et n e 16,344 14,514
Salaries and related EXPENSES .......cciiiiuriiieeiiiiiite e ettt e e s sttt e e s s bt e e e e e s abbeeeeesabbbeeeeeasasbbeeeesaabbbeeeeesansbrees 11 (4,099) (3,540)
Other OPErating EXPENSES .......ccueeiuieiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e et et et e e st e se e e se e et e e s re e st e e s seeese e e e e e eeesaeesaeeseneaaneenreenee 12 (3,176) (2,661)
OPEIAtING EXPENSES .....vovviveeeveeeieeesessesssesessessssessssessssesss s s s et es s s s s et e s st essss s s et e st s st eae s st s e ssssn s e s sasssnaes (7,275) (6,201)
(27 L1 (= Y PP P PP SOPPPPPPPINE 13 (449) (393)
NEL IMPAIIMIENT ...ttt sttt e et e e s e e e s e e s e e e se e e b e e sreesee e e s e e eneenreesseesaneanns 14 (52) (495)
Earnings Defore INCOME TAX .....iiiiiiiiiiiecieie ettt et ettt ettt e st st e e et e e e e e e enneeennes 8,568 7,425
INCOME TAX EXPEISE ..eiieiiiuiiiiiteeeeitittte e e e ettt et e e e e e bbbttt e e e s aa bbb et ee e e s asb bt e e e e e asb b bt e e e e e e s bbb et e e e e anb bbb e e e e e anbbseeeeeannabneeeas 15 (2,287) (1,703)
Net earnings from CONtINUING OPEIratiONS ......cciiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiie et e et e e e e e e st b e e e e s bbb e e e e e e ssnbeeeeas 6,281 5,722
Discontinued operations held for sale, Net Of INCOME TAX .....coiiiiiiiiiiiiie it 16 10 96
INEL BAIMINTS ©.vtuvtetieeteteeetete e eee st ete st e tete e stete s et etes e e es et ea e s et eseaeeses e e et eE et e e e e e s e eeeses e e e s esesees et ene et et ene s esere e eeee 6,291 5,818

Attributable to

Shareholders of ArionN BanK Nf. ...... it e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e et e e e e e e enaaaaans 6,284 5,812

NON-CONLFOIING INEEIEST ...ttt r et e e e s 7 6
= AT T 1T o L PSRRI 6,291 5,818
Earnings per share 17

Basic earnings per share attributable to the shareholders of Arion Bank (ISK) ..........cccovveiiiiiiniineniieenen. 4.32 3.67

Diluted earnings per share attributable to the shareholders of Arion Bank (ISK) 4.10 3.50

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim
Financial Statements 31 March 2023 7 Amounts are in ISK millions



Consolidated Interim Statement of Comprehensive Income

Notes 2023 2022
1.1.-31.3. 1.1.-31.3.

[N (== T T a1 T PP PP P PP PPTTOPPPPP 6,291 5,818
Net change in fair value of financial assets carried at fair value through OCI, net of taX ........ccccceevieininennns 113 (1,136)
Net realized gain on financial assets carried at FV through OCI, net of tax,

and reclassification from OCI equity reserve, transferred to the Income Statement ...........ccoccveevieeenieeennns 9 (118) 21

Changes to reserve for financial instruments at fair value through OCI ...........ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiie 5) (1,115)
Exchange difference on translating foreign SUBSIdIArESs ...........ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e - (81)

Other comprehensive loss that is or may be reclassified
subsequently to the INCOME SLAEMENT ..........ccoiiiiiiiii e (5) (1,196)

TOtal COMPIENENSIVE INCOME ...oiiiiiieiiiietee ettt ettt b et ettt e s et e e s e e e esene e eeese e eeanenen 6,286 4,622

Attributable to
Shareholders Of AON BANK .........uuiiiiiiiiiiiiie e ettt e e e et e e e e e e e e et e s e e e s e e s aaaeeeeeessasbb e seesseesbananns 6,279 4,616
NON-CONEIOIING INTEIESE ...ttt e e e e re e sre e 7 6

TOtal COMPIENENSIVE INCOME ....iiiiiieiiiiieteeete ettt ettt et e ettt e s et e e s e e e et ene e esene e eeenenes 6,286 4,622

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim

Financial Statements 31 March 2023 8 Amounts are in ISK millions
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Consolidated Interim Statement of Financial Position A
Assets Notes 31.3.2023 31.12.2022
Cash and balances With CENIrAl BANK ...........uuuiiiiiiiiiee et e e e e et e e e e s e eab s e eeseeenens 18 80,272 114,118
LoANS t0 Credit INSHIULIONS .. ..iiviiiiii et e e e e et e e e e e e e st e e e e e e es st s e e e s essbaaeeeeeessasaanns 19 62,899 45,501
[ Io = T I (o oV E] (0] 1 0 [=T 6N 20 1,114,128 1,084,757
FINANCIAI INSTIUMEBNTS ...ttt et e e e e e e et e e e e e e e aaa e e e e e e s aa b seeesessbbaneeeeesssssnaaaaees 21-23 204,996 193,329
INVESTMENT PIOPEILY ...eotiiiiiiiiiii ettt e ettt e e e et bt e e e e e e et e e e e e bbb b e e e e s abrb et e e e e aaae 23 7,875 7,862
INVESTMENES 1N SSOCIAES .......viiiiiriieiiii ettt et e e e et e e s e e s e e nareeennnes 25 770 787
INEANGIDIE BSSELS ..ottt ekt b e h ettt 26 8,575 8,783
LISz 531 PPN 27 332 135
Assets and disposal groups held fOr SAIE .............couiiiiiiiii e 28 61 61
(@)1 =T = 11T £ TP 29 20,736 14,223
B 0] = LN oT oY= £ 1,500,644 1,469,556
Liabilities
Due to credit institutions and Central BanK ..............cooiiiiiiiiiiiii it b e eeeeeeeeaeearaeees 22 24,188 11,697
D70 Lo | TP P TP PP VP PPTPPRO 22 775,023 755,361
Financial l1abilitieS at failr VAIUE ...........evevieeiieiieieiieeeeeeeeeeeee et 22 20,692 20,997
TAX HADILIES ...ttt b e bbbt b e e b e e b e e b e et e e bt e bt e nnee e 27 10,840 10,303
(@ (0= 1= oY USSR SSRSRRR 30 52,554 42,973
27T (01111 o [P PUP PO PPPPPPTPPIOY 22,31 390,734 392,563
Subordinated liabilities ... 22,32 46,681 47,331
TOLAl LIADITITIES .veeeieiiiiiie ettt ettt e st e e e et e et e e aeesteeesteebeesteeaseeeneeeneeenteenneenneens 1,320,712 1,281,225
Equity 35
Share capital and Share PremMiUM ....o..uueii e e e e e e st e e e e s abbaeeeeeas 11,406 13,372
(@) (g1 R =TS A V7= RS 10,826 10,672
R I 1 a (= To [T T T o O OO PU P PPPPPPROt 157,044 163,638
Total ShArENOIAEIS  EQUILY .cuviiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e ettt e e e sttt e e e st bt e e e s e nbateeeeseanbbbeeeeas 179,276 187,682
Non-controlling interest .. 656 649
Total EQUity .....cceneee. 179,932 188,331
Total LiabilitieS @nd EQUILY .......cooiiiiiiiiiie et 1,500,644 1,469,556

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim
Financial Statements 31 March 2023 9 Amounts are in ISK millions
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Consolidated Interim Statement of Changes in Equity
Restricted reserves
Debt invest- Foreign
Gain in ments at currency Total Non-
subs. & Gainin Capitalized fair value trans- share- cont-
Share Share Share  Warrants assoc., securities, develop- thr. OCI, Statutory lation Retained holders' rolling Total
capital premium option reserve unrealized unrealized mentcost unrealized reserve reserve earnings equity interest equity
Equity 1 January 2023 ...........cccee... 1,466 11,906 339 828 6,308 1,941 1,002 (1,383) 1,637 - 163,638 187,682 649 188,331
Impact of adopting IFRS 17 1 Jan. ... (375) (375) (375)
Restated opening balance .............. 1,466 11,906 339 828 6,308 1,941 1,002 (1,383) 1,637 - 163,263 187,307 649 187,956
Net earnings ......cccoevvvveeeeeriiiiieeennnns 6,284 6,284 7 6,291
Net change in fair value .................... 113 113 113
Net realized profit transf. to P/L
and recl. from OCI equity reserve .. (118) (118) (118)
Total comprehensive income ......... - - - - - - - 5) - - 6,284 6,279 7 6,286
Transactions with owners
Dividend paid .........ccccocvveiiivieniineenne (12,357) (12,357) (12,357)
Purchase of treasury shares ........... (16) (2,442) (2,458) (2,458)
Share option charge ...........c...c....... 59 59 59
Share option vested ............c.......... 1 295 (45) 251 251
Share option forfeited .................... (83) 83 - -
Incentive scheme ..........ccocceevnneenne 1 194 195 195
Changes in reserves .........cccccoveuves 437 (179) (31) (227) - -
Equity 31 March 2023 ...........ccccee... 1,452 9,955 270 828 6,745 1,762 971 (1,387) 1,637 - 157,044 179,276 656 179,932
The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim 10 Amounts are in ISK millions
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Consolidated Interim Statement of Changes in Equity

Equity 1 January 2022 ....................

Net earnings .......ccccceevveeeiiieeinieennins
Net change in fair value ....................
Net realized loss transferred to P/L ...
Translation difference ................c......
Total comprehensive income .........
Transactions with owners
Dividend paid ..........cccccoeriviiieennnnne
Purchase of treasury shares ..
Share option charge ...............c.......
Share option vested ............ccccoeueee
Incentive scheme ..........cccceevineenne

Changes in reserves

Equity 31 March 2022 .....................

Restricted reserves

Debt invest- Foreign
Gain in ments at currency Total Non-
subs. & Gainin Capitalized fair value trans- share- cont-

Share Share Share  Warrants assoc., securities, develop- thr. OCI, Statutory lation Retained holders' rolling Total
capital premium option reserve unrealized unrealized mentcost unrealized reserve reserve earnings equity interest equity
1,518 21,166 99 828 7,245 3,166 1,124 (1,937) 1,637 676 158,403 193,925 673 194,598
5,812 5,812 6 5,818

(1,136) (1,136) (1,136)

21 21 21

(81) (81) (81)

- - - - - - - (1,115) - (81) 5,812 4,616 6 4,622
(22,489) (22,489) (22,489)
(23) (4,246) (4,269) (4,269)
49 49 49

3 349 (38) 314 314

1 186 187 187

319 (310) (31) 22 - -

1,499 17,455 110 828 7,564 2,856 1,093 (3,052) 1,637 595 141,748 172,333 680 173,013

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Amounts are in ISK millions
11
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Consolidated Interim Statement of Cash flows
2023 2022
Operating activities 1.1.-31.3. 1.1.-31.3.
[N (=20 U T o PSPPI PPPPPPPPPIN 6,291 5,818
Non-cash items iNClUded IN NEE BAMMINGS ........uviiiiiiiiiie e e e e e st e e s s s bbbt e e e s s abbreeeeeenaneeeas (6,241) (6,917)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Loans to credit institutions, excluding bank aCCOUNLS ...........oiiiiiiiiiiiiie e (3,780) (264)
[ F= g R (o ol U ) (o] 14 1= T £ PR PP PPPP PPN (26,076) (41,142)
Financial instruments and financial liabilities at fair VAIUE ..........ccooooiiiiiiiiiie e eaaas (12,423) 42,585
[ D=7 010 171 £ PSP PP TP PPRPN 15,428 23,406
BOITOWINGS ...vveveeiiiiiieeeeeciiiieee e (4,305) (8,496)
Other changes in operating assets and labilities ..............oiiiiiiiiiiiii e 12,464 3,459
LR (LTS A C=Te1= 1 1VZ o TN 20,768 14,234
L] =T A o= Lo RO P OO PRTUSTP R UPR PPN (4,695) (3,657)
[D2AVTe (=T g Lo I (=T od=T V=T R TP T O PP PP OU PP PPPP ORI 63 57
INCOME TAX PAIA ...ttt ettt e e bt e et e e e e e s bt e s ae e e et et e e s he e sb e e een e e n e e nee e seesae e e e e e e ens (1,834) (1,477)
Net cash (t0) from OPerating ACHIVILIES .........coiiiiiiiii et (4,340) 27,606
Investing activities
Proceeds from sale of subsidiary and @SSOCIALES ...........cccuciiiiiiiiiiii et - 241
ACQUISITION OF @SSOCIALES .....uveviiiiiiitiiiie ettt ettt e e e e ettt e e e e a bbbt e e e e e sbb bt e e e e e s bbb eeee e s an bbb et e e e e aanbbbeeeeeansnbeeeeeans - (70)
AcqUuISItion Of INTANGIDIE @SSELS .........ooiiiiiiii et (62) (53)
Proceeds from sale of property and @QUIPIMENT ............oouiiiiiiiiiii e - 238
Acquisition Of Property and EQUIPMIENT ........iiiiiiiii ettt e et e e e s e e e e s b e e e e e e s tbbe e e e e s s astbbeeaeesanbaeeeeeeennneeeas (79) (51)
Net cash (10) from INVESTING ACTIVITIES ....iiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiee et e e e et e e e e s st b e e e e e s bbb eeeeeannnes (141) 305
Financing activities
Proceeds from vested share option .. 251 352
PUICASE OF TFEASUIY STOCK ...eiiiiiiiiiiiie ittt ettt e e e sttt e e e s bbbt e e e e e asa bt e e e e s e bbbb et e e e s anbbbeeeeeeanbbeeeeeannnnes (2,458) (4,269)
Dividend paid to shareholders of Arion BaNK ............ccoooiiiiiiiiiii e e (12,357) (22,489)
Net cash used in fiNANCING ACTIVITIES .......ocuiiiiiie et (14,564) (26,406)
Net increase in cash and Cash EQUIVAIENTS ............oiiiiiiiiiiii et e bbb e e e e s eeeeeannnaes (19,045) 1,505
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning 0f the YA ...........ccociiiiiiii e 150,131 90,678
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash eqUIVAIENTES ............eeiiiiiiiiiiii i (1,237) (833)
[0 1 - Ta Lo I oF= 1] d W=To [ LAV Z= 1= 01 £SO PPP T UOPPPPRROIN 129,849 91,350
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and balances With CENIAl BANK ............uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiieeeee ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s e nnnnes 80,272 64,395
2= = Yo oTo 1 [ | TN 57,080 33,550

Mandatory reserve deposit with Central Bank ..

(7,503) (6,595)

Cash and CASh EQUIVAIEBNTS .........oiiiiiiiiiii e ettt e ettt e e e s e e e e e e et e et e e e st et e e e s nnnnees 129,849 91,350

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements

Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim Amounts are in ISK millions
Financial Statements 31 March 2023 12



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

General information

Arion Bank hf., the Parent Company, was established on 18 October 2008 and is incorporated and domiciled in Iceland. The registered
office of Arion Bank hf. is located at Borgartin 19, Reykjavik. The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements for the period
ended 31 March 2023 comprise the Parent Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as "the Group").

1. Basis of preparation

The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements were approved and authorized for publication by the Board of Directors of Arion
Bank on 4 May 2023.

In preparing the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements, the Group has applied the concept of materiality to the presentation
and level of disclosure. Only essential and mandatory information is disclosed which is relevant to an understanding by the reader of the
Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements.

Statement of compliance

The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), as adopted by the European Union and additional requirements in the Icelandic Financial Statements Act, Financial
Undertakings Act and rules on Accounting for Credit Institutions.

The same accounting policies, presentation and methods of computation are followed in these Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial
Statements as were applied in the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Basis of measurement
The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the following:

- bonds and debt instruments, shares and equity instruments, short positions in listed bonds and equities and derivatives. For details on the
accounting policy, see Note 58 in the Annual Financial Statements 2022;

- investment properties are measured at fair value; and
- non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are stated at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair value, less cost to sell.

Functional and presentation currency

The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements are presented in Icelandic krona (ISK), which is the Parent Company's functional
currency, rounded to the nearest million, unless otherwise stated. At the end of the period the exchange rate of the ISK against USD was
137.1 and 148.90 for EUR (31.12.2022: USD 141.80 and EUR 151.50).

2. Going concern assumption

The Group's management has made an assessment of the ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that the Group has the
resources to continue. In making this assessment, management has taken into consideration the risk exposures facing the Group, which are
further described in the Risk Management Disclosures. The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements are prepared on a going
concern basis.

3. Significant accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies

The preparation of the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, as well as the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The
Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statement were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim Amounts are in ISK millions
Financial Statements 31 March 2023 14



Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

3. Significant accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies, continued

Impairment of financial assets

The book value of financial assets which fall under the impairment requirements of IFRS 9 are presented net of expected credit losses in
the statement of financial position. On a monthly basis expected credit losses for stages 1 and 2 are recalculated for each asset, the
calculations are based on PD, LGD and EAD models. Stage 3 calculations are based on LGD and EAD parameters. In addition to the
model outcomes, the assessment of expected credit losses is based on three key factors: management's assumptions regarding the
development of macroeconomic factors over the next five years, how those factors affect each model and how to estimate a significant
increase in credit risk. The assumptions for macroeconomic development are incorporated into each model for three scenarios: a base
case, an optimistic case, and a pessimistic case. Management estimates the probability weight for each scenario used for calculations of
the probability weighted expected credit losses. The amount of expected credit losses to be recognized is dependent on the Bank's
definition of significant increase in credit risk, which controls the impairment stage each asset is allocated to. Management has estimated
factors to measure significant increase in credit risk from origination, by comparison of changes in PD values, annualized lifetime PD
values, days past due and watch list. For further information see Note 58 in the Annual Financial Statements 2022.

Macroeconomic outlook

The economic outlook in Iceland is generally positive. Tourism was strong in 2022 and even stronger in Q1 2023 although the peak from
2018 is not expected to be matched until 2024. In line with this, the unemployment rate has quickly recovered from the spike caused by
Covid-19, and it is expected to remain stable at around 4% in the coming years. Private consumption grew very strongly in 2022, by 8.1%,
and even though the Central bank has been increasing its policy rates, the strong growth seems to be persistent. However, a slower growth
is expected in the coming years. The growth in housing prices started to slow down in the second half of 2022 and that trend is expected to
continue due to increased supply and increased cost of borrowing although demand is also expected to remain strong from demographic
considerations.

Impairment of intangible assets

The carrying amounts of goodwill, infrastructure and customer relationship and related agreements are reviewed annually to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss
is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the Consolidated
Income Statement. The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less cost to sell. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

Revaluation of investment properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair value, with changes in fair value being recognized in the statement of profit or loss. For
investment properties, either a valuation methodology based on present value calculations is used, as there is a lack of comparable market
data because of the nature of the properties, or the investment properties are valued by reference to transactions involving properties of a
similar nature, location and condition.

4. The Group
Shares in the main subsidiaries in which Arion Bank holds a direct interest Equity interest
Operating activity Currency  31.3.2023 31.12.2022
Eignabjarg ehf., Borgartiin 19, Reykjavik, Iceland ...............cccvvvieeiiiiiiieennnns Holding company ISK 100.0% 100.0%
Landey ehf., Borgartin 19, Reykjavik, Iceland ..............cccocoiiiiiiiiiicicce Real estate ISK 100.0% 100.0%
Leiguskjol ehf., Bjargargata 1, Reykjavik, Iceland .............cccocevriiiiiiiciinicnnnns Rental guarantee ISK 51.0% 51.0%
Stefnir hf., Borgartin 19, Reykjavik, Iceland .............c.cccooviviiiieniciicneeeee Asset management ISK 100.0% 100.0%
VISA island ehf., Borgartin 19, Reykjavik, Iceland ...............cccceeoveeerieriernnnan. Holding company ISK 100.0% 100.0%
Voérdur tryggingar hf., Borgartin 19, Reykjavik, Iceland ...........c.cccccovvinivenienns Insurance ISK 100.0% 100.0%

Landey ehf. holds a 51% shareholding in its subsidiary Arnarland ehf. and recognizes minority interest accordingly.

Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim Amounts are in ISK millions
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

Operating segment reporting

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group's operating segments and is based on the Group's management and internal
reporting structure. The business units are segmented according to customers, products and services characteristics. Segment
performance is evaluated based on earnings before tax.

Inter segment pricing is determined on an arm's length basis. Operating segments pay and receive interest to and from Treasury on an
arm's length basis to reflect the allocation of capital, funding cost and relevant risk premium.

5. Operating segments

In line with the Group’s progression focuses on holistic customer journey optimization introduced a key part of the vision is to bring Vérdur
insurance company closer to the Bank for a more focused bancassurance offering. In 2022 the operation of Vérdur has been split into
individuals and corporates and is presented as such as part of Corporate & Investment Banking and Retail banking, respectively.

Markets & Stefnir

Markets & Stefnir comprise Asset Management and Capital Markets. Asset Management manages financial assets on behalf of its
customers according to a pre-determined investment strategy. Asset Management also administers pension funds. Asset management
comprises Institutional Asset Management, Premia Service, Private Banking and Pension Fund Administration. The operation of Stefnir hf.
is presented under the segment. Stefnir hf. is an independently operating financial company owned by Arion Bank and manages a broad
range of mutual funds, investment funds and institutional investor funds. Markets also offers comprehensive selection off funds from some
of the leading international fund management companies. Capital Markets is a securities brokerage and brokers listed securities
transactions for the Bank’s international and domestic clients on all the world’s major securities exchanges.

Corporate & Investment Banking (CIB)

Corporate & Investment Banking provides comprehensive financial services to companies and investors with focus on meeting the needs of
each client, both in Iceland and internationally. The division is divided into Corporate Banking and Corporate Finance.

Corporate Banking's experienced account managers specialize in key economic sectors such as retail and services, seafood, energy and
real estate. The division serves companies ranging from SMEs to large cap’s and provides full range lending and insurance products,
including guarantees, deposit accounts, payment solutions, and a variety of value-added digital solutions. The Corporate portfolio
composition is diversified between sectors, customers and currencies which include international exposures, partly through syndicates with
other Icelandic or international banks.

Arion Bank's Corporate Finance works closely with Corporate Banking and provides the Bank’s clients with comprehensive financial
advisory services, with a key focus on M&A advisory, private placements, IPOs and other offerings of securities.

Retail Banking

Retail Banking provides a diverse range of financial services in 13 branches and service points across Iceland and offers digital solutions
both in the Arion app and online banking. These services include deposits and loans, savings, payment cards, pensions, insurance,
securities and funds. In order to improve efficiency the branch network is split into four regions, and smaller branches can therefore benefit
from the strength of larger units within each region.

Treasury

Treasury is responsible for the Bank's funding, liquidity and asset-and-liability management. Treasury oversees the internal funds's transfer
pricing and manages the relationship with investors, credit rating agencies and financial institutions. Market making activities in domestic
securities and FX as well as FX brokerage sits within Treasury.

Other subsidiaries

Subsidiaries include the subsidiaries Landey ehf., which holds the main part of investment property of the Group and the holding companies
VISA island ehf. and other smaller entities of the Group. The subsidiaries Stakksberg and Sélbjarg (both subsidiaries of Eignabjarg) are
classified as disposal groups held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5.

Supporting units

Supporting units include the Bank's headquarters which carry out support functions such as the CEO office, Risk Management, Finance
(excluding Treasury), IT and Customer Experience. The information presented relating to the supporting units does not represent an
operating segment. A significant proportion of expenses from support functions is allocated to operating segments in a separate line in the
operating segment overview.

Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim Amounts are in ISK millions
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

5. Operating segments, continued

Retail Subsidi- Supporting
1.1.-31.3.2023 CiB Banking aries excl. units
Markets including including Stefnir  and elimi-
Income Statement and Stefnir insurance insurance  Treasury and Vérdur nations Total
Net interest iNCOME .........oovveieeiiieeiieee e 227 4,974 4,992 887 (65) - 11,015
Net fee and commission iNCOMe ............ccceeeeeeeennne 1,562 1,497 927 161 98 108 4,353
Net iNSUrance iNCOME ..........ccoevveeeiiiieiiiie e - 106 63 - - (51) 118
Net financial iNCOMEe .........ccccceeviiiiieiieeceee, 19 170 552 223 (124) 1) 839
Share of loss of associates . - - - - - 17) 17)
Other operating iNCOME ..........ccocoeevierieniieiieeeee 2 9) 14 2 8 19 36
Operating iNCOME ......vvviiieiiiiiiee e 1,810 6,738 6,548 1,273 (83) 58 16,344
Operating EXPENSES ........cceevueereererrneeree e eenes (595) (572) (1,479) (221) (116) (4,292) (7,275)
Allocated eXPenSEeS .........cccccerveiiiieiieiie e (589) (1,041) (2,245) (346) (20) 4,241 -
BanK lEVY ...oooiiiiiiiiiieeeee e (11) (146) (209) (83) - - (449)
Net impairment ...........cccovvereeiieeecee e 2) 111 (188) 3 21 3 (52)
Earnings (loss) before income tax ..........occuvveee... 613 5,090 2,427 626 (198) 10 8,568
Net seg. rev. from ext. CUSIOMErS .........cccveerueeennne 249 9,137 13,927 (6,960) ?3) (6) 16,344
Net seg. rev. from other segments ............c.cccoeoeeee 1,561 (2,399) (7,379) 8,233 (80) 64 -
Operating iNCOME ......uvviieeiiiiiieeeeeeee e 1,810 6,738 6,548 1,273 (83) 58 16,344
Balance Sheet
LOanSs t0 CUSIOMENS .....uveiivieiiiieeeii e 3,669 462,599 648,334 153 74 (701) 1,114,128
Financial inStruments ..........ccoccceevieeniiee e 33,778 8,199 20,197 144,554 1,228 (2,960) 204,996
Other external @SSets ..........ccooereiriiiiienienienieee 6,916 1,437 6,435 149,125 9,974 7,633 181,520
INternal @SSEtS .......cveeviiieiiiiie e 57,901 - - 307,930 5,763  (371,594) -
TOtal ASSELS .uvvvieiiiieieeiee e 102,264 472,235 674,966 601,762 17,039 (367,622) 1,500,644
DEPOSIES ..vveeveeeieeenieeiee sttt 90,777 268,916 337,605 80,912 - (3,187) 775,023
Other external liabilities . 2,257 10,714 17,089 500,270 8,200 7,159 545,689
Internal liabilities ........ccooeiiiiiiiiiii s - 112,069 259,525 - - (371,594) -
Total liabilities ........cccoooiiiiiiii e 93,034 391,699 614,219 581,182 8,200 (367,622) 1,320,712
Allocated QUILY ...cccveeveriieiieieree e 9,230 80,536 60,747 20,580 8,839 - 179,932
Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim Amounts are in ISK millions
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

5. Operating segments, continued

Retail Subsidi- Supporting
1.1.-31.3.2022 CiB Banking aries excl. units
Markets including including Stefnir  and elimi-
Income Statement and Stefnir insurance insurance  Treasury and Vérdur nations Total
Net interest iNCOME .........oovvviiieeiieiiiieee e 477 4,419 4,560 96 3 27) 9,528
Net fee and commission iNCOME ............ccceeeeeeeennns 1,521 1,133 923 150 24 (199) 3,552
Net insurance income - (61) 127 - - (61) 5
Net financial INCOME .........ccoevviiiiiiiieiiii s (35) 95 332 611 19 (31) 991
Share of profit of associates ...........cccceeevviiiieeeennns - - - - - 203 203
Other operating iNCOME .........cccuveeeeeriiiiiiee e - - 34 1) 5 197 235
Operating iNCOME ......ccccovveeeriieenie e 1,963 5,586 5,976 856 51 82 14,514
Operating EXPENSES ......oevveeerireeriieerieeesieeesnieeeans (513) (632) (1,297) (152) (33) (3,574) (6,201)
Allocated eXPENSES ......ccveeeiiieeriiieeiieee st (483) (846) (1,750) (284) 1) 3,364 -
BanK lEVY ...oooiiiiiiiiiiee e (16) (120) (185) (72) - - (393)
Net impairment ...........cccooveveeiieecee e 1) (418) (78) 2) - 4 (495)
Earnings (loss) before income tax ..........occuvveee... 950 3,570 2,666 346 17 (124) 7,425
Net seg. rev. from ext. CUSIOMErS .........cccveerueeennne 810 5,962 10,237 (2,947) 340 112 14,514
Net seg. rev. from other segments ..........c.cccccveeenne 1,153 (376) (4,261) 3,803 (289) (30) -
Operating iNCOME ......uvviieeiiiiiieeeeeeee e 1,963 5,586 5,976 856 51 82 14,514
Balance Sheet
Loans to CUSIOMENS .......ccuvvieiiiiiiiiiiiii e 56 397,458 579,620 61 3 (815) 976,383
Financial inStruments ..........ccoccceevieeniiee e 51,791 7,672 19,294 106,658 2,829 (2,564) 185,680
Other external aSSets ........ccccvevvveeviiieeiiieesiieesinn 6,661 5,141 9,322 104,851 34,183 18,794 178,952
INEEINAI ASSELS ....uvvieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiririerrrerrrerreeeeereeeeeeeeees 29,726 - - 286,728 - (316,454) -
TOtaAl ASSELS wuvveiviiieciieeiiie e 88,234 410,271 608,236 498,298 37,015 (301,039) 1,341,015
DEPOSIES .ovvveeeiiiieeiiiee et e sttt 68,124 235,378 303,719 61,112 - 11,592 679,925
Other external liabilities . 12,667 21,099 23,589 415,010 11,889 3,823 488,077
Internal liabilities .........covvveeviieeiiiie s - 86,134 223,739 - 6,581  (316,454) -
Total [iabilities .......ccoeeiviiieeiiiiiie e 80,791 342,611 551,047 476,122 18,470 (301,039) 1,168,002
Allocated EqUILY ...eceveeeeiieeiie e 7,443 67,660 57,189 22,176 18,545 - 173,013

Income taxes and discontinued operations held for sale are excluded from the profit and loss segment information.

Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim Amounts are in ISK millions
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Notes to the Consolidated Income Statement

6. Net interest income

1.1.-31.3.2023 Amortized Fair value Fair value
Interest income cost thr. P/L thr. OCI Total
Cash and balances with Central BanK .............cooeiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeiiiieseeeeeevee e eaans 1,394 - - 1,394
L0oans t0 Credit INSHIULIONS .......coiiiiiiiii e s e e e 190 80 - 270
o= T ES (o o1 U ) (0] 0 1= T = T PORPON 26,387 - - 26,387
ST o U] [T TN - 297 819 1,116
66 - - 66
28,037 377 819 29,233
Interest expense
DIBPOSIES ...ttt (9,902) - - (9,902)
BOMOWINGS ...ttt st e et e et e e (5,935) (1,018) - (6,953)
Subordinated labilities .............ooiiiiiiii e (1,153) (118) - (1,271)
(O] =] SR U PRSP PR PRTURRORON (92) - - (92)
INTEIEST EXPEINSE ittt e e et e e e e et bbb e e e e s s bbbt e e e e s snbbba e e e e e e naneeeas (17,082) (1,136) - (18,218)
NEL INTEIESE INCOME .ovveeeiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 10,955 (759) 819 11,015
1.1.-31.3.2022
Interest income
Cash and balances with Central BankK ............coocviiiiiiiiiiiiiic e 392 - - 392
L0oans t0 Credit INSHIULIONS ......iiiiiiiiiiiee e e e s ee e e e s nabees 8 15 - 23
o= T ES (o o1 U ) (0] 1 1 =T 6 PPN 15,997 - - 15,997
SECUNLIES ittt ettt ettt e e e ettt e e e oot b et e e e e e bbbt e e e e e aabbb et e e e e e anbbbeeeeeesnnnareeeeean - 43 814 857
(O 11T PSP PP PPPRRN 60 - - 60
Interest income .. 16,457 58 814 17,329
Interest expense
(3,478) - - (3,478)
(3,957) 159 - (3,798)
(520) 38 - (482)
(43) - - (43)
INTEIEST EXPEINSE ittt ettt e e e et e e e e e bbb e e e e s et bbb e e e e e s anbbbeeeeeennnaneeeas (7,998) 197 - (7,801)
NEL INTEIESE INCOME .o 8,459 255 814 9,528

Net interest income calculated using the effective interest rate method were ISK 28,031 million during the period (3M 2022: ISK 17,466

million).
2023 2022
Interest spread 1.1.-31.3. 1.1.-31.3.
Interest spread (the ratio of net interest income to the average carrying amount of interest bearing assets) ........... 3.1% 3.1%
Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim Amounts are in ISK millions
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7. Net fee and commission income

1.1.-31.3.2023 1.1.-31.3.2022

Net Net

Income Expense income Income Expense income

ASSEt MANAGEIMENT ......viiiiiiieeiiie et 1,491 (139) 1,352 1,396 (159) 1,237
Capital markets and corporate finance ...........ccccceevveeeniieeninene 666 (12) 654 695 9) 686
Lending and financial guarantees ............ccccovveeriieeniieeniee e, 1,343 - 1,343 1,046 - 1,046
Collection and payment SEIVICES ..........ccovueeerieeriieeniieesiieenine 336 (6) 330 340 (26) 314
Cards and payment SOIULION ...........cooviuvieiiiireiiiiieiiee e 1,224 (594) 630 430 (144) 286
(@43 T RSP PRRRTR 226 (182) 44 161 (178) a7)
Net fee and cOMmMISSION INCOME ......cuvvviiiiiiiiiiiiee s 5,286 (933) 4,353 4,068 (516) 3,552

Asset management fees are earned by the Group for trust and fiduciary activities where the Group holds or invests assets on behalf of the
customers.

Fee and commission income from capital markets and corporate finance includes miscellaneous corporate finance services plus
commission from capital markets relating to sales of shares, bonds, FX and derivatives.

Fee and commission income from lending and financial guarantees is mainly related to lending activities, extension fees, advisory services
and documentation, notification and payment fees plus fees from the issuing of guarantees on behalf of customers.

Fee and commission income on collection and payment services is generated billing services, such as issuing invoices and payment
collection notices, wire transfer services and other payment services.

Commission from cards and payment solutions is mainly from the Bank's issuance of credit and debit cards and other card related
commission, e.g. yearly fee on cards and transaction fees.

Other fee and commission income is mainly fees relating to sale, custody and market making on the Icelandic stock exchange.

8. Net insurance income

2023 2022
Earned premiums, net of reinsurers' share 1.1.-31.3. 1.1.-31.3.
Premiums written .... 5,400 4,675
Premiums WrItten, reiNSUIEIS' SNAIES ........ccoiiiiiiiii it (186) (148)
Change in provision for unearned PremMiIUMS ..........cccoiiiiiiiiiieii et ae e e e e re e e (1,474) (1,176)
Earned premiums, net of reinsurers' share 3,740 3,351

Claims incurred, net of reinsurers' share

Claims paid (2,889) (2,577)
Claims paid, reinsurers' share 69 92
Change iN ProViSION fOr CIAIMS .......iiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e sttt e e e e st e et e e e e esnbbe e e e e s asbbbeeeeesanbbbeeeeeennes (780) (864)
Changes in provision for claims, reinsurers' share ... (22) 3
Claims incurred, net of reiNSUIErs' SNArE ... e (3,622) (3,346)
NET INSUTANCE INMCOIME L..iiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e sttt e e e s st e e e e e s et e eeeeaaabba e e e e e e s s bbe e e e e e e aasbeeeeeeeansbbeeeeesansbbeeeeeesansbbeeaeeennnes 118 5
Combined ratio
(00]00] o 10 =T I - 1 o RO PRSP OPPPR PP 116.3% 115.5%
Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim Amounts are in ISK millions
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9. Net financial income 2023 2022
1.1.-31.3. 1.1.-31.3.

Net gain on financial assets and financial liabilities mandatorily measured

at fair value through Profit OF IOSS ........uiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e e st e e e e ettt e e e s st b e e e e e s nnbeees 682 1,112
Loss on prepayments of borrowings .............c........ . - (35)
Net loss on fair value hedge Of INTErESt FALE SWAP .......viiiiiiiiiie ittt ettt e e e (6) (125)
Net realized gain (loss) on financial assets carried at fair value through OCI and

reclassification from OCI @QUILY FTESEIVE ......ccuuuiiiieiiiiiite e ettt e e e et e e e e et e e e s st bt e e e s s nabbe e e e e s e nabneeeeeans 159 (28)
Net FOreign EXCHANGE GAIN ........iiiiiee ettt e et e e e e s bbbt e e e e et b et e e e s s sbbe e e e e e s abbbreeeeennes 4 67
NEt FINANCIAL INCOIME ..ottt et et o bt okt e e bt e e be e e e st e e eabeeeebneesabbeeenene 839 991

Net gain on financial assets and financial liabilities mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss

EQUILY INSTIUMENTS ..ttt et e e e ettt e e e e ok bbb et e e e e e a bbb e e e e e e abb bt e e e e e enb bbbt e e e e snbbbeeeeeennnbbeeeeeeannnns 336 624
(D= o] 10 1S3 10 4 =T oL ( PRSP PUPRTTPPPPRIN 266 268
Derivatives 80 220

Net gain on financial assets and financial liabilities

mandatorily measured at fair value through profit 0r [0SS ........ccciiiiiiiiiic e 682 1,112

Net loss on fair value hedge of interest rate swap

Fair value change of interest rate swaps designated as hedging INStrUMENES .........ccoiviiiiiieiiiiiiieee e 1,663 (4,483)
Fair value change on bonds issued by the Group attributable to interest rate risk ............cccccoviiiiiieeeiiiiieeee e, (1,669) 4,358
Net loss on fair value hedge of INTEreSt rate SWaP ........cooiviiiiiiiiiie e (6) (125)

10. Other operating income

Net (I0SS) gain 0N AISPOSAl Of ASSELS .....uueiiiiiiiiiiiii ettt s st e e e e s bt e e e e e e s iab et e e e e abbbbeeeeesabbbeeeeeeanaes 3) 174
Net (loss) gain on assets held for sale ......... . 9) 10
Fair value changes on investment property .. . 5 -
[ 43T ot o =P OUPPRRSPSRTRN 43 51
(@) 4g L= o T oL g= a1 [ T aTedo] 1 1 1= IO P PUT R PTTPPPPRPIN 36 235
Net (loss) gain on assets held for sale

Net (loss) income from real estates and OthEr @SSELS .........uuiviiiiiiiiiiiie e e eeeeas (10) 13
Expense related to real estates and Other @SSELS ..........iciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e e e e e e e sarees 1 3)
Net (Ioss) gain on assets held fOr SAIE ... 9) 10

Real estates and other assets classified as assets held for sale are generally the result of foreclosures on companies and individuals.

11. Personnel and salaries

2023 2022
Number of employees 1.1.-31.3. 1.1.-31.3.
Average number of full-time equivalent positions during the Period ...........cocvieiiiiiiieiii e 785 749
Full-time equivalent positions at the end of the period 789 753
Salaries and related expenses
LST= 1E= T =TT 3,136 2,666
INCENEIVE SCREIME ...ttt e st e et e e e e e e e s e e s e e sneeennee (25) 14
Share-based PAYMENT EXPENSES .......iiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt e ettt e e et sa et e st e e et e e ene e e nnneeenane 59 50
Defined contribution PENSION PIANS ........uiiiiiiiii ettt e et s et e s b e b s 462 398
SAIATY-TEIAIEA EXPENSES .. ..eeeieiiieiie ettt ettt e e et e e e bt o4 bt ookt e ek et e e ee e e e bt e e e bt e bt et e e e e e re e 467 412
Salaries and related expenses .. 4,099 3,540
Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim Amounts are in ISK millions
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11. Personnel and salaries, continued

Incentive schemes

During the period the Group revised the provision for the incentive scheme which resulted in a ISK 33 million reversal of expenses,
including salary-related expenses (Q1 2022: ISK 19 million provision). At the end of the period the Group's accrual for the incentive scheme
payments amounted to ISK 710 million (31.12.2022: ISK 1,997 million).

Current incentive scheme for Arion Bank hf. and Vordur came into effect in 2021. The scheme is in compliance with the FSA’s rules on
remuneration policy for financial institutions. The scheme is split into two parts. Firstly, employees can receive up to 10% of their fixed
salary for each fiscal year in the form of a cash payment. Secondly, a limited group can receive up to 25% of their fixed salary as a payment
in the form of shares in the Bank which will be subject to a three-year lock-up period. The key metric used to determine whether incentive
scheme payments will be paid by the Bank, in part or in full, is whether the Bank’s return on equity is higher than the weighted ROE of the
Bank’s main competitors. Other supporting metrics are for example ROE and cost-to-income ratio vs target, compliance, staff NPS etc.
Corresponding metrics are for incentive scheme payment at Voérdur, i.e. higher ROE than the Icelandic competitors and other internal
measures. Stefnir hf. has a special incentive scheme where other criteria are used as a basis.

Share-based payment expense

Arion Bank has in place a share option plan for all employees of the Bank, Vérdur and Stefnir, approved at the Banks annual general
meeting. A total expense of ISK 59 million was recognised in the Income Statement during the period (Q1 2022: ISK 50 million). Estimated
remaining expenses due the share option contracts are ISK 535 million and will be expensed over the next three years. For further
information on the share option program, see Note 35.

12. Other operating expenses 2023 2022
1.1.-31.3. 1.1.-31.3.
[T EXPEINSES ...ttt e ettt et e ettt et e e et e e e ettt et e e b ettt e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e eeenans 1,188 1,100
Professional services . 363 225
IMBITKETING ..ttt et e e et e e h e e s he e ek et et e e Rt e s h e e ek e e e he e e e e et e b e e e e e eee e e e e r e e nre e s e ene e 301 183
HOUSING EXPEINSES ...ttt sttt ettt e et e e e bt e e bt e s e et e et e e Rt e s e e e e e e e s s s e et e e s e e saeeseeeean e e e e nreesene s 145 150
Other administration expenses .. 735 429
Depositors' and INVestors' GUAraNtEE FUNG ...........cc.iiiiiiiiiieiie it s - 135
Depreciation of property and @QUIPMENT ...........cuiiiiiiiiiie ettt 142 128
Depreciation Of Mgt Of USE @SSEL .......ccouiiiiiiii ettt e e e s e e e e snee e 32 34
Amortization of INtANGIDIE ASSELS .........ooiiiiiii et 270 277
Other OPEratiNng EXPENSES ....uiiiiiiieiiiiiiit e ettt e ettt e e e e e et e e e e s bbbttt e e e aaa bbb et e e e e e bbb et eeeeannbbeeeeeeasbbbeeeeesanbbbreeaeennes 3,176 2,661

13. Bank levy

The Bank levy is 0.145% on total debts excluding tax liabilities, in excess of ISK 50 billion. The tax is assessed on Financial Undertakings
but non-financial subsidiaries are exempt from this tax.

14. Net impairment 2023 2022
1.1.-31.3. 1.1.-31.3.

Net impairment on financial instruments and value changes on loans

Net impairment on loans to customers and financial INSHLULIONS ............cocoiiiiiiii e (70) (522)
Net impairment on other financial iINStruMents at FVOCI .......cccuiiiiiiiiicie e (1) 1
Other value changes of 08NS - COMPOTALES ..........ccuiiiiiiiiiiie e e e e 5 5
Other value changes of 10aNS - INAIVIAUAIS ..........cooiiiiiiie ettt 14 21
N = AT 0T =V 0= oL PP PP PUPTOE (52) (495)

Net impairment by customer type

Individuals (114) 34
Corporates . 62 (529)
INEE TMIPAITIMIENT ...ttt a et e a et e b et e e kbt e ekttt ook et e1e bt e e 4a b et e ea b et e e aee e e e mbe e e aabe e e naneeenbneennne (52) (495)

Other value changes of loans to individuals and corporates is mainly due to release of discount from loans acquired with discount during the
years 2008 to 2013, both due to impairments and other discount rate than reflected in the interest rates of the loans. The discount release
was primarily related to loans that were paid up during the year.

Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim Amounts are in ISK millions
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15. Income tax expense 2023 2022
1.1.-31.3. 1.1.-31.3.
(010 4T o O = D Q) q o= T TP P PP PP PPN 2,706 2,995
Doy (T (=To N = D =) (o[- T T PSP PPTR PPN (419) (1,292)
INCOME TAX EXPEINSE ...teiiiiiiiittie ettt ettt e e oot e oot a bttt e e e b be et e e e e e e bbb et e e e 4 e bbb et e e e e e bbtb e e e e e ebbbneeeeesaanrnes 2,287 1,703
2023 2022
Reconciliation of effective tax rate 1.1.-31.3. 1.1.-31.3.
Earnings before iNCOME taX ........oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 8,568 7,425
Income tax using the Icelandic COrporate taX rate ...........cccevveeeriireeriiieeiiee e 20.0% 1,714 20.0% 1,485
Additional 6% tax on Financial Undertakings ...........ccccceevuiiiiiiiiiie i 6.5% 556 9.1% 678
NON-AedUCHIDIE EXPENSES .......oiiiiiiiiiiie et 0.2% 17 0.1% 11
TaxX eXempPt FEVENUES / 10SS ......c.ciiiiiiiiiiie ittt (0.9%) (81) (3.9%) (293)
Non-deductible taxes (Bank levy) ...........cccoceeveenenne 1.1% 90 1.1% 79
Tax incentives not recognized in the Income Statement ...............ccoceiiiiiieicni e 0.0% 1 (3.7%) (273)
Other CRANGES ...t (0.1%) (10) 0.2% 16
EFfECTIVE TAX TALE ..uvviiiiiiiiiiiiii ettt et e e e e et e e e e s s snbbb e e e e e s nnaaees 26.7% 2,287 22.9% 1,703

Financial undertakings pay 6% additional tax on taxable profit exceeding ISK 1 billion.

Tax exempt revenues / loss consist mainly of profit / loss from equity positions.

16. Discontinued operations held for sale, net of income tax 2023 2022
1.1.-31.3. 1.1.-31.3.

Net gain from discontinued operations held fOr SAIE ............uiiiiiiiiiiii e 10 109
INCOIME TAX EXPEISE ..eiieiiiitititeeeiitiiee e e e e ettt e e e e s aabbe e et e e s s st be et e e e e sats e e e e e e ssbe e e e e e e en b bbb e e e e e e an bbbt e e e e e e nnbb e e e e e e annbbeeeeeeanbbaeaaens - (13)
Discontinued operations held for sale, net 0f INCOME AX .......cocviiiiiiiiiice e 10 96

17. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is based on net earnings attritutable to the shareholders of Arion Bank and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of outstanding
shares to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. Arion Bank has issued warrants and stock options that have dilutive

effects.
Continued Discontinued
operations operations Net Earnings
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
1.1.-31.3. 1.1.-31.3. 1.1.-31.3. 1.1.-31.3. 1.1.-31.3. 1.1.-31.3.
Net earnings attributable to the shareholders of Arion Bank ...... 6,274 5,716 10 96 6,284 5,812
Weighted average number of outstanding shares (millions) ...... 1,453 1,583 1,453 1,583 1,453 1,583
Weighted average number of outstanding shares
including warrants and options (MIllioNS) ..........ccccocvveiiieenns 1,532 1,661 1,532 1,661 1,532 1,661
Basic earnings per share (ISK) ......coccceiiiiiniiiiniieiec e 4.32 3.61 0.01 0.06 4.32 3.67
Diluted earnings per share (ISK) ........cccceeviiiiiiiiiiiiii, 4.10 3.44 0.01 0.06 4.10 3.50
Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim Amounts are in ISK millions
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18. Cash and balances with Central Bank 31.3.2023 31.12.2022
[OF=1] g o] g T 2112 Lo T 3,560 3,877
[OF= 1S L W O=T g 11 =1 == U a1 TR 69,209 102,821
Mandatory reserve deposit With CeNtral BANK ............c.cioiuiiiiiiiiiiiie et e e e 7,503 7,420
Cash and balances With CeNTIal BANK .......ccocoiiiiiiiiiiiiii e ettt e e e e e e ettt s e e e e e e et e e e e e esaaaeeeeseeaabanaens 80,272 114,118

The mandatory reserve deposit with the Central Bank is not available for the Group to use in its daily operations. The minimum fixed
reserve requirement of the Central Bank is 1%.

19. Loans to credit institutions 31.3.2023 31.12.2022
{2 F= T = e oTo L[| TN 57,080 43,433
(@117 (o= T IS 5,819 2,068
(- TS (o o] =L [ AT a3 (1 U o ] F N 62,899 45,501

20. Loans to customers Individuals Corporates Total

Gross Gross Gross

carrying Book carrying Book carrying Book
31.3.2023 amount value amount value amount value
OVEIAraftS ..ooooeiiiiee e e e e e 14,582 14,050 36,921 36,082 51,503 50,132
Credit CardS .....occiieiiee e 14,716 14,543 1,976 1,932 16,692 16,475
MOrtgage [0aNS ........cooiiiiiiiiiee e 520,421 519,914 57,081 56,947 577,502 576,861
Construction loans .. . - - 37,308 37,120 37,308 37,120
Capital 18ASE ..o 3,572 3,551 4,668 4,633 8,240 8,184
Other [0ANS ......vvviiieeece et e e s 37,622 36,931 392,372 388,425 429,994 425,356
L0ANS t0 CUSTOMEIS ...viiiiiiieiiieeeiiie e stee e stee e iea e 590,913 588,989 530,326 525,139 1,121,239 1,114,128
31.12.2022
(@ =Y (o[- 1 SRR 14,893 14,369 33,369 32,571 48,262 46,940
Credit CardS ...viiiiiieiiie et 14,304 14,155 1,838 1,792 16,142 15,947
MOTQAgE J0ANS ......vvveiiiie et 514,007 513,605 60,528 60,424 574,535 574,029
CONSEIUCHION TOANS ..vvveiiiiiiieiieeee e e eaaae - - 29,227 28,893 29,227 28,893
CaPItal IEASE ..eeevvvieciiie et 4,107 4,089 4,163 4,131 8,270 8,220
Other loans . 36,835 36,153 378,402 374,575 415,237 410,728
LOANS 10 CUSTOMEIS ..uuieiiiiiiiie ettt 584,146 582,371 507,527 502,386 1,091,673 1,084,757

The total book value of pledged loans that were pledged against amounts borrowed was ISK 365 billion at the end of the period
(31.12.2022: ISK 305 billion). Pledged loans comprised mortgage loans to individuals.

Further analysis of loans is provided in Risk management disclosures.

21. Financial instruments 31.3.2023 31.12.2022
(230 ] 0 3= TaTo Mo [=Y o] A0 1S3 (0 T g 1< 0L TR 148,247 138,174
Shares and equity instruments with variable INCOME ..ot 17,226 17,733
[ LT AVZ= LAY T N 9,567 9,516
Securities used for €CONOMIC NEAGING .....iiuiviiiieeiiii et e e e e e e e e st bb e e e e s s bbb b e e e e e s sstbeeeeeeansneeens 29,956 27,906
[ T VLo = LT 1S 6 0 =T 0 USRS 204,996 193,329

Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim Amounts are in ISK millions
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22. Financial assets and financial liabilities
31.3.2023 Manda-
Fair value torily at
Financial assets Amortized through  fair value
Loans cost (e]¢]] thr. P/L Total
Cash and balances with Central BanK .............cooeeiiiiiiiiiieiieeeiiiieeseeeeeeeie e eaans 80,272 - - 80,272
Loans to credit institutions ... 62,899 - - 62,899
o= T ES (o o1 U ) (0] 0 1= T = T PORPON 1,114,128 - - 1,114,128
[IeF- 1o [OOSR U PR OPRRROPRRIRY 1,257,299 - - 1,257,299
Bonds and debt instruments
(1S (=T ISP - 123,357 24,208 147,565
(81 TE] (T PR PUPPRRRRRRIN - - 682 682
Bonds and debt iNSTTUMENTS .......vvuuiiiiiiiiec e e e eaaaas - 123,357 24,890 148,247

Shares and equity instruments with variable income

[ (=T OO PP TS OUPPPPPPPOE - - 6,980 6,980
Unlisted - - 9,516 9,516
Bond funds with variable income, UNliSted ..............uiieiiiiiiiiiiic e, - - 730 730
Shares and equity instruments with variable income - - 17,226 17,226
Derivatives
OTC derivatives ... . - - 9,567 9,567
DIBIIVALIVES ..ottt ettt e e e e ettt e e e e e e e ettt e e e e e e st e e e e e e saaaaa e eeeesaabaans - - 9,567 9,567
Securities used for economic hedging
Bonds and debt inStruments, lISTEA ...........ooviiiiiiiiiiiii e - - 4,240 4,240
Shares and equity instruments with variable income, listed .............c.ccccoviiiiniieniecnene - - 25,716 25,716
Securities used for economic hedging - - 29,956 29,956
Other financial assets
Accounts receivable ... 2,217 - - 2,217
Other fINANCIAI ASSELS ......cieiiiieiieiieceec bbbt eeseeeeeeseseeeeeeeeaeeeeaeeeeeaaaeaeees 13,040 - - 13,040
Other fINANCIAI ASSELS ....ciiviiiiiiiiiiieecee e e e e e e et e e e e e e e b e e eaeaes 15,257 - - 15,257
FINANCIAI @SSEIS . .cciiiiiiii it a e aessnnnnnnnneeees 1,272,556 123,357 81,639 1,477,552
Financial liabilities
Due to credit institutions and Central BanK ............ccooveiiiiiiiiiiieeiiiiiiieee e 24,188 - - 24,188
DIBPOSIES ettt ettt b e h e 775,023 - - 775,023
BOITOWINGS ¥ .eiiiiiiitiiiie ettt e e e ettt e e e ettt e e e s sttt e e e e s bbb e e e e e e asnbbeeeeeeansbbeeaeessantbbeeeeensnnanees 390,734 - - 390,734
Subordinated HADIlIIES * ........uuiiiiiiii e e e e e 46,681 - - 46,681
Short POSItION 1N QUILY .....eeiiiiiiiiie e - - 4 4
[ LY AV LAV TR - - 6,458 6,458
Derivatives used for hedge aCCOUNTING ........ceieiiiieiiiieiiee e - - 14,230 14,230
Other finaNnCial lADIlItIES ........oiiiiiieieiiee e e e e aaaaaaaes 24,767 - - 24,767
Financial HabilitieS ........eveeiiiiiiiec e e s e e e e s e e e e e saaneeeas 1,261,393 - 20,692 1,282,085
* Including effect from hedge accounting derivatives.

Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim Amounts are in ISK millions
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22. Financial assets and financial liabilities, continued
31.12.2022 Manda-

Fair value torily at

Financial assets Amortized through  fair value
Loans cost (e]¢]] thr. P/L Total
Cash and balances with Central BanK ..............ooiiiiiiiiiieiieeeiiee et eeees 114,118 - - 114,118
Loans to Credit INSEULIONS ......couveeii et e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e s eaaban s 43,433 - 2,068 45,501
o= T Eo (o o1V E] (0] 1 1 [=T 6 TN 1,084,757 - - 1,084,757
[0 T T [ ROPRRORRNY 1,242,308 - 2,068 1,244,376
Bonds and debt instruments
[T (=T PRI - 115,806 21,390 137,196
Unlisted - - 978 978
Bonds and debt iNSTIUMENTS ........uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiet ittt eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeaaeaees - 115,806 22,368 138,174
Shares and equity instruments with variable income
[ (=T SRRSO PPPRRPOE - - 6,429 6,429
(01T (T PSP SPUPPRRRRRRRIN - - 9,709 9,709
Bond funds with variable income, UnliSted ............cccooieiiiiiiiieeeeeev e - - 1,595 1,595
Shares and equity instruments with variable inCOMEe .........ccccvviiiiiiiiiiieiiic i - - 17,733 17,733
Derivatives
OTC EIIVALIVES vttt e et e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e et e e e e e e seaaaeeeeeeesaraans - - 9,448 9,448
Derivatives used for hedge aCCOUNTING ........oocuviiiiieiiiiiiie e - - 68 68
DEIIVALIVES ..o ittt naraaraaaaaaaaaes - - 9,516 9,516
Securities used for economic hedging
Bonds and debt insStruments, lISted ............ooooiiiiiiiiii i - - 3,890 3,890
Shares and equity instruments with variable income, listed ... - - 24,016 24,016
Securities used for economMic hedging .......ueevieiiiiiiiiie e - - 27,906 27,906
Other financial assets
ACCOUNES FECEIVADIE ... - - 5,255
Other fINANCIAI ASSELS ......cciiiiiieieieieeec bbbt e e eeeseeeeeseeeeeeeeeeeeeeaasaeaeaaaeees - - 3,412
Other financial assets . . - - 8,667
FINANCIAI @SSELS .. cciiiiiiii ittt e s s eesessnnnnnneneeees 115,806 79,591 1,446,372
Financial liabilities
Due to credit institutions and Central BanK ............cccoviiiiiiiiiiiee i 11,697 - - 11,697
(DTt oo | TSP OU PRSPPSO 755,361 - - 755,361
Borrowings * 392,563 - - 392,563
Subordinated HaDIlIIES * ........uuiiiiiiii e e e e 47,331 - - 47,331
Short position in equity used for economic hedging ..........coccveeriiiiiiiciiie e - - 11 11
[ LY AV LAV TR - - 4,730 4,730
Derivatives used for hedge aCCOUNTING ........ceoeiiiieiiiieiie e - - 16,256 16,256
Other financial liabilities .. 10,099 - - 10,099
Financial HabilitieS ........eviiiiiiiiiii e e e e e s e e e e e eaaneeeas 1,217,051 - 20,997 1,238,048
* Including effect from hedge accounting derivatives.
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22. Financial assets and financial liabilities, continued
Manda-
Fair value torily at
Bonds and debt instruments measured at fair value, specified by issuer through  fair value
31.3.2023 (e]¢]] thr. P/L Total
Financial and iNSUrANCE ACHIVILIES .....iiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e et e e e e s e aab e e eeseenaaes 19,055 9,634 28,689
[0 o] [ oY =T o (o | (PP PP PP PPPRTPPPPPN 104,302 12,423 116,725
(O] g o To] =1 (=2 R T PP P PP PP P PP PPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPNt - 2,833 2,833
Bonds and debt instruments at fair VAlUE .........coovvvviiiiiiiiiiiii e, 123,357 24,890 148,247
31.12.2022
Financial and iNSUrANCE ACHIVILIES ......iiiiiiieiiieei et e e e et e e e e e et et e e e e s s eab e e e eeeeeraas 18,898 9,967 28,865
Public sector 96,908 9,319 106,227
(O] g o To] =1 =2 R PO P PP PPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPNt - 3,082 3,082
Bonds and debt instruments at fair VAIUE .........coovvviiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeee 115,806 22,368 138,174

23.

The total amount of pledged bonds was ISK 3.0 billion at the end of the period (31.12.2022: ISK 3.6 billion). Pledged bonds comprised
Icelandic Government Bonds and Financial Institutions Bonds that were pledged against funding received and included in Due to credit
institutions and Central Bank as well as short positions included in Financial liabilities at fair value.

Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of assets and liabilities by valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2: valuation techniques for which all significant inputs are market observable, either directly or indirectly; and
Level 3: valuation techniques which include significant inputs that are not based on observable market data.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized at fair value on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy

31.3.2023
Assets at fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Bonds and debt iNSLIUMENTS .........oovvviiiiiiieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e, 145,173 2,970 104 148,247
Shares and equity instruments with variable iNnCome ............ccccccoviiiiiieic e, 5,893 9,406 1,927 17,226
[T 1Yz 11N VZ= RN - 9,567 - 9,567
Securities used for coNOMIC NEAGING ...veivvieiiiiieiiie e 29,956 - - 29,956
Investment property - - 7,875 7,875
Assets at fair value 181,022 21,943 9,906 212,871
Liabilities at fair value
Short POSItION IN @QUILY .....coiiiiiiiieee e 4 - - 4
Derivatives - 6,458 - 6,458
Derivatives used for hedge aCCOUNTING ........ceieiiiiiiiiieiie e - 14,230 - 14,230
Liabilities at fair VAIUE ......cooviiieiiccc e 4 20,688 - 20,692
Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim Amounts are in ISK millions
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23. Fair value hierarchy, continued
31.12.2022
Assets at fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Loans to Credit INSHIULIONS .........vuiiiieii e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eaab s - 2,068 - 2,068
Bonds and debt iNSTIUMENTS .........oovviiiiiiiiiiiceeee e 135,126 2,946 102 138,174
Shares and equity instruments with variable iINCOMe .............ccccoviiiiiiiniii e 5,214 10,587 1,932 17,733
DBIIVALIVES ...cvviiieie ettt ettt e e e et e e e et e et s e e e e e e st eeeeeesaaaaa e e eesaaaaranaans - 9,448 - 9,448
Derivatives used for hedge aCCOUNTING .........ccvviiiiiiiiiiie e - 68 - 68
Securities used for econOMIC NEAGING ........vvviiiiiiiiiiie e 27,906 - - 27,906
INVESTMENT PIOPEITY ..ottt - - 7,862 7,862
ASSEES AL FAIT VAIUE ...ttt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e aeeaaaaeaaaaaaaeens 168,246 25,117 9,896 203,259
Liabilities at fair value
Short position in equity used for economic hedging . 11 - - 11
[ LT A= LAV T TR - 4,730 - 4,730
Derivatives used for hedge aCCOUNTING ........oocuviiiiiiiiiiiiie e - 16,256 - 16,256
Liabilities at fair VAIUE ........ooooiiiiiiii e ennannnaees 11 20,986 - 20,997

There was no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period (2022: Transfers from Level 1 to Level 2 ISK 1,098 million).

Fair value of assets and liabilities

The fair value of asset and liabilities is the amount at which the asset and liability could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, i.e. not during a forced sale or liquidation. The existence of published price quotations in an active market is the best
evidence of fair value and when they exist they are used by the Group to measure assets and liabilities. If quoted prices for an asset fail to
represent actual and regularly occurring transactions in active market transactions or if quoted prices are not available at all, fair value is
established by using an appropriate valuation technique.

Methods for establishing fair value

The best evidence of the fair value of an asset and liability at initial recognition is the transaction price, unless the fair value can be
evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions, or is based on a valuation technique whose variables include
only data from observable markets.

In some cases, the carrying value of an asset in Note 22 is used as an approximation for the fair value of the asset. This is straight forward
for cash and cash equivalents but is also used for short term investments and borrowings to highly rated counterparties, such as credit
institutions, on contracts that feature interest close to or equal to market rates and expose the Group to little or no credit risk.

Level 1: Fair value established from quoted market prices

For listed and liquid stocks and bonds, certain financial derivatives and other market traded securities, the fair value is derived directly from
quoted market prices. These instruments are disclosed under Financial instruments and Financial liabilities at fair value in the Statement of
Financial Position.

Level 2: Fair value established using valuation techniques with observable market information

For assets and liabilities, for which the market is not active, the Group applies valuation techniques to attain a fair value using as much
market information as available. Valuation techniques include using recent market transactions between knowledgeable and willing parties,
if available, reference to current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing
models or other commonly accepted valuation techniques used by market participants to price the instrument.

For assets and liabilities for which quoted prices on active markets are not available, the fair value is derived using various valuation
techniques. This applies in particular to OTC derivatives such as options, swaps, futures and unlisted equities but also some other assets
and liabilities.

In most cases the valuation is based on theoretical financial models, such as the Black Scholes model or variations thereof. These
techniques also include forward pricing and swap models using present value calculations.

Level 2 instruments include unlisted shares, unlisted funds with underlying bonds and equity holdings (share certificates), unlisted and less
liquid listed bonds and all OTC derivatives.

Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim Amounts are in ISK millions
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23. Fair value hierarchy, continued

Level 3: Fair value established using valuation techniques with significant unobservable market information

In some cases there is little or no market data to rely on for fair value calculations. The most common valuation technique is present value
calculations. Such calculations involve the estimation of future cash flow and the assessment of appropriate discount rate. The discount
rate should both reflect current market rates and the uncertainty in the future cash flow. In such cases internal models and methods are
used to calculate the fair value. The models may be statistical in nature, based on internal or external history of assets with similar
characteristics and/or based on internal knowledge and experience. For example, the credit margin on most loans to customers which, is
added to the current and suitable interest rate to arrive at an appropriate discount rate, is estimated using credit rating and loss parameters
in case of default that have been derived from internal models.

Equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price are evaluated using methods and guidelines from pertinent international
organizations. In most cases intrinsic value is the basis for the assessment but other factors, such as cash flow analysis, can also modify
the results.

The Group applies management valuation for determining fair value of investment properties. Management valuation is either based on
recent transactions and offers for similar assets or present value calculations which involve estimation of future cash flow and the
assessment of appropriate discount rate.

Movements in Level 3 assets measured at fair value

Investment Financial assets
31.3.2023 property Bonds Shares Total
Balance at the beginning Of the YEar ..........ccouiiiiiiiii i 7,862 102 1,932 9,896
Net fair ValUE ChANGES .......oeiiiiiiiiiiii et e e e e 5 2 1) 6
Additions .. 8 - - 8
Disposals - - 4) 4)
Balance at the end of the Period ........coouiiiiiiiii e 7,875 104 1,927 9,906
31.12.2022
Balance at the beginning of the YEar ... 6,560 97 3,808 10,465
Net fair value ChangEs ..........coci i 26 6 135 167
Additions 49 - 29 78
Disposals @) 1) (2,907) (1,915)
Transfers from held for SAle ASSELS .........oovvvviiiiiiiiieee e, 1,234 - - 1,234
Transfers out Of LEVEI 3 ... - - (133) (133)
Balance at the end Of the Y AI ........ccuiiiiii i 7,862 102 1,932 9,896
Line items where effects of Level 3 assets are recognized in the Income Statement
1.1.-31.3.2023
Net financial income - 2 1) 1
Other operating income ... 5 - - 5
Effects recognized in the Income Statement ..........cocviiiiiiiiiieiiic e 5 2 (1) 6
1.1.-31.3.2022
Net fiNANCIAI INCOME ... et e e e e s st bbe e e e e s snanees - - 252 252
Effects recognized in the Income Statement ... - - 252 252
Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim Amounts are in ISK millions
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23. Fair value hierarchy, continued

Carrying values and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities not carried at fair value

31.3.2023 Carrying Fair Unrealized
Financial assets not carried at fair value value value gain (loss)
Cash and balances With CeNtral BANK ............ciieiiiiiiiiiiie it e e e e e e e e e e s e aa s e eeeees 80,272 80,272 -
LOANS t0 Credit INSHEULIONS . ....uvviiiiieiieeeeee et e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e s bt e e e e esesbb e eeeesessaannns 62,899 62,899 -
o oY E R (o o0 1) (o] 1 L= £ TSPR 1,114,128 1,089,276 (24,852)
Other fINANCIAI ASSELS .....evviiiiiiiiiiieiieee et e et e e e e e et e e e e et eaa et e e sesaaba it aeeessssasaneeeeeesans 15,257 15,257 -
Financial assets not carried at fair VAU ..ottt eeeenneees 1,272,556 1,247,704 (24,852)

Financial liabilities not carried at fair value

Due to credit institutions and Central BanK ................ooiiiiiiiiiiiii i ee e e neraeeaaaees 24,188 24,188 -
DEPOSILS ..eeivveieiiiieeiiiee e 775,023 775,023 -
Borrowings 390,734 381,455 9,279
YU oo o ITaT=N =Te I TE=T o] 4T SUURRRRRRY 46,681 46,088 593
Other financial liabilities 24,767 24,767 -
Financial liabilities not carried at fair VAIUE ..........coiiiiiiiiiiiiec et eeeaans 1,261,393 1,251,521 9,872
31.12.2022

Financial assets not carried at fair value

Cash and balances With CeNtral BANK ..............ueeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e, 114,118 114,118 -
Loans t0 Credit INSHLULIONS ........ooeeieeieeeeeeeeeeee bbbt s e e aassesssnnennnnnnnes 45,501 45,501 -
(o= T g E N (o WU 1] (o] 1 L= £ SRURPPTPPRPR 1,084,757 1,017,671 (67,086)
Other fINANCIAI BSSELS ... .ciiiieieeiieeccec et eeeseeeeeeeeeeeeeaeeeeeeeeeaaeeeaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaens 8,667 8,667 -
Financial assets Not carried at fair VAIUE ..........ooviiiiiiiiiii et e e 1,253,043 1,185,957 (67,086)
Financial liabilities not carried at fair value

Due to credit institutions and Central BANK ...........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiee et e e e e e e e e e eeaaaaaas 11,697 11,697 -
[T oo 1 £ SUSPR 755,361 755,361 -
12T ] (01111 o [T P PO PPN 392,563 381,426 11,137
SUbOrdinated HADIITIES ........cvviiiieiiieeeeee et e e e et e e e e e e e e e s e e e s eesbaaeeeeeeeeans 47,331 48,310 (979)
Other fiNANCIAI TADIIITIES ......ciiiiiiiiii et e e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e eeaab e eeeseeabans 10,099 10,099 -
Financial liabilities Not carried at failr VAIUE ............uvuveuiiiieeeiieiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e e e e e e e e e e e ae e 1,217,051 1,206,893 10,158

Loans to customers largely bear variable interest rates. Those loans, including corporate loans, are presented at book value as they
generally have a short duration and very limited interest rate risk. Loans with fixed interest rates, mainly retail mortgages, are estimated by
using the discount cash flow method with the interest rates offered on new loans, taking into account loan to value. Defaulted loans are
presented at book value as no future cash flow is expected on them. Instead they are written down according to their estimated potential
recovery value.

Derivatives Notional Fair value
31.3.2023 value Assets  Liabilities
Forward exchange rate agrEEMENLS ...........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 62,672 1,137 286
Fair value hedge of INEreSt rate SWAP ........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 222,165 - 14,230
Interest rate and exchange rate agre mMENLS ........cc.uuriiiiiiiiiiiie et e e 77,882 4,391 4,988
Bond swap agreements . 5,172 209 20
Share swap agreements 29,590 3,485 1,164
Options - purchased agreements, UNIISTEM ............ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiic e 1 345 -
Derivatives 397,482 9,567 20,688
31.12.2022
Forward exchange rate @grEEMENES .......couuieiiiieiiie ettt ettt e e e e e e e st e e st e rne e 73,127 2,383 168
Fair value hedge of interest rate swap ....... 246,965 68 16,256
Interest rate and exchange rate agrEEMENLES ..........uiiiuiieiiiie ittt 93,206 2,737 3,540
BONA SWAP OTEEIMENES ...ttt ettt s bttt e et e et e e et e et e e bt e ekt e e aa b e e e sabeeesnnneenas 5,668 277 19
Share swap agreements ... 36,057 3,694 975
Options - purchased agreements, UNKISTE .........cccuiiiiiiiiiiie e 5 357 28
DBIIVALIVES .. .oeeiiiiie ettt ettt e e e et e e e e e et et e e e e e e e e et b see e e e e st aeeeeessasaa e eeeesesbbasaeesessbbaneeesessrean 455,028 9,516 20,986
Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim Amounts are in ISK millions
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23. Fair value hierarchy, continued

Fair value hedge of interest rate swap

The Group applies fair value hedge accounting only with respect to interest rate swaps, whereby the Group pays floating rate interest and
receives fixed rate interest, with identical cash flows to the borrowings. The interest rate swaps are hedging the exposure of changes in the
fair value of certain fixed-rate EUR bonds, see Note 31, arising from changes in interest rates. On 1 January 2018 the Group adopted IFRS
9, but has elected to continue to apply the hedge accounting principles under IAS 39. For further information about the Group's hedge

accounting policy, see Note 59 in the Annual Financial Statements 2022.

Notional
1.1.2023 - 31.3.2023
Interest rates swaps - EUR ..........cccociiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeees -
Interest rates swaps - EUR .. 44,670
Interest rates SWapPS - USD ...........uuuiiiiiiiiiriiiiiiiiiiriiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeees 13,705
Interest rates swaps - EUR ..........cccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeees 74,450
Interest rates swaps - EUR ..........cccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiieeeeeeeeeeeeees 44,670
Interest rates swaps - EUR ..........ccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeeeeeeeees 44,670
1.1.2022 - 31.12.2022
Interest rates swaps - EUR ..o 20,680
Interest rates swaps - EUR ..........cccociiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiieeeeeeeeeeeeees 45,451
Interest rates swaps - USD .. 14,180
Interest rates swaps - EUR ...........cccociiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeees 75,752
Interest rates swaps - EUR ..........ccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeees 45,451
Interest rates swaps - EUR .. 45,451

Hedged borrowings and subordinated liabilities

1.1.2023 - 31.3.2023

EUR 300 million - issued 2018 - 5 YEAIS .........cccovueiiieiieiie e
EUR 300 million - issued 2020 - 4 YEAIS ........ccccevueeiieiiieiie e
USD 100 million - issued 2020 - Perpetual ............cccocveriiiiinienieeeeeecee e
EUR 500 million - issued 2021 - 5 YE@IS .......ccceevueeiieiieiie e
EUR 300 million - issued 2021 - 4 YEAIS .......cccceevueeiieiieiie et

EUR 300 million - issued 2022 - 2 years ...

Hedged borrowings and subordinated liabilities ..........ccccccccviiiiiiiieniiiiiieeee,

1.1.2022 - 31.12.2022
EUR 500 million - issued 2017/18 - 5 years ..

EUR 300 million - issued 2018 - 5 YEAIS ........ccocveiiiiiieiiiieiiie e
EUR 300 million - issued 2020 - 4 YEAIS .........ccccveeiiiieiiiieiciee e

USD 100 million - issued 2020 - Perpetual ...

EUR 300 million - issued 2021 - 5 YEAIS ........ccocvieiiiieiiiieiiee e
EUR 300 million - issued 2021 - 4 YEAIS ........ccocueeeiiieiiieeeciee e

Hedged borrowings and subordinated liabilities

Gain (loss)

Maturity Fair value on FV

date Assets Liabilities ~ changes

- - - 76

1-5 years - 1,942 314

1-5 years - 935 158

1-5 years - 7,326 687

1-5 years - 3,753 367

1-5 years - 274 61

- 14,230 1,663

0-3 mth 68 - (747)

1-5 years - 2,332 (1,933)

1-5 years - 908 (1,103)

1-5 years - 7,986 (6,911)

1-5 years - 4,151 (3,321)

1-5 years - 879 (840)

68 16,256 (14,855)

Accumulated Gain (loss)
Book fair value on FV

value Assets Liabilties ~ changes

- - - (156)

............. 42,836 2,007 - (316)
............ 12,869 841 - (1112)
............. 65,902 6,947 - (686)
............. 41,060 3,598 - (307)
44,446 682 - (93)

............. 207,113 14,075 - (1,669)
20,672 156 - 13
............. 43,181 2,363 - 1,930
............. 13,396 1,001 - 1,024
. 66,231 7,765 - 6,927
............. 41,404 3,973 - 3,288
............. 44,557 792 - 766
229,441 16,050 - 13,947

The effectiveness of each hedge is measured regularly with linear regression. The relationship between fair value changes of an interest
rate swap on the one hand and a borrowing on the other hand is examined. In all cases the effectiveness is within limits, or between 94-

108%.
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24. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets subject to enforceable master netting arrangements and similar arrangements
Netting potential not
Assets subject to netting recognized in the
arrangements Balance Sheet Assets not
Assets Assets after subjectto Total assets
Gross assets Nettings recognized consideration enforceable recognized
before  with gross on Balance Financial Collateral of netting  netting arr-  on Balance
31.3.2023 nettings liabilities  Sheet, net liabilities received potential angements  Sheet, net
Reverse repurchase agreements ........ 48,766 (41,114) 7,652 41,114 - 48,766 - 7,652
Derivatives ........ccccveeveiiniiienieee e 724 - 724 (43) - 681 8,843 9,567
Total aSSetS ...coovvvevviiiiiiie e 49,490 (41,114) 8,376 41,071 - 49,447 8,843 17,219
31.12.2022
Reverse repurchase agreements ........ 17,781 (10,212) 7,569 10,212 - 17,781 - 7,569
Derivatives ........cooceeevieeeniieeiiiee e 842 - 842 (42) - 800 8,674 9,516
Total aSSets .....occovvvvviiiriieerieceieeee 18,623 (10,212) 8,411 10,170 - 18,581 8,674 17,085
Financial liabilities subject to enforceable master netting arrangements and similar arrangements
Netting potential not
Liabilities subject to netting recognized in the
arrangements Balance Sheet Liabilities Liabilities not Total
Gross Liabilities after subject to liabilities
liabilities Nettings recognized consideration enforceable  recognized
before  with gross on Balance Financial Collateral of netting  netting arr-  on balance
31.3.2023 nettings assets  Sheet, net assets pledged potential angements sheet
Repurchase agreements .................... - (41,114) (41,114) 41,114 - - - (41,114)
Derivatives ........ccccveevveiniiienieee i 15,980 - 15,980 (43) - 15,937 4,708 20,688
Total liabilities ........c.cccoveveveverennnnn. 15980  (41,114)  (25,134) 41,071 - 15,937 4,708 (20,426)
31.12.2022
Repurchase agreements .................... - (10,212) (10,212) 10,212 - - - (10,212)
DerivatiVes ........covveeerieeeniiee e 18,298 - 18,298 (42) - 18,256 2,689 20,986
Total liabilities ........ccccovvveiiiieiiiecns 18,298 (10,212) 8,086 10,170 - 18,256 2,689 10,774

Reverse repurchase agreements and repurchase agreements are recognized within the line items Financial instruments and Due to credit
institutions and Central Bank respectively.

25. Investments in associates
31.3.2023 31.12.2022

Carrying amount at the beginning 0f the YEAr ...........cooi i 787 668
Acquisitions / increased Share CapItal .............ccoiiiiiiiiiiiii e - 90
DISPOSAIS ...ttt e et e e e e eenneeeaas - (241)
Share of (loss) profit of associates and profit from Sale ............ccciiiiiiiii a7) 270

INVESTMENT IN @SSOCIALES ...vviiiiiiiiiiiiiieee ittt e e e ettt e e e sttt e e e s et bb et e e e e s aaeeeeeeeastbbeeeeesaasbbbeeaeesssbbeeeeeeansseseaeeeensneeeeas 770 787

The Group's interest in its principal associates

Bilafragangur ehf., LAgmuli 5, ReyKjavik, ICEIANG ............coiiiiiiiiiiiieee e 33.4% 33.4%
Hableer ehf., Sudurlandsbraut 18, Reykjavik, Iceland ..... . 49.0% 49.0%
Reiknistofa bankanna hf., Katrinartin 2, Reykjavik, ICEland .............cocueiiiiieiiiie e 23.0% 23.0%
SER eignarhaldsfélag ehf., Borgartin 19, ReYKJAVIK ..........ccceiiiiiiiiiieiieiecsese e 35.3% 35.3%
Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim Amounts are in ISK millions
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26. Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise the following categories: Goodwill, which arises on business combinations; Infrastructure, Customer
relationships and related agreements which are identified during the acquisition of subsidiaries and related to the activities of the
businesses being acquired; and Software, which is acquired (i.e. software licenses) and expenses of implementation.

Infrastructure, which is capitalized as an intangible asset, is related to the asset management operation and branding of the insurance
operation. The business activity is based on years of developing expertise and systems, during which a valuable platform has been created
for future growth. An impairment test is performed annually.

Customer relationships and related agreements are connected to business relationships and agreements which the Bank acquired in
subsidiaries. The asset is based on the assumption that business relationships and agreements generate regular payments and earnings to
the relevant business segments. The lifetime of these agreements is based on the experience of the Group and the industry. As a result,
these agreements are assessed as having an identified useful lifetime.

Acquired software and internally developed software is capitalized on the basis of the cost of acquiring and bringing the software into
service. Expenditure on internally developed software is recognized as an asset when the Group is able to demonstrate its intention and
ability to complete the development and use the software in a manner that will generate future economic benefits, and when it can reliably
measure the costs to complete the development. The capitalized costs of internally developed software include external expenses directly
attributable to developing the software and salary and salary related expenses of implementation of core systems. Capitalized costs of
software are amortized over its useful life. Computer software licenses and internally developed software recognized as intangible assets
are amortized over their useful life, which is estimated to be 3-10 years.

Policies applied to the Group's intangible assets Goodwill Customer relationship
and infrastructure and related agreements Software
USEFULTIVES ..o Undefined Finite 6-15 years Finite 3-10 years

and undefined

Straight-line basis over
Impairment test 6-15 years and
impairment test

Straight-line basis

Amortization method over 3-10 years

Acquired and internally

Internally generated or acquired ...........ccccoevviirieeeeeiiiiieeee s Acquired Acquired generated
Customer
relationship
Infra- and related
31.3.2023 Goodwill structure agreements Software Total
Balance at the beginning of the year ...........cccccoiiiiii 730 2,383 547 5,123 8,783
Additions - - - 62 62
Amortization - - (15) (255) (270)
Intangible assets 730 2,383 532 4,930 8,575
31.12.2022
Balance at the beginning of the year .........c.cccccoviiiii e 669 2,383 607 5,804 9,463
Additions 61 - - 355 416
Amortization ... - - (60) (1,036) (1,096)
Intangible assets 730 2,383 547 5,123 8,783

Goodwill related to the insurance operation is recognized among assets in the operating segments Corporate & Investment Banking and
Retail Banking and in 2022 Leiguskjél acquired a subsidiary including ISK 61 million in goodwill wich is recognized in the operating segment
Other subsidiaries, see Note 5.

27. Tax assets and tax liabilities 31.3.2023 31.12.2022
Assets  Liabilities Assets  Liabilities

Current tax ... . - 9,230 - 8,471
[ 1= 1= T4 =T I - VGRS 332 1,610 135 1,832
Tax assets and taxX [labilitiES .......coovuuuiiiii e 332 10,840 135 10,303
Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim Amounts are in ISK millions
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28. Assets and disposal groups held for sale and associated liabilities
Assets and disposal groups held for sale 31.3.2023 31.12.2022
T L] 1= L= PP P PP PPPPPPPN 61 61
Assets and disposal groups held fOr SAIE ......iiiiiiiiii e 61 61

Real estates and other assets classified as assets held for sale are generally the result of foreclosures on companies and individuals.

Solbjarg ehf., a subsidiary of Eignabjarg ehf.

Solbjarg ehf. is a holding company of the former TravelCo hf. tour operator group which included Terra Nova Sél ehf., Heimsferdir ehf. and
TravelCo Nordic/Bravo Tours. All operations were sold during the years 2020-2022. Following the sale of the operation of Heimsferdir ehf.
Solbjarg became a minority shareholder in Ferdaskrifstofa islands ehf. through its ownership in Heimbjarg ehf. (former Heimsferdir ehf.).
The holding is held for sale with zero book value.

29. Other assets
31.3.2023 31.12.2022

(el o] o1 1A VA= TaTo I=To 017 o]0 o T=T o | APPSR PPRTTTPPPI 3,724 3,787
Right of use asset ............ 723 745
Accounts receivable 2,217 5,255
UNSEEA SECUNTIES TrATING ..vvviieiiiiiiiiie e ettt e e sttt e e e e ettt e e e e e b bbb et e e e s st bbbt e e e e e anbbbeeeesenbbeeeeeeaantbaeeeeas 10,590 860
510 To VA= LT O PP PT T UPPRTRN 3,482 3,576
(Y= =Y =) £ 20,736 14,223
30. Other liabilities

ACCOUNES PAYADIE ...ttt ettt e e e ettt e e e 4o bbb et e e e e e a bt et e e e e easbb et e e e e aanbbb e e e e e s aanbbbeeeeeeannbbeeeeeennnnes 1,536 1,013
UNSEEA SECUNEIES TrATING ..vvviieiiiiiiiii ettt e sttt e e e e ettt e e e e et bbb et e e e s st bbbt e e e e e snbbbeeeesenbbeeeeesesnnbaeeeeas 10,593 1,844
LTS g1 Tor= Ul o] {017 11 o] o HOU TP UT PP PPRPRN 18,946 21,023
VAVt a] aTo (o [T gTo I = TP TP PPRPRN 642 2,637
BANK TEVY ettt ettt e b et e oo oA E b — et e e e a bttt e e e e e R hba et e e e e oA bbb et e e e e e nbbeeeeeennabreeeeeanraes 1,826 1,761
F Yoo U T=To =) o 1=] YT PP PPPP TP 3,899 4,776
[ =] oF= Lo I [oTo] 441 ST U PP P PP UPPPRPRPRE 1,529 1,590
Impairment of Off-DAIANCE ITEIMS ........iiiiiii e e e e e e et e e e s s bbbt e e e e s nnabbeeeeeas 363 449
[T Ry 1= Vo 11 O PP RUPPRPRN 944 970
YU oo VA L= o] 1 =TT PRT TP 12,276 6,910
(@14 YT R TE=T o 11 E A= S 52,554 42,973
Technical provision Technical Reinsurers' Total Technical Reinsurers' Total

provision share 31.3.2023  provision share 31.12.2022
Claims reported and loss adjustment expenses ...........c..ccccove.. 12,509 (187) 12,322 10,455 (371) 10,084
Claims incurred but not reported .............ceeevveeeiieeiiiieenniee e 2,306 (62) 2,244 3,168 (90) 3,078
Claims oUtStaNAiNg .....ooooiiiiiiiiii e 14,815 (249) 14,566 13,623 (461) 13,162
Provision for unearned premiums ...........cccccoovviiiiininiie s 4,131 (10) 4,121 7,400 (15) 7,385
Own technical ProvisSion ........ccccoceeiiiieiiieeeceee e 18,946 (259) 18,687 21,023 (476) 20,547

Insurance claim consists of claims outstanding and provision for unearned premiums. Claims outstanding present unsettled claims incurred.
Claims outstanding is the total of claims reported and actuarial estimation of claims incurred but not reported. Provision for unearned
premiums presents the current insurance risk that will be conditional on future fiscal years.
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31. Borrowings

First Maturity
Currency, original nominal value issued Maturity type Terms of interest 31.3.2023 31.12.2022
ARION CB 24 I1SK 28,900 million ........ 2019 2024 At maturity Fixed, 6.00% ................. 26,021 25,736
ARION CBI 25, ISK 37,940 million ...... 2017 2025 At maturity Fixed, CPI linked, 3.00% 48,896 47,184
ARION CBI 26 ISK 17,080 million ....... 2019 2026 At maturity Fixed, CPI linked, 2.00% ................. 19,800 19,219
ARION CBI 29, ISK 27,200 million ...... 2014 2029 At maturity Fixed, CPI linked, 3.50% .. . 36,841 35,602
ARION CBI 48, ISK 11,680 million ...... 2018 2048 Amortizing Fixed, CPI linked, 2.50% ................. 11,929 11,828
ARION CB EUR 500 million * ............. 2021 2026 At maturity Fixed, EUR 0.05% ........cccovvvvvveeennn. 65,902 66,231
ARION CB 27, ISK 41,000 million ....... 2022 2027 At maturity Fixed, 5.50% ........cccceeeeiiiiiiieeeniiiins 17,756 7,058
53 - UL (o] YA oo XY= =Te I o To T o £ PP PRTPRN 227,145 212,858
NOK 250 million .......cooevviiiiiieeniiiiines 2017 2023 At maturity Fixed, 3.02% .....c.cccceeiiiiiiiieiniiiinnn. 3,370 3,671
EUR 300 million * 2018 2023 At maturity Fixed, 1.00% .... - 20,672
EUR 300 million * 2020 2024 At maturity Fixed, 0.625 % 42,836 43,181
NOK 250 million .......ccoovviiiiiiieniiiiinns 2017 2027 At maturity Fixed, 3.40% 3,382 3,680
EUR 300 million Green * 2021 2025 At maturity Fixed, 0.375% .. .. 41,060 41,404
ARION 26 1222 Green (ISK 5,760m) .. 2021 2026 At maturity Fixed, 4.70% ......cocoovvvieeiiiiiiiieennnns 5,466 5,382
ARION 24 1020 Green (ISK 6,020m) .. 2022 2024 At maturity Floating, REIBOR 3M +0.70% ......... 6,065 6,062
EUR 300 million Green * ............c..cou... 2022 2024 At maturity Fixed, 4.875% .......cccccceeeiiiiiiiiieennnnns 44,446 44,557
NOK 550 million ........ccovviiviiiienniiiinnns 2022 2025 At maturity Floating, OIBOR 3M +2.35% ........... 7,243 7,952
SEK 230 million .......ccvvvveeeiiiiiiieeees 2022 2025 At maturity Floating, STIBOR 3M +2.35% ......... 3,060 3,144
NOK 200 million .......coeeeeiiiiiiiiiiinieennnns 2023 2025 At maturity Floating, Oibor 3M + 2,55% ............ 2,626 -
SEK 300 Million ....ccoeevvvvieeeeiiiiiiiiees 2023 2026 At maturity Floating, Stibor 3M + 3,0% .............. 4,035 -
ST VT FY =AUl g =To I o Yol o T £ 163,589 179,705
1220 T {0111 o = PSR PSPSR 390,734 392,563

* The Group applies fair value hedge accounting to these bond issuances and uses certain foreign currency denominated interest rate swaps as hedging
instruments, see Note 23.

The book value of listed bonds was ISK 391 billion at the end of the period (31.12.2022: ISK 393 billion). The market value of those bonds
was ISK 381 billion (31.12.2022: ISK 381 billion). The Group repurchased no own debts during the period (3M 2022: ISK 4 billion).

32. Subordinated liabilities

First call
Currency, original nominal value Issued Maturity  date Terms of interest 31.3.2023 31.12.2022
SEK 500 million ........cccocevvviiiiiiieenne 2018 2028 22 Nov '23 Floating, 3 month STIBOR +3.10% .. 6,640 6,822
NOK 300 million ......cceeevvvieiniieeiieeene 2019 2029 9 Jul 24 Floating, NIBOR +3.65% .................. 3,996 4,383
SEK 225 million ... 2019 2029 20 Dec '24 Floating, 3 month STIBOR +3.70% .. 2,983 3,066
ARION T2l 30 ISK 4,800 million ......... 2019 2030 4 Jan'25  Fixed, CPI linked, 3.875% ............... 5,953 5,841
ARION T2 30 ISK 880 million ............. 2019 2030 4Jan'25  Fixed, 6.75% .....cccovveeviieeiiieeniieenns 893 908
EUR S MIllioN ...coovvveiiiieeiieeeciee e 2019 2031 6 Mar'26  Fixed, 3.24% ....cccceeveveeeiieeeieeeiien 741 772
ARION T2l 33 9,860 million ................ 2022 2033 15 Dec '28 Fixed, CPI linked, 4.95% ................. 10,306 9,894
ARION T2 33 2,240 million ................. 2022 2033 15 Dec 28 Fixed, 9.25% .....cccoovveeiureeeiieeeiieenns 2,300 2,249
Tier 2 subordinated [HADIITIES .....cciiiiiiiiee bbbttt ee e e e neneeereeees 33,812 33,935
ARION AT1 USD 100 million * ........... 2020 Perpetual 26 Mar '25 12,869 13,396
Additional Tier 1 subordinated [HADTTITIES .......coiiiiiiiiii e e e e e e e e et s e e s e eerbaes 12,869 13,396
SUDOTAINALEA [HADTTITIES L.vvuiiiiiiiiiiiei ettt e e e e e et e e e e s e ettt e e e s e et b bt eeeeeesaaaaeeeessaasbanaes 46,681 47,331

* The Group applies fair value hedge accounting to these bond issuances and uses certain foreign currency denominated interest rate swaps as hedging
instruments, see Note 23.

Additional Tier 1 and Tier 2 subordinated liabilities are eligible as regulatory capital under the Icelandic Financial Undertakings Act No.
161/2002.
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33. Liabilities arising from financial activities
Non-cash changes
Cash Interest Foreign Effect At period
31.3.2023 1 Jan flows expenses exchange from hedge end
Covered bonds in ISK - CPIlINKed.........cccooeeviiiiiiiiieeeiiiiiiiieeeees 113,833 (453) 4,086 - - 117,466
Covered bonds iN ISK.......ouueeeiieeiieee e 32,794 10,501 483 - - 43,778
Covered bonds iN FX ... 66,231 (373) 488 (1,142) 698 65,902
Senior unsecured bonds iN FX.....ooouieiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeee e, 168,261 (14,932) 1,714 (3,892) 907 152,058
Senior unsecured bonds iN ISK.........ccceevieiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeieee e 11,444 (95) 181 - - 11,530
Subordinated bond CPI T2 linked.. . 15,735 (111) 635 - - 16,259
Subordinated bond T2 ISK.........couviiiiiiiiiiiiieeee e 3,156 (30) 67 - - 3,193
Subordinated bond T2 FX ..o 15,044 (241) 223 (666) - 14,360
Subordinated bond ATL FX.....oiiiiiiiiieiieiiesiiesieeee e 13,396 (579) 346 (414) 120 12,869
Liabilities arising from financial activities 439,894 (6,313) 8,223 (6,114) 1,725 437,415
31.12.2022
Covered bonds in ISK - CPIlinKed..........cocoveiiiieiiiieeiiiceiieeee 102,007 (814) 12,640 - - 113,833
Covered bonds in ISK.... 57,512 (27,114) 2,396 - - 32,794
Covered bonds iN FX. ..o 43,624 26,690 386 2,515 (6,984) 66,231
Senior unsecured bonds iN FX........oiviviiiiiiiiiiiee e, 149,970 17,949 2,044 4,278 (5,980) 168,261
Senior unsecured bonds iN ISK............uvvvvviviiiieiieiieieeieeeeeeeeeeeees 3,524 7,359 561 - - 11,444
Subordinated bond CPI T2 linked...........cccooeeeeiiiiiiiiiiieieeeiiiiieens 5,337 9,651 747 - - 15,735
Subordinated bond T2 ISK........cooviiiiiieiiieieee e 907 2,182 68 - - 3,157
Subordinated bond T2 FX....cccooiiiiiiiiiiiieeieeeeesee s 15,619 (596) 643 (623) - 15,043
Subordinated bond ATL FX......oooiiiiiiiiiieiiereee e 13,225 (867) 880 1,149 (991) 13,396
Liabilities arising from financial activities............cccccovvuvveennn. 391,725 34,440 20,365 7,319 (13,955) 439,894
34. Pledged assets
Pledged assets against liabilities 31.3.2023 31.12.2022
Assets, pledged as collateral againSt DOIMOWINGS .......cciiiiuiiiiieiiiiii et e st e e e e e e s e enbaeeee s 389,031 328,811
Assets, pledged as collateral against loans from the Central Bank, credit institutions and short positions ................ 3,020 3,591
Pledged assets against Habilities .......c..uii it et e e et e e s e et e e 392,051 332,402
Thereof pledged assets against issued covered bonds held by the Bank .............cccccoiiiiiiiiiiiinieeeeeee (97,316) (70,850)
Assets against repoed ISSUEH DONAS ........c.uiiiiiiiiiiii ittt e et e et e et e e anb e e sn b e e snbeeeabneeans 54,140 17,029

Pledged assets against liabilities on balance 348,875 278,581

The Group has pledged assets against due to credit institutions and borrowings, both issued covered bonds and other issued bonds and
loan agreements. Pledged loans comprised mortgage loans to individuals. The book value of those liabilities were ISK 242 billion at period
end (31.12.2022: ISK 213 billion).

The Group has pledged bonds against short term lending from the Central Bank of Iceland and against short positions, related to swap
agreements, to hedge market risk of those assets.

The Group has issued covered bonds amounting to ISK 36 billion that can be used for repo borrowings at the Central Bank of Iceland, the
European Central Bank or sold if market conditions are favorable (31.12.2022: ISK 45 billion). Pledged assets against those covered bonds
are ISK 43 billion (31.12.2022: ISK 54 billion).
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35. Equity

Share capital and share premium

According to the Bank's Articles of Association, total share capital amounts to ISK 1,510 million, with par value of ISK 1 per share. The
holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as approved by the AGM and are entitled to one vote per share at shareholders'

meetings.

Share Oown Share Total Share Oown Share Total

capital shares  premium 31.3.2023 capital shares  premium 31.12.2022
Balance at the beginning of the year .. 1,510 (45) 11,907 13,372 1,660 (142) 21,166 22,684
Share capital reduction ..............c........ - - - - (150) 150 - -
Purchase of treasury shares ............... - (16) (2,442) (2,458) - (58) (9,793) (9,851)
Share option vested ...........cccccoeevvieennn. - 3 295 297 - 4 349 354
Incentive scheme - 1 194 195 - 1 184 185
Balance at the end of the period ...... 1,510 (57) 9,953 11,406 1,510 (45) 11,907 13,372
Own shares / issued share capital ...... 3.84% 3.01%

In accordance with the Bank's dividend policy Arion Bank has in place a regular buyback program. On 5 September 2022 the FSA
authorized a buyback program which amounts up to a total of 57.3 million shares or up to ISK 10 billion. During the first quarter of 2023
Arion Bank bought back own shares for ISK 2,458 million. At the end of March 6.2 million shares are remaining of the authorized buyback
program, or approximately ISK 0.9 billion. The Program will end no later than 1 June 2023.

At the AGM in March 2022 a motion was passed to reduce the Bank’s share capital by ISK 150 million. The reduction was effective 4 April
2022.

Share options

Arion Bank has in place a share option plan for all employees of the Bank, Vérdur and Stefnir, approved at the Banks annual general
meeting, under which employees may be granted options to purchase ordinary shares. The annual maximum purchase price for each
employee is ISK 1.5 million, in line with Article 10 of the Income Tax Act no. 90/2003, at an exercise price determined by the Bank’s
average share price 10 days prior to issue date. The employee must remain continuously employed with Arion Bank until the expiring date.
The options carry neither rights to dividends nor voting rights and are valued using the Black-Scholes pricing model.

The following share option contracts are in existence at period end. Number Exercise
of shares Exercise price
(in ths.) year (ISK)
Issued in 2021 (ISK 600,000) - employees of Arion Bank ............cccocvviiiiiiiiiiieie e 8,086 2024-2026 95.50
Issued in 2023 (ISK 900,000) - employees of Arion Bank ............cccocuviiiiiiiiiiiicceeeeee e 8,254 2024-2026 153.75
Issued in 2023 (ISK 1,500,000) - employees of Arion Bank ............cccccveviiiiiioiiiieieeeeece e 5,912 2024-2026 153.75
Issued in 2022 (ISK 1,500,000) - employees of subSidiaries .............ccccevieriiiiniiiiieceesee e 2,317 2023-2026 170.90
24,569

Movements in share options during the period. 31.3.2023 31.12.2022
Weighted Weighted
Number average Number average
of shares contract  of shares contract
(in ths.) rate (in ths.) rate
Outstanding at the beginning of the year ... 30,882 143.2 19,728 95.5
Share optionNS Granted ............coooiiiiiiiiiii e 14,166 153.8 17,362 180.3
Share options fOrfEItE ...........cciiiiiiiii e (17,835) 168.2 (2,916) 95.5
Share options exercised, WAVG share price ISK 151.79 at exercise date (2022: 187.56) (2,644) 95.5 (3,292) 95.5
Outstanding share options at the end of the period ...........ccccccevviiiiiiiiniicciccee 24,569 136.2 30,882 143.2

No share options are exercisable at period end. Next exercise periods are in May 2023 and February and May 2024.

All outstanding share options, if exercised, represent approximately 1.6% of the total issued shares.

To meet the Bank's obligations on the basis of the share option plan, the Bank will issue new share capital or deliver treasury shares. Arion
Bank has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the options in cash.

The fair value of the employee stock options granted is measured by using the Black-Scholes model.

Warrants

The warrants reserve represents the consideration received for outstanding warrants. Arion Bank issued 54 million warrants on 9 March
2021. The purchase price of the warrants amounted to ISK 15.6 per warrant, resulting in a total sale price of ISK 842.4 million. The warrant
issuing represents approximately 3% of the Bank's total share capital and the Bank is obliged to issue new shares when the warrants are
exercised. Approximately 48.5% of the total issue was sold to around 150 employees of the Group and 51.5% to professional investors. The
exercise period runs from Q4 2023 to Q3 2024.
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Other information

36. Shareholders of Arion Bank 31.3.2023 31.12.2022
L1 To T 1) 15153 oo (1 OO OUPUPPRRPPRN 9.60% 9.77%
Lifeyrissjodur StarfSManN@ MTKISINS ..........uiiiiiiiiiii ittt e et et e ettt e e st e et s 9.36% 9.53%
LifeyriSSjOAUr VEIZIUNAIMEBNNA ... ..coiiiieiit ettt et ab ekt ee ettt e sa e e e sab et e et e e e nneeeenneeennneas 9.14% 9.14%
SHOOIT N, ettt b et b h bbb R bR bttt e et nre e 5.20% 5.20%
SEEFNIE TUNOS ...t e e sh e s e b sb e s b e s he e s e e s e e beesaee e 4.22% 4.05%
ALON DANKI NE. Lo e 3.84% 3.01%
BIU LITEYFISSJOBUE ...ttt sttt b b e e e e e e et e b e e s bt e sb et ea e e n e e ne e e se e e s sne e e e e e e eneens 3.71% 3.69%
RV 1 Lo [UE= T o RO UT P OT TR VRT PR 3.47% 2.27%
Birta [HEYTISSJOUUL ...ttt ettt et e e st e e e e et e e e e sb e e s ae e s e e e st e e s reeseesaeneenee e 3.47% 3.47%
FrAIST ITFEYIISSJOUUIINN ...ttt ettt h et e et e s e et e e s e e s bt e s e e s ane e e e sreesene s 3.11% 3.17%
SEAPT LIFEYIISSJOUU ...ttt e et e e b st e et e e b e e sr e e se e e s e e sneeseeesseesnne e 3.10% 3.02%
Hvalur hf. ......... . 2.44% 2.44%
TSIANASDANKT NIf. ...ttt ettt ettt s et b et n e eren e 2.07% 2.38%
FESEA IITEYFISSJOOUE ...ttt sttt et et b e e b e s ae e ea e e e b e e e re e see e e en e e n e et e e saeesaeesane e 1.93% 1.92%
AIMENNT TIFEYIISSJOOU ...ttt ettt b e s e e e e e e b e et e e st e e s ae e e e e e ae e e e e neesaeeseneeanis 1.47% 1.47%
Landshankinn Nf. ... e nr e 1.34% 1.21%
KVIKE DANKI N, Lttt ettt bbbt 1.25% 1.82%
[T o L] o] (] ) SR OO P PO PP O PR UPRRORTURTOTT 1.16% 1.43%
LIFSVErK PENSION TUNM ...ttt s s et e re e st e ene e e e e e e e e e eees 1.11% 1.08%
STOVA ENYGGINGAT ...ttt ettt e ettt e e s e e e e e et e e b e e e he e s e e e eae e e s b e e sE e e sh e e ss e e e s e e e e e et e e beeseeesseeenneenreenreeas 0.86% 1.00%
Other shareholders with less than 1% Shareholding ............ccooiiiiiii e 28.16% 28.96%

100.0% 100.0%

At the end of the period the Group's employees held a shareholding of 0.85% in Arion Bank (31.12.2022: 0.65%). The Board of Directors
and the members of the Bank's Executive Committee shareholding is as follows:

On 15 March 2023 the AGM approved to reduce the Bank’s share capital by ISK 50 million nominal value, amounting 50 million own shares,
by cancelling the Bank’s own shares. The reduction was carried out on 25 April 2023. The Bank’s share capital therefore reduces from ISK
1,510 million to ISK 1,460 million which is divided into an equal number of shares and each share is accompanied by one vote.

31.03.2023 31.12.2022

Warrants / Number Warrants / Number

options of shares  options of shares

Steinunn Kristin ThOrdardottir, DIFECION ........uevvveeeeeiieieeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeee e - 12,000 - 12,000
Alternate directors of the BOAI ..........ccceeieiiiiiiiiiiiiiie bbb eeeseeeeeeeereeeeeeeeees - 13,000 - 13,000
Benedikt Gislason, CEO 997,947 2,561,783 1,006,482 2,506,283
Eight members of the Executive Committee (2022: €ight) ..........cccevviriiniiiiiiciierieeees 4,038,815 971,648 4,945,258 787,751

Other members of the Board of Directors do not hold shares or warrants in Arion Bank.
Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim Amounts are in ISK millions
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37. Legal matters

The Group has formal controls and policies in place for managing legal claims. Once professional advice has been obtained and the
likelihood and amount of loss reasonably estimated, the Group makes adjustments, if appropriate, to account for any adverse effects the
claims may have on its financial standing. Should the Group conclude that it is to the detriment of the Group's case to disclose such
potential amounts, relating to the legal claims raised, it elects not to do so. At the end of the period, the Group had several unresolved legal
claims.

Contingent liabilities

Legal proceedings regarding damages

In a lawsuit brought in June 2013, Kortapjonustan hf. claimed damages from Arion Bank hf., islandsbanki hf., Landsbankinn hf., Borgun hf.
and Valitor hf. in the amount of ISK 1.2 billion plus interest. The lawsuit is a result of damage Kortapjonustan hf. contended the five parties
caused the company due to violations of the Competition Act. In June 2017 the Supreme Court dismissed the case on procedural grounds.
Since then, Kortapjonustan hf. and subsequently its largest shareholder EC-Clear have tried to initiate five lawsuits against the same
defendants which have all been dismissed, the last one in March 2021. In September 2021 EC-Clear has once again brought the same
matter of dispute, claiming damages in the amount of ISK 922 million plus interest, against the same defendants. In September 2022 the
District Court dismissed the claims. EC-Clear appealed the dismissal but with a ruling in January 2023 the Court of Appeal rejected the
District Court’s ruling and ruled that the case should be heard on its merits by the District Court. Should the defendants be found liable for
damages, they would be jointly responsible. Therefore, the Bank has not made any provision.

Consumer Association's class-action lawsuit

The Consumer Association of Iceland sent a letter to Arion Bank, islandsbanki and Landsbankinn in April 2020 urging the banks to review
its contractual terms on variable rate mortgages to individuals. The letter called for revised terms and compensation to borrowers who,
according to the Association, have suffered damage. The Association’s argument is that standard contractual terms lack proper legal
grounds, as parameters for interest rate decisions lack transparency and predictability, thus causing a contractual imbalance to the
detriment of the consumer.

Arion Bank undertook a review of its contractual terms and processes for interest rate decisions in light of the letter, concluding that no
changes were required and that the Association’s arguments are unfounded. A reasoned response was sent to the Consumer Association
in September 2020. According to information published on the Consumer Association’s website, all three banks have rejected the
Association’s arguments.

The Consumer Association in May 2021 published an article on its website calling for participants in a class action lawsuit. The intention is
to commence court proceedings against Icelandic credit institutions to provide court precedents for loans with variable rates. Arion Bank
has received information requests from a legal firm representing approximately 1,200 individuals. One case has been filed against the Bank
and with a judgement of the District Court of Reykjavik on the 7th of February 2023 the Bank was acquitted. The plaintiffs have requested a
right of appeal to the Court of Appeal. Considering the District Court’s judgement as well as an outside opinion commissioned by the Bank
on its legal position the Bank has not made any provision.

Administrative fine from Central Bank of Iceland

On 7 July 2020 the Financial Supervisory Authority of the Central Bank of Iceland (FSA) published its decision to impose an administrative
fine on Arion Bank of ISK 87.7 million due to the Bank’s alleged breach of an obligation to disclose insider information in a timely manner.
The decision was published on FSA’s website. Arion Bank paid the fine but filed a claim with the district court of Reykjavik in October 2020
demanding that FSA’s decision be annulled. With a judgment in April 2022 FSA was acquitted. The Bank has appealed the ruling and the
case will be heard in the Court of Appela in May 2023.

Other legal proceedings

Since 2008 Arion Bank has formally been a party to proceedings in Luxembourg, commenced against the Luxembourg company R Capital
S.ar.l. and its beneficial owner, Mr. Umberto Ronsisvalle, for the collection of EUR 6 million plus interest. During this time, Kaupthing ehf.
has been the beneficial owner of the claim, with Arion Bank’s involvement limited to being the formal party to the proceedings while enjoying
indemnity from Kaupthing. The reason for the setup is a decision by the Icelandic Financial Supervisory Authority in 2009 during the split of
Kaupthing to the “new” and “old” bank. In 2019, a counterclaim was made against Arion Bank in the proceedings, for the net sum of EUR 24
million plus interest, with the Bank continuing to enjoy full indemnity from Kaupthing. In September 2021, Kaupthing and Arion Bank agreed
that all rights and liabilities in the Luxembourg proceedings would be transferred to Arion Bank. The Bank is still held harmless for any
liabilities associated with the claims and has therefore not made any provision.

The estate of TravelCo Nordic has filed a case against TravelCo hf. and the Bank in Denmark claiming payment in solidum in the amount of
DKK 58.1 million plus interest. The merits and arguments against the Bank are vague. The bankruptcy estate alleges that the Bank, as
owner of Heimsferdir ehf. and Terra Nova S6l ehf., contrived the sale of the companies to its subsidiary, Sélbjarg ehf., without real payment.
The transaction the bankruptcy estate is referring to is in fact the legal and lawful enforcement of security (i.e. share pledges) by the Bank
over the shares in Heimsferdir hf. and Terra Nova Sél ehf. following a default on a facilities agreement to TravelCo hf. as borrower.
Following the enforcement, the Bank moved the companies to its holding company, Sélbjarg ehf., and the Bank remained the beneficial
owner of the companies. The Bank believes it likely that it will be acquitted of the estate’s claim and has therefore not made any provision.

38. Events after the reporting period

No event has arisen after the reporting period and up to the approval of these Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements that
require additional disclosures.
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39. Commitments
Financial guarantees, unused credit facilities and undrawn loan commitments 31.3.2023 31.12.2022
FINANCIAI QUAIANTEES ... .eiiiiiiiiiiiii ettt e et e e e e sttt e e e e s bbb et e e e e aa kbbb et e e e s aa bbb e e e e e e asbb e e e e e e ansbbneeeeesannbees 23,757 20,312
(8 TUEY=To Mo AV Z=T (o [ =\ 1 £ TN 59,962 57,259
UNArawn (08N COMMUIEMENTS ....uuuuiiiiiiiiiiie e et e ettt et e e e et e e e e e eeaaa e e e e e e eaasaa s eees e s s baa s eeessessaaneeeeesssasaanaaeeeeees 92,913 105,888
Financial guarantees, unused credit facilities and undrawn loan cOmMmMItMENtS ........cccceeviiiiniiiiiii e 176,632 183,459
40. Assets under management and under custody
PN = g To (=T g g PV Fo Vo T=T =Y o | PSPPSR 1,317,636 1,298,289
PN STY= ST Vo (=T ol U] (oo Y SRR 1,114,648 1,067,052

Assets under management represent the total market value of the financial assets which the Group manages on behalf of its customers.

The Group, acting as custodian, is responsible for safeguarding a firm's or individual's financial assets, hold in safekeeping securities such
as stocks, bonds and securities funds, arrange the settlement of trades and movements of securities, process corporate actions such as
income on bonds and dividends on shares; and pricing on securities.

Related party

41. Related party

Arion Bank defines related party as shareholders with significant influence over the Group, the key management personnel and the Group's
associated companies.

Shareholders with significant influence are shareholders that have the power to participate in the finanical and operating decisions of Arion

Bank but do not control those policies. At the end of the period no shareholder was defined as related party with an influence over the
Group (31.12.2022: none).

The key management personnel includes the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee of Arion Bank, as well as their close family
members and legal entities controlled by them. The Executive Committee consists of the CEO, Managing Directors of Retail banking, CIB,
Markets, Finance, Risk, IT, Customer experience and head of General councel. For compensation, pension and other transactions with the
Board of Directors and the Executive Committee, see Notes 11 and 36.

For information on the associated companies, see Note 25.
Transactions with related parties have been conducted on an arm's length basis. There have been no further guarantees provided or
received for related party receivables or payables.

Key management Associated
personnel companies

31.3.2023 31.12.2022 31.3.2023 31.12.2022

LOBIS oot e s 61 64 55 71
OLNEI BSSELS ....eeiiiiieieie ettt ettt e et et e et 2 2 - -
Total assets . 63 66 55 71
Deposits ..... .. (15,536) (1,1112) (133) (155)
Other ADIILIES .......eeeieeie e - - (29) 27)
TOLAl HIADIIEIES ©.v.cvoveeeieseeeeeeeeeee ettt eeneeen (15,536) (1,111) (162) (182)
Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim Amounts are in ISK millions
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Risk management disclosures

The Group faces various risks arising from its day to day operations. Managing risk is a core activity within the Group. The key to effective
risk management is a process of on-going identification of significant risk, quantification of risk exposures, actions to limit risk and constant
monitoring of risk. This process of risk management and the ability to evaluate, manage and correctly price the risk encountered is critical
to the Group's continuing profitability, and ensures that the exposure to risk remains within acceptable levels.

The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for the Bank's risk management framework and for ensuring that satisfactory risk policies
and governance for controlling the Group's risk exposure are in place. Each subsidiary is responsible for its own risk management
framework but adheres to the Bank's ownership policies which outline the Group's internal control policy, risk appetite and reporting
mechanisms. The Board sets the risk appetite for the Bank, and in some cases the Group, which is translated into exposure limits and
targets monitored by the Bank's Risk Management division.

The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is responsible for sustaining an effective risk management framework, processes and controls as well as
maintaining a high level of risk awareness among employees, making risk everyone's business.

The Bank operates several committees to manage risk. The Board Risk Committee (BRIC) is responsible for supervising the Bank's risk
management framework, risk appetite and the internal capital and liquidity adequacy assessment processes (ICAAP/ILAAP). The Board
Credit Committee (BCC) approves certain proposals for credit origination, debt cancellation, underwriting and investments, while the Board
of Directors is the supreme authority for cases which entail deviations from risk appetite or strategy. On the management level the CEO has
established six primary risk committees. The Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO) is responsible for managing asset-liability mismatches,
liquidity and funding risk, market risk, capital adequacy, and decides on underwriting and investment exposures. The Operational Risk
Committee (ORCO) is responsible for managing operational risk, which includes information security, financial crimes, regulatory
compliance and data management. The Arion Credit Committee (ACC) administers the Bank's credit rules and decides on the origination of
credit while the Arion Composition and Debt Cancellation Committee (ADC) is the principal authority for debt cancellation, debt restructuring
and composition agreements. ACC and ADC operate within limits set by the BCC. The Sustainability Committee ensures that the Bank's
strategy and decision-making are aligned with the Bank's commitments in relation to the environmental, social and governance (ESG)
agenda. The committee oversees the Bank's Green Financing Framework. Finally, the Executive Risk Committee (ERCO), chaired by the
CRO, oversees the implementation of risk policies, ensures that the Bank's limit framework adheres to the risk appetite, reviews the Bank's
ICAAP, ILAAP and stress testing, and approves economic scenarios, credit models and specific provisions under IFRS9. The Executive
Committee is concerned with business and strategic risk.

The Bank's Internal Audit conducts independent reviews of the Bank's and several subsidiaries' operations, risk management framework,
processes and measurements. Internal Audit discusses its results with management and reports its findings and recommendations to the
Board Audit Committee (BAC) and to the Board of Directors.

The Bank's Compliance function is headed by the Compliance Officer. It is independent and centralized and reports directly to the CEO.
The Compliance function manages the Bank's conduct and compliance risk, including risk relating to data protection and financial crime.

The Bank's Risk Management division is headed by the Chief Risk Officer. It is independent and centralized and reports directly to the
CEO. The division is divided into three units: Risk Analysis, which is responsible for the quantification of risk on a portfolio level, including
risk modeling and reporting; Risk Monitoring and Framework, which facilitates and monitors the management of risk and controls in the first
line; and Credit Analysis, which supports the Bank's credit transaction process and participates in credit decisions. The Bank's Chief
Security Officer and the Bank's Risk Officer for Pension Funds are part of the Risk Management division.

Arion Bank is a small bank in international context but classified as systemically important in Iceland. The Group operates in a small
economy which is subject to sectoral concentration, fluctuations in capital flows, and exchange rate volatility. The Group’s most significant
risks are credit risk, concentration risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, cyber risk, third party risk, business risk and sustainability risk. These
risk factors are to the largest extent encountered within the parent company. Through the Bank's subsidiaries, the Group bears risk arising
from insurance activities and fund management.

Further information on risk management and capital adequacy is provided in the Annual Financial Statements for 2022, in the Pillar 3 Risk
Disclosures for 2022 and in the quarterly Additional Pillar 3 Risk Disclosures. These documents are available on the Bank's website,
www.arionbank.com.
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42. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties fail to discharge their contractual obligations.

Credit risk arises anytime the Group commits its funds, resulting in capital or earnings being dependent on counterparty, issuer or borrower
performance. Loans to customers are the largest source of credit risk. Credit risk is also inherent in other types of assets, such as loans to
credit institutions, bonds, derivatives and off-balance sheet items such as commitments and guarantees.

Managing and analyzing the Group's loan portfolio is of utmost importance. Great emphasis is placed on the quality of the credit portfolio,
by maintaining a strict credit process, by critically inspecting loan applications, by actively monitoring the credit portfolio and by identifying
and reacting to possible problem loans at an early stage as well as by restructuring impaired credits.

The Group grants credit based on well-informed lending decisions and seeks to build business relationships with customers that have good
repayment capacity and are backed by strong collateral. The risk level of each credit is considered in the pricing.

Credit risk is managed and controlled by setting limits on the amount of risk the Group is willing to accept for individual counterparties and
group of connected clients, and by monitoring exposures in relation to such limits. The Group seeks to limit its total credit risk through
diversification of the loan portfolio across sectors and by limiting large exposures to groups of connected clients.

Exposure to credit risk

The following table shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the Statement of Financial Position before the effect
of mitigation due to collateral agreements or other credit enhancements. The table also shows related collateral and credit enhancements.
The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty and the exposure type. The
main types of collateral obtained are as follows:

- Real estate: Residential property, commercial real estate and land

- Cash and securities: Cash, treasury notes and bills, asset backed bonds, listed equity, and funds that consist of eligible securities
- Vessels: Ships with assigned fishing quota and other vessels

- Other collateral: Fixed and current assets including vehicles, equipment, inventory and trade receivables

The value of collateral is based on estimated market value. The valuation of real estate is based on market price, valuation model, or the
opinion of internal or external specialists. The valuation of fishing vessels takes into account related fishing quotas. The quality of collateral
is evaluated in the lending process with regards to specialization, location, age and condition and possibilities for reuse.

Collateral value is monitored and action is taken to remedy insufficient collateral coverage where the underlying agreement provides for
such remedies. Collateral value is reviewed to ensure the adequacy of the allowance for impairment losses. Collateral values shown are
capped by the related book value amount.
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42. Credit risk, continued

Maximum exposure to credit risk and collateral held against different types of financial instruments subject to the impairment requirements

of IFRS 9
Collateral
Maximum  Cash and Real Other Total
31.3.2023 exposure  securities estate Vessels collateral collateral
Cash and balances with Central Bank ............ccceoeeiiiiiiiiieeiennnnnns 80,272 - - - - -
Loans to credit institutions at amortized COSt .............ccuvveereeennnns 62,899 - - - - -
Loans to customers at amortized COSt .........cceuveeeeieiiiiiiiieneeeenens 1,114,128 32,147 818,165 53,254 122,120 1,025,686
INAIVIAUAIS ..o 588,989 453 537,495 17 18,928 556,893
519,914 4 519,606 - 36 519,646
69,075 449 17,889 17 18,892 37,247
COIPOFALES ....eiiieiiiitiiie ettt e e e 525,139 31,694 280,670 53,237 103,192 468,793
Real estate activities .. 104,394 2,611 96,036 8 1,067 99,722
Construction ........ 61,780 356 54,931 48 2,700 58,035
Fishing industry 89,016 916 14,098 50,970 17,161 83,145
Information and communication technology ... 27,680 65 4,991 - 13,820 18,876
Wholesale and retail trade ..................... . 93,757 832 50,820 4 33,925 85,581
Financial and insurance activities 42,773 25,695 6,219 - 9,906 41,820
Industry, energy and manufacturing 49,259 902 28,685 - 16,459 46,046
Transportation 14,097 61 1,074 975 3,110 5,220
Services 19,100 255 11,104 1,225 4,032 16,616
Public sector 11,554 1 2,123 7 213 2,344
Agriculture and forestry 11,729 - 10,589 - 799 11,388
Other assets with credit risk ...........ccoeeeeiiiiiiiiiie e, 15,257 - - - - -
Financial guarantees ............ccceveereerieiieeeeeee e 23,757 1,564 4,281 40 6,009 11,894
Undrawn loan commitments and unused overdrafts ................. 152,875 - - - - -
Fair value through OCI .........cooiiiiiiiieeeeeee e 123,357 - - - - -
Government bonds 104,302 - - - - -
Bonds issued by financial institutions and corporates ............ 19,055 - - - - -
Balance at the end of the period ........ccoooeeeiiiiiiiiiie 1,572,545 33,711 822,446 53,294 128,129 1,037,580
31.12.2022
Cash and balances with Central Bank ...........ccccceevieeiniieeninenne 114,118 - - - - -
Loans to credit institutions at amortized cost .. . 43,433 - - - - -
Loans to customers at amortized COSt ...........eevvveeeeeveveeeeeeeeennnes 1,084,757 26,285 796,745 51,717 104,911 979,658
INAIVIAUAIS .o 582,371 517 531,300 16 18,919 550,752
513,605 9 513,252 - 32 513,293
68,766 508 18,048 16 18,887 37,459
COIPOFALES ....viiieiiiitiiie ettt e e 502,386 25,768 265,445 51,701 85,992 428,906
Real estate aCtiVIties ..........cccceeiieiiiiie i 105,304 838 101,514 - 368 102,720
Construction 55,208 211 41,157 47 2,478 43,893
Fishing industry 91,427 1,123 14,278 49,501 13,023 77,925
Information and communication technology . 24,622 110 1,441 - 14,775 16,326
Wholesale and retail trade ..................... 85,005 24 50,831 - 26,584 77,439
Financial and insurance activities 41,378 22,938 6,377 - 7,390 36,705
Industry, energy and manufacturing 44,154 295 25,635 - 13,219 39,149
Transportation 14,058 87 1,127 1,043 3,195 5,452
Services 19,155 131 11,007 1,104 3,904 16,146
Public sector 10,576 11 2,101 6 172 2,290
Agriculture and forestry 11,499 - 9,977 - 884 10,861
Other assets with credit risK ...........ccoeeeiiiiiiiiiiiee e 8,667 - - - - -
Financial guUarantees ............occuvevveeiiiiiiiieeeeiiec e 20,312 2,378 3,872 37 3,288 9,575
Undrawn loan commitments and unused overdrafts ................. 163,147 - - - - -
Fair value through OCI ..........cociiiiiiiii e 115,806 - - - - -
GovernMENt BONAS .........coevvuiiieiiiiiiie e 96,908 - - - - -
Bonds issued by financial institutions and corporates ............ 18,898 - - - - -
Balance at the end of the year ..........ccccooviiiii s 1,550,240 28,663 800,617 51,754 108,199 989,233
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42. Credit risk, continued

LTV ratio for residential mortgage lending

The following table describes the loan to value (LTV) and impairment status of the Group's residential mortgage portfolio. LTV is calculated
as the ratio of the total exposure of individual borrowers to the value of the pledged real estate without adjusting for possible costs of
obtaining and selling the collateral. An exposure to a particular borrower appears in a single row in the table (whole-loan approach). The
residential real estate valuation model used gives an estimate of current value on a monthly basis. This model is used when the observed
market value becomes older than 2 years.

Thereof credit
impaired loans

31.3.2023 31.12.2022 31.3.2023 31.12.2022

LSS thaN 500 ...eveeeiiiiiiiiee e e ettt e e e ettt e e e ettt e e e e ettt e e e e et a e e e e e e araaae e e et braaaeesanraaaaaeas 175,556 172,790 2,015 1,817
LT 0TS0 SO PUR 91,567 91,201 718 511
B0-T000 .ttt e e e — e e e s e ——e e e e e ————eee e e a——taeee e tbaataeesannrraeaaeeaanns 96,315 90,224 643 826
TO-BOU0 ..ottt e ettt et e ettt e et e et ettt e e at e e e ntee e ab e e e naeeeatbeeearbeeeabaeeanteeeannen 82,351 86,856 434 408
BO-90Y0 ..eveeeieueriiieee e ittt e e e e e e e e e e e e ——e e e e et ——— e e e e e ————a e e e e ———teeeaaa——raeeeaantrareaeesanaaaaaaean 69,815 69,629 434 429
90-100% ............. 3,396 2,111 192 153
MOTE than 100D .....vvviiieeiiiiiie e e eeete e e e e ettt e e e e et e e e e e s st eeeeessaaseeaeeeessseaeeesssssbaaeaeesanns 1,421 1,171 355 118
NOT CIASSIFIEA ...t e st e e e e s b e e e e e e anbeeeeas - 25 - -
Gross carrying amount at the end of the period ..........cccccvviiiiiiiniccneeee 520,421 514,007 4,791 4,262

The following table gives an alternative representation of the loan to value profile of the mortgage portfolio. Here, each exposure is split into
pieces and each piece is placed into the appropriate LTV bucket. A single exposure can therefore be spread between several rows in the
table (loan-splitting approach).
Thereof credit
impaired loans

31.3.2023 31.12.2022 31.3.2023 31.12.2022

LSS TNAN 550 ...eeiuviieiiiie ittt eitie ettt e ettt e ettt et e et e st e e st e e e e et e e e e e s ba e e ataaearaaeans 451,994 445,185 4,051 3,643
B5-T0U0 ettt eete e et et e et e et e et e e e et —e e e et e e e et e e e aaeeeaaaeeattaeeabeeeabeeearaeeans 47,807 48,024 418 380
TO-BOU0 ...vvveeeeie ettt e et e ettt e e et e e et a bttt e na e e e n—e e e hbaeeeaaee ettt e e arbreennbaaeanteeeannen 15,543 16,045 146 132
B0-00U0 ..evvieeitie ettt et e et et e b e e et e e e e e e e et e e e et e e ea—ae e e —eeeatae e e s beeeabeeearaeeans 4,190 3,895 95 65
90-100% .... 566 516 35 20
More than 100% . 321 317 46 22
NoOt classified ........cccoevviiiiiiiiiiiiie e - 25 - -
Gross carrying amount at the end of the period ..........cccccovviiiiiiiiiiccicee 520,421 514,007 4,791 4,262

Collateral for financial assets in stage 3

At the end of the period, the gross carrying amount of assets in stage 3 was ISK 15,310 million (31.12.2022: ISK 12,903 million) with ISK
12,930 million in collateral (31.12.2022: ISK 10,627 million), thereof ISK 11,958 million in real estate (31.12.2022: 9,434 million).

Collateral repossessed

During the period, the Group took possession of no assets due to foreclosures (31.12.2022: nil) and nil in other assets (31.12.2022: nil).
Assets aquired due to foreclosure are held for sale, see Note 28.
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42. Credit risk, continued

Large exposures

A large exposure is defined as an exposure to a group of financially related borrowers which is equal to or exceeds 10% of the Group's Tier
1 capital according to the Financial Undertakings Act No. 161/2002. The legal maximum for individual large exposures is 25% of Tier 1
capital, net of eligible credit risk mitigation.

The Group had two large exposures at the end of the period (31.12.2022: two large exposures).

31.03.2023 31.12.2022
No. Gross Net Gross Net
L e 11.0% 11.0% <10% <10%
S ST TSSOSO P PP UP PP TRPRON 11.0% 11.0% 11.5% 11.5%
B e e et <10% <10% 10.3% 10.3%
Sum of large exposure gross and Net > 10%0 .........cccoveeviierieiieciiieiee e 22.0% 22.0% 21.8% 21.8%

Credit quality

The Group uses internal credit ratings and external credit ratings, if available, to monitor credit risk. The Group's internal credit rating
system rates customers through application of statistical models based on a variety of information that has been determined to be
predictive of default. This includes demographic, behavioral, financial and economic data, coupled with qualitative expert judgment for large
corporate exposures. Six exposure type models rate individuals' exposures — mortgages, consumer loans, auto loans, guarantees, loans to
individuals for work purposes and other loans. The models are validated annually and recalibrated and updated with current data with the
aim of maintaining their predictive power. Year-on-year changes in risk classification of loans may in part be due to model refinement.
External ratings are primarily used for marketable securities and loans to credit institutions. For further information on the rating scales
used, see Note 58 in the Annual Financial Statements 2022.

The following tables show financial instruments subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9 broken down by rating scale, where risk
class 5, DD, represents exposures in default. Assets carried at fair value through profit and loss are not subject to the impairment
requirements of IFRS 9. The tables below sum up the gross carrying amount of assets by rating class and impairment stage. The gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance is the book value of the underlying assets. For off-balance sheet exposures, the nominal amount is
shown. FVOCI stands for fair value through other comprehensive income.

Exposures that are 'Unrated' are typically due to newly formed entities, entities for which the Bank's rating models are not applicable or no
external rating is available.
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42. Credit risk, continued
Credit quality profile for financial instruments subject to IFRS 9 impairment requirements Financial
Cash and Loans to instru-
31.03.2023 balances credit ments at
Loans to credit institutions, securities and cash with CB  institutions Fvocl
L\ Z=ES (=T a1 e = Lo L= TP RP P POPPPPPPPTOPRE 80,272 62,899 123,363
NON-INVESTMENT GrAUE ....eeiutiiiiiiie ettt et e e et e e st e e et esab et e s bb e e e bb e e eneeeaneee s - - -
GrOSS CAITYiNG @IMOUNT «ooeiiiitiiiie ettt e e ettt e e e ettt e e s st bbbt e e e s e bbb e e e e e e e bbb et e e e e esbbb et e e e s anbbbeeeeeesnnnbneeeeeas 80,272 62,899 123,363
LOSS @IIOWANCE ....iiiiiiiee ettt ettt e e ettt e e e et bbbttt e o4 e kbbbt e e e e e ab b bt e e e e e e bbbt e e e e e e nbb b e e e e e e anbbeeeae s - - (6)
2 ToTo] QN VZ: LU= USSP 80,272 62,899 123,357
Loans to customers Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
Risk class 0 - (Grades AAA t0 A-) .oooiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiie et 409,280 108 - 1 409,389
Risk class 1 - (Grades BBB+ to BBB-) .. 321,040 849 - 71 321,960
Risk class 2 - (Grades BB+ t0 BB-) .......ccuuvviiiiiiiiiiieee ettt 203,397 30,196 - 112 233,705
Risk class 310 4 - (Grades B+ t0 CCC-) .....occvviiiiiiniiiiece e 103,298 37,455 - 3 140,756
RISK CIASS 5 = (DD) .eeieeiiiiiiiiieeeeiiiteee ettt e e e e e s enbaeeee s - - 14,961 347 15,308
[T = =T [ SRR UTPPRPRPIN 120 1 - - 121
Gross carrying amount .. 1,037,135 68,609 14,961 534 1,121,239
Loss allowance ................ (2,365) (1,379) (3,229) (138) (7,1112)
BOOK VAIUE ...ttt e e e e e e e et e e e e eaaaaaaeeas 1,034,770 67,230 11,732 396 1,114,128
Loans to customers - Individuals
Risk class 0 - (Grades AAAto A-) ... 303,396 108 - 1 303,505
Risk class 1 - (Grades BBB+ t0 BBB-) .......cccccoceeiierieiiinieeee e 213,814 604 - 71 214,489
Risk class 2 - (Grades BB+ t0 BB-) .......c..ueeieiiiiiiiieeiiiiiiiiee e 38,029 7,929 - 112 46,070
Risk class 310 4 - (Grades B+ t0 CCC-) .....ocoivviiiiiieiiieeniieenieeeeieee e 11,522 8,752 - 3 20,277
RISK CIASS 5 = (DD) .eeeeiiiiiiiieeeeiiiiiee ettt e et e e e ee e e - - 6,396 165 6,561
(0T = 1 (=T [PPSR 10 1 - - 11
GroSS Carrying amOUNT .....oocuvviiieee it eeiiiiee e e s ee e e e e e e s nineees 566,771 17,394 6,396 352 590,913
LOSS @lIOWANCE ...eoeeiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e (504) (324) (1,096) - (1,924)
BOOK VAIUE ...ttt e e st e e e e s enraees 566,267 17,070 5,300 352 588,989
Loans to customers - Corporates
Risk class 0 - (Grades AAA t0 A=) .ooooiuiiiiieeiiiiiiiie e 105,884 - - - 105,884
Risk class 1 - (Grades BBB+ t0 BBB-) .......cccccoceeiieiiiiiinieeee e 107,226 245 - - 107,471
Risk class 2 - (Grades BB+ t0 BB-) .......cccceeieeiiiiiiiie it 165,368 22,267 - - 187,635
Risk class 310 4 - (Grades B+ t0 CCC-) .....cccvviiiiiiiiinieiieeee e 91,776 28,703 - - 120,479
RISK ClaSS 5 = (DD) ...vvviiiiieiiiieeieee ettt - - 8,565 182 8,747
L ] (Yo N 110 - - - 110
GrosSs Carrying amMOUNT .......coiuiiiiiieeiiiee et 470,364 51,215 8,565 182 530,326
LOSS @lIOWANCE ...ttt (1,861) (1,055) (2,133) (138) (5,187)
BOOK VAIUE ...ttt e et e e e st bre e e e e enrnnes 468,503 50,160 6,432 44 525,139
Loan commitments, guarantees and unused credit facilities
Risk class 0 to 1 (Grades AAA t0 BBB-) .....ccceeeiiiiiiiiiciiic e 105,370 - - - 105,370
Risk class 2 to 4 (Grades BB+ t0 CCC-) ...ccovvviiiiiiiiiiiieie e 59,586 6,472 234 - 66,292
(83T 2= 1(=To [N 4,965 5 - - 4,970
NOMINGAL ..t s e e e e e e e e e e e e aanaaeeessannraes 169,921 6,477 234 - 176,632
LOSS @lIOWANCE ..o (272) (87) 5) - (364)
Nominal €SS 0SS AllOWANCE ......uuuiiiiiiiiiiiee e 169,649 6,390 229 - 176,268
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42. Credit risk, continued

Financial

Cash and Loans to instru-

31.12.2022 balances credit ments at

with CB institutions FVOCI

Loans to credit institutions, securities and cash

Investment grade ...... 114,118 43,433 133,838
Non-investment grade - - -
GrOSS CAITYiNG @IMOUNT o.ooiiiitiiiie ettt e e ettt e e e e ettt e e s st bbbt e e e s e bbb e e e e e e e sbbe e e e e e e asbba et eeesanbbbe et e e e snnsbneeeeeas 114,118 43,433 133,838
LOSS @IIOWAINCE ...ttt ettt e e e ettt e e 4okt e e e s e bbbt e e e e e et e e e e e et e e e e e e et b e e e s - - (13)
[2ToTo] QA VZ: LU RSP ER RS PPPRPR 114,118 43,433 133,825
Loans to customers Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
Risk class 0 - (Grades AAA 10 A-) ..ot 394,307 1,681 - - 395,988
Risk class 1 - (Grades BBB+ t0 BBB-) .......cccceiiiiiiieiiiiiiiiiee e 316,636 3,157 - 115 319,908
Risk class 2 - (Grades BB+ 10 BB-) ........ccceeeiuiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 196,778 35,275 - 53 232,106
Risk class 310 4 - (Grades B+ 10 CCC-) ....uuuiiieiiiiiiiiieeeiiiiieeeeeeiiiieee e e 85,101 44,415 - 14 129,530
Risk class 5 - (DD) . - - 12,561 341 12,902
{8131 2= 1(=To PPN 1,239 - - - 1,239
GroSS Carrying amOUNT ......ccuiiuieiieiie et 994,061 84,528 12,561 523 1,091,673
LOSS @lIOWANCE ...t (2,334) (1,519) (2,932) (131) (6,916)
BOOK VAIUE .ttt e e 991,727 83,009 9,629 392 1,084,757
Loans to customers - Individuals
Risk class 0 - (Grades AAA 10 A=) c.eveieiiieeiiiee e 293,411 1,552 - - 294,963
Risk class 1 - (Grades BBB+ to BBB-) .. 203,585 2,749 - 115 206,449
Risk class 2 - (Grades BB+ to BB-) ........ 41,795 13,064 - 53 54,912
Risk class 3 to 4 - (Grades B+ to CCC-) . 11,301 10,325 - 14 21,640
RISK ClaSS 5 = (DD) ...veveiiieeeiiie e eieee ettt - - 5,861 161 6,022
(0101 2= =T [P PR PPPPTN 160 - - - 160
GroSS Carrying amOUNT .......coiiuiiiieieeiee e 550,252 27,690 5,861 343 584,146
LOSS AlIOWANCE ......ccviiiiiiiieeieeee e (445) (287) (1,043) - (1,775)
BOOK VAIUE ..ttt e 549,807 27,403 4,818 343 582,371
Loans to customers - Corporates
Risk class 0 - (Grades AAA 0 A-) ....oooiiiiiiiieiii e 100,896 129 - - 101,025
Risk class 1 - (Grades BBB+ to BBB-) 113,051 408 - - 113,459
Risk class 2 - (Grades BB+ 10 BB-) ........ccceiiieiiieiiciiciieeee s 154,983 22,211 - - 177,194
Risk class 310 4 - (Grades B+ 10 CCC-) ....uuvvviiiiiiiiiieeiiiiiieeeeesiiiieeeeens 73,800 34,090 - - 107,890
RISK ClaSS 5 = (DD) ...veveiuiiieiiieeeiiee ettt - - 6,700 180 6,880
(13T 2= 1(=To [T 1,079 - - - 1,079
GroSS Carrying @amOUNT ......ccuvveiieeeiiieiee e e 443,809 56,838 6,700 180 507,527
LOSS @lIOWANCE ......oeieiiieiiiee e (1,889) (1,232) (1,889) (131) (5,141)
BOOK VAIUE ...ttt et et s 441,920 55,606 4,811 49 502,386
Loan commitments, guarantees and unused credit facilities
Risk class 0 to 1 - (Grades AAA 0 BBB-) ......coccviiiiiiiiiiiiieeec e 109,205 23 - - 109,228
Risk class 2 t0 4 - (Grades BB+ 10 CCC-) ...cccvviiiiiiiiiiiiieiiee e 60,752 9,110 271 - 70,133
[ ] Yo 4,094 4 - - 4,098
[N (0T 011 - LU U PPU S UPUPPPPPNE 174,051 9,137 271 - 183,459
LOSS @lIOWANCE ...ttt (351) (93) 5) - (449)
Nominal less 0SS alloWanCe .........coooeeiiiiiiiiii e 173,700 9,044 266 - 183,010
Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim Amounts are in ISK millions
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42. Credit risk, continued
Sector split, gross carrying value and loss allowance for financial instruments subject to IFRS 9 impairment requirements
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Gross Gross Gross
Carrying Loss Carrying Loss Carrying Loss Book
31.03.2023 amount  allowance amount allowance amount  allowance value
Loans to credit instit., securities & cash .................. 266,534 (6) - - - - 266,528
Loans to individuals ............ccccoevveiniiiniiienee e 566,771 (504) 17,579 (324) 6,563 (1,096) 588,989
Mortgages ... ... 502,252 (175) 13,378 (126) 4,791 (206) 519,914
Other .o 64,519 (329) 4,201 (198) 1,772 (890) 69,075
Loans t0 COrPOrates .........cccevveeivriirieiieeniiiiieeeeeenens 470,364 (1,861) 51,215 (1,055) 8,747 (2,271) 525,139
Real estate activities ...........ccceevveeiiiiciiiic e 95,546 (286) 6,845 (81) 2,759 (389) 104,394
CONSIIUCLION ..o 54,055 (281) 7,650 (41) 414 a7 61,780
Fishing iNAUSEY ........oooiiiiiiiiiieceeeee 80,614 (146) 8,499 (74) 219 (96) 89,016
Information and communication technology ........ 25,319 (148) 2,508 (53) 108 (54) 27,680
Wholesale and retail trade ...........ccccceeeeviiieeeennn. 78,715 (405) 13,993 (571) 3,037 (1,012) 93,757
Financial and insurance activities ....................... 35,864 (201) 7,149 (113) 78 4) 42,773
Industry, energy and manufacturing .................... 48,130 (108) 988 (13) 268 (6) 49,259
Transportation ...........c.cccecevoieiicnieenie e 13,818 (83) 313 (5) 76 (22) 14,097
SEIVICES ...ttt 16,262 (132) 2,065 (87) 1,621 (629) 19,100
PUDbIiC SECLON ..ot 11,360 (45) 236 ?3) 7 1) 11,554
Agriculture and forestry ........ccocvveeeeiiiiiieeennniinns 10,681 (26) 969 (14) 160 (41) 11,729
Balance at the end of the period ..........cccceveeene 1,303,669 (2,371) 68,794 (1,379) 15,310 (3,367) 1,380,656
31.12.2022
Loans to credit instit., securities & cash .................. 273,362 (6) - - - - 273,356
Loans to individuals ...........cccceeeviiniiiiniiieneceen 550,252 (445) 27,872 (287) 6,022 (1,043) 582,371
MOTGAGES ...eeenieeeeiiiieeiie ettt 486,371 (116) 23,373 (125) 4,262 (160) 513,605
Other .o 63,881 (329) 4,499 (162) 1,760 (883) 68,766
Loans to corporates ..... ... 443,809 (1,889) 56,838 (1,232) 6,880 (2,020) 502,386
Real estate activities 94,680 (213) 8,668 (87) 2,609 (353) 105,304
CONSIIUCLION ..t 51,280 (401) 4,161 (74) 252 (10) 55,208
Fishing iNAUSEIY .....c.oooviiiiiiiiiii e 81,810 (193) 9,633 (137) 368 (54) 91,427
Information and communication technology ........ 21,372 (81) 3,410 (99) 49 (29) 24,622
Wholesale and retail trade ........... 68,357 (321) 16,508 (499) 1,904 (944) 85,005
Financial and insurance activities 33,478 (247) 8,244 (171) 79 (5) 41,378
Industry, energy and manufacturing .................... 41,992 (128) 2,286 (32) 42 (6) 44,154
Transportation ...........c.ccceceveeeiieenieenie e 13,877 (73) 205 (6) 61 (6) 14,058
SEIVICES ...ttt 16,183 (136) 2,421 (110) 1,385 (588) 19,155
Public Sector ............... 10,323 (42) 299 4) - - 10,576
Agriculture and forestry ..........ccoocveevvireeniienninens 10,457 (54) 1,003 (13) 131 (25) 11,499
Balance at the end of the year ............ccccovnnnnn. 1,267,423 (2,340) 84,710 (1,519) 12,902 (3,063) 1,358,113
Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim Amounts are in ISK millions
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42. Credit risk, continued

The table below reconciles the opening and closing allowance balance for loans to customers and debt securities at amortized cost and
FVOCI and loan commitments, guarantees and unused credit facilities by impairment stages. The reconciliation includes:

Transfers of financial assets between impairment stages

All transfers are presumed to occur before any corresponding remeasurement of the loss allowance.

Net remeasurement of loss allowance

Comprise the impact of changes in model inputs or assumptions, including changes in forward-looking macroeconomic conditions, partial
repayments and additional draws on existing facilities, inflation, changes in the measurement following a transfer between stages, effects of
foreign exchange rate changes, impairment of interest income due to impaired debt instruments and unwinding of the time value discount
due to the passage of time.

New financial assets, originated or purchased

Include purchases and originations and reflect the allowance related to assets newly recognized during the period.

Derecognitions and maturities

Reflect the allowance related to assets derecognized during the period without a credit loss being incurred, including those assets that were
derecognized following a modification of terms.

Write-offs

The amount after net remeasurements of loss allowance written off during the period.

31.03.2023
Impairment loss allowance * Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
Balance at the beginning of the year ..........ccccocciiiiiiiie e, (2,678) (1,612) (2,937) (131) (7,358)
Transfers of financial assets:
Transfers to Stage 1 (12-month ECL) ....ccvvvveiiiiiiiiiieeiiiieeeeeeeiieeee e (588) 442 146 - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (lifetime ECL) .......ccccoeiiiiiiiieirieseeeeeeeeeeeee 60 (70) 10 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 (credit impaired financial assets) .. 20 84 (104) - -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance ** ............cccoccevieviinienic e 823 (326) (455) 7) 35
New financial assets, originated or purchased ............ccccccooviiiiiieieiiiiieeennnn. (499) (52) (42) - (593)
Derecognitions and MAatUrIties ...........cccociiiieiieiiiie e 225 65 89 - 379
WIHEE-OFFS *¥% e - 3 59 - 62
Impairment 10Ss allowance **** ... (2,637) (1,466) (3,234) (138) (7,475)
Impairment loss allowances for assets only carrying 12-month ECL ............ (6) - - - (6)
Total impairment [0SS AllOWANCE ......ccovviiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e (2,643) (1,466) (3,234) (138) (7,481)

* These amounts are a combination of all impairments, including an allowance for loan commitments and guarantees presented as a liability in these Consolidated
Financial Statements.

** During the period the loss allowance balance for stage 3 loans was raised by ISK 122 million due to unwinding of interest income.
*** During the period an amount of ISK 59 million was written off but is still subject to enforcement activities subject to Icelandic law.

**** |oss allowance for all assets other than cash, bonds and loans to credit institutions.

Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim Amounts are in ISK millions
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42. Credit risk, continued
Impairment loss allowance for loans to customers Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
Balance at the beginning of the year ..........cccoccovciiiiiiiiieeecees (2,327) (1,519) (2,932) (131) (6,909)
Transfers of financial assets:
Transfers to Stage 1 (12-month ECL) ...c..eevveiiiiiiiiiieiiiiieece s (558) 412 146 - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (lifetime ECL) ......ccoooveiiiiiiiiiieniieeeeeeeeee 57 (67) 10 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 (credit impaired financial assets) .................... 20 83 (103) - -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance ....... 708 (303) (456) (@) (58)
New financial assets, originated or purchased ..............ccccovvivieeiiiiinnnns (427) (36) (42) - (505)
Derecognitions and Maturities ...........c.ccceiiieeiiiie e 162 48 89 - 299
WIIEE-OFFS L. - 3 59 - 62
Total loss allowance for loans to customers ..........cccccocceeceercieieenne. (2,365) (1,379) (3,229) (138) (7,111)
Impairment loss allowance for loans to customers - Individuals
Balance at the beginning of the year ............ccocviiiiiiiiiee s (446) (287) (1,043) - (1,776)
Transfers of financial assets
Transfers to Stage 1 (12-month ECL) ....cccccvveevviiiiieieeiiiiieeennn (158) 107 51 - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (lifetime ECL) .......ccccceveiviiiiiiiciieeees 23 (33) 10 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 (credit impaired financial assets) .... 6 35 (41) - -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance ............c.cccoovveiiineicceieeene 89 (152) (156) - (219)
New financial assets, originated or purchased ............cccccoocvviieennnne (49) (13) (12) - (74)
Derecognitions and Maturities ............cccoceviiiieieenieseeee e 31 17 45 - 93
WIEE-OFFS et - 2 50 - 52
Total loss allowance for loans to individuals .. (504) (324) (1,096) - (1,924)
Impairment loss allowance for loans to customers - Corporates
Balance at the beginning of the year ...........cccocvviiiiiiiiiee s (1,881) (1,232) (1,889) (131) (5,133)
Transfers of financial assets
Transfers to Stage 1 (12-month ECL) ....cccccvveevviiiviineeiiiiiieeenn, (400) 305 95 - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (lifetime ECL) ......cccccceveiviiiiiiiiecieeees 34 (34) - - -
Transfers to Stage 3 (credit impaired financial assets) .............. 14 48 (62) - -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance ............. 619 (151) (300) 7) 161
New financial assets, originated or purchased (378) (23) (30) - (431)
Derecognitions and Maturities ............cccocevriiieiieniesee e 131 31 44 - 206
WIEE-OFFS it - 1 9 - 10
Total loss allowance for loans to corporates ............ccccoeeevennen. (1,861) (1,055) (2,133) (138) (5,187)
Impairment loss allowance for loan commitments, guarantees and unused credit facilities
Balance at the beginning of the year .........ccccoccciiiiiiiiieeee e (351) (93) (5) - (449)
Transfers
Transfers to 12-month ECL ........cooiiiiiiiiiiiicieeeceeeeeeee e (30) 30 - - -
Transfers to lifetime ECL ..o 3 3) - - -
Transfers to credit IMPaired ...........cocveiiiieiiiie e - 1 1) - -
Net remeasurement of 10SS allowance ............ccccoocvviiiiiiniiieniieeeeee 115 (23) 1 - 93
New financial commitments originated ... (72) (16) - - (88)
Derecognitions and maturities .............ccccooveiiiienie e 63 17 - - 80
Total loss allowance for loan commit., guarantees, unused facilities (272) 87) 5) - (364)
Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim Amounts are in ISK millions

Financial Statements 31 March 2023 50



“ar
| N s
Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
42. Credit risk, continued
31.12.2022
Impairment loss allowance * Stage 1 Stage2  Stage 3 POCI Total
Balance at the beginning of the year ..........ccccocoviiiiiiiii e, (1,606) (1,897) (4,824) 1) (13,044)
Transfers of financial assets:
Transfers to Stage 1 (12-month ECL) ....ccvvvveiiiiiiiiiieeiiiiieeeeeeiiieeee e (1,213) 929 284 - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (lifetime ECL) .........ccccevvvnenne 310 (891) 581 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 (credit impaired financial assets) ............cccceeeennne 42 169 (211) - -
Net remeasurement of 10Ss allowance ** ............cccocveeiiiieniieenie e 1,178 (121) (1,065) 1 2,048
New financial assets, originated or purchased ............cccccccoviiiiiieeeiiiiieeeennn, (2,192) (265) (1,048) (131) (2,670)
Derecognitions and MatUrities ...........cccociiiiiiieiiiie e 795 457 2,120 (166) 2,570
WWIIEE-OFFS ™% Lottt 1 7 1,226 166 2,768
Impairment [0Ss allowance *** ... (2,685) (1,612) (2,937) (131) (8,328)
Impairment loss allowances for assets only carrying 12-month ECL ............ (6) - - - (13)
Total impairment 10SS AllOWANCE ......ccooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e (2,691) (1,612) (2,937) (131) (8,341)

* These amounts are a combination of all impairments, including an allowance for loan commitments and guarantees presented as a liability in these Condensed
Consolidated Interim Financial Statements.

** During the period the loss allowance balance for stage 3 loans was raised by ISK 468 million due to unwinding of interest income.
*** During the period an amount of ISK 2,059 million was written off but is still subject to enforcement activities subject to Icelandic law.

**** | oss allowance for all assets other than cash, bonds and loans to credit institutions.

Impairment loss allowance for loans to customers Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
Balance at the beginning of the year .........ccccocciiiiiiiiiieeeicees (1,313) (1,806) (4,480) 1) (7,600)
Transfers of financial assets:
Transfers to Stage 1 (12-month ECL) ....cccvveeviiiiiiiieiiiiiieee e (1,044) 760 284 - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (lifetime ECL) .......ccccoeviviviiiii i 289 (870) 581 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 (credit impaired financial assets) ..............c..... 41 168 (209) - -
Net remeasurement of |0SS @lloOWanCe .............ccceveeriinieee e 921 41 (777) 1 186
New financial assets, originated or purchased . (1,683) (196) (1,048) (131) (3,058)
Derecognitions and MatUrities ...........cccooueiiiiienienee e 454 377 1,491 (166) 2,156
WIIEE-OFFS .o 1 7 1,226 166 1,400
Total loss allowance for loans to customers ..........ccccceeceieeiiieieenne. (2,334) (1,519) (2,932) (131) (6,916)
Impairment loss allowance for loans to customers - Individuals
Balance at the beginning of the year ..........ccccocviiiiiiiiiiee s (492) (246) (1,151) 1) (1,890)
Transfers of financial assets
Transfers to Stage 1 (12-month ECL) ....ccccvveevviiiiieieeiiiiiieeeennn (525) 326 199 - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (lifetime ECL) ......cccccoevviiniiiiiiieiieeeees 92 (148) 56 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 (credit impaired financial assets) .............. 18 138 (156) - -
Net remeasurement of 10Ss allowance ..............ccoccceviiiiniiieieeeens 581 (378) (474) 1 (270)
New financial assets, originated or purchased ...........c.cccccoevveninnenne (241) (74) (75) - (390)
Derecognitions and maturities 121 86 272 - 479
WIEE-0FFS ittt 1 7 286 - 294
Total loss allowance for loans to individuals .............ccccocoeeenee. (445) (289) (1,043) - a,777)
Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim Amounts are in ISK millions
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42. Credit risk, continued
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
Impairment loss allowance for loans to customers - Corporates
Balance at the beginning of the year .........cccccccoiiiiins (821) (1,560) (3,329) - (5,710)
Transfers of financial assets

Transfers to Stage 1 (12-month ECL) .....cccoovvveiiiiieiiieeiieees (520) 434 85 - 1)
Transfers to Stage 2 (lifetime ECL) ........ccccvveeviiiiiieieeiiiiiieeeen 197 (722) 525 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 (credit impaired financial assets) .............. 23 29 (53) - 1)
Net remeasurement of 0SS allowance ...........c.ccvveiieiiiiiiieeeeniiiees 340 419 (303) - 456
New financial assets, originated or purchased ...........c.cccccoovvenineenne (1,441) (123) (973) (131) (2,668)
Derecognitions and MAatUrIties ..........ccueveveriiiiiieiees e 333 291 1,219 (166) 1,677
WIIE-0FFS ..ttt - - 940 166 1,106
Total loss allowance for loans to corporates ........cccccovvvvvveeennnnns (1,889) (1,232) (1,889) (131) (5,141)

Impairment loss allowance for loan commitments, guarantees and unused credit facilities
Balance at the beginning of the year ............c.coccooiiiiii (293) (91) (344) - (728)

Transfers

Transfers to 12-month ECL (169) 169 - - -
Transfers to lifetime ECL .......c.evviviiiiiiiiiie e 21 (21) - - -
Transfers to credit Impaired ...........ccccoocviiieiieneneee e 1 1 ) - -
Net remeasurement of 0SS alloWaNCe ..........ccccovcvviiiieiiiiiiieee e 257 (162) (288) - (193)
New financial commitments originated .............cccceeieiieiiiiiiniieneee (509) (69) - - (578)
Derecognitions and maturities 341 80 629 - 1,050
Total loss allowance for loan commit., guarantees, unused facilities (351) (93) 5) - (449)

Macroeconomic forecast

The calculation of expected credit losses under IFRS 9 uses forward-looking information in the form of scenarios where the development of
macro-economic variables is predicted. The expected credit loss is a probability-weighted average of the estimated forecasts over three
scenarios: base case 60%, pessimistic 30% and optimistic 10% (31.12.2022: base case 65%, pessimistic 25% and optimistic 10%). The
macroeconomic forecast and scenario probability weights is done by the Bank’s Chief Economist and approved by the Bank’s Executive
Risk Committee. The following table shows values used for IFRS 9 impairment calculations.

Base case
2023 2024 2025
UNEMPIOYMENT FALE ..iiiiiiiiie ettt ettt ettt e e e s bbbt e e e e et e e e e e e s bbb e e e e e e anbbb e e e e e e anbbbeeeeeannnneeeas 3.9% 4.0% 4.1%
HOUSING PFICES ..ttt ettt b e st e st bt et e s b e et e e e e se e e s sa e e e e e neesneesree e 2.6% 1.3% 2.9%
e AV (=l oo ] a1 U] 4] o] 110 ] IO PP PPRTPP 2.5% 2.5% 2.7%
(] 3] = OO TR O PP RRURTPUTOUOPRONY 2.6% 2.7% 2.4%
Optimistic Pessimistic
2023 2024 2025 2023 2024 2025
UNemployment Fate ..........ccovvieeriieiiiie e 2.9% 3.2% 3.4% 6.7% 5.6% 4.5%
HOUSING PrICES ..ot 7.0% 4.4% 3.1% -0.9% -2.7% 4.3%
Private CONSUMPLION ........ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 4.6% 3.7% 3.0% -0.8% 2.9% 3.0%
GDP 3.8% 3.1% 2.6% -0.4% 2.9% 2.6%

Sensitivity analysis

Regarding macroeconomic outlook, see Note 3, Significant accounting estimates and judgements. The Group calculates loss for three
different scenarios, optimistic, neutral and pessimistic and the loss allowance is the weighted average of the results. As a sensitivity
analysis, it can be noted that the loss allowance in stage 1 and 2 for each of these scenarios separately is ISK 1.3 billion, ISK 2.7 billion and
ISK 7.9 billion for the optimistic, base case and pessimistic scenarios, respectively. At year end 2022 the corresponding calculated loss
allowance was ISK 1.8 billion, ISK 3.1 billion and ISK 8.4 billion, respectively.

Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim Amounts are in ISK millions
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42. Credit risk, continued

Forbearance

The Group grants forbearance measures to facilities where the customer is facing temporary difficulties and needs measures which would
not generally be available to customers. These forbearance measures include refinancing and renegotiations of loan terms, including loan
extensions and adjustment of the payment schedule. After forbearance measures have been granted, the facility is classified as forborne
for a period of at least 24 months. The forborne classification is not removed until the customer has demonstrated repayment capacity.

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross Gross Gross Gross

carrying Loss carrying Loss carrying Loss carrying Loss

31.03.2023 amount  allowance carrying  allowance amount  allowance carrying allowance

Individuals ........ccccoovvieiiiieieeeeee, 4,636 8) 2,534 (31) 2,621 (313) 9,791 (352)

Companies . 3,983 (38) 11,448 (568) 3,926 (1,303) 19,357 (1,909)

TOUMSM e 2,011 (26) 9,836 (552) 2,544 (1,056) 14,391 (1,634)

Other than tourism ..........c.ccceevvveenns 1,972 (12) 1,612 (16) 1,382 (247) 4,966 (275)

TOtal e 8,619 (46) 13,982 (599) 6,547 (1,616) 29,148 (2,261)
31.12.2022

INAIVIdUAIS ..o - - 7,948 (42) 2,254 (257) 10,202 (299)

COMPANIES v - - 16,815 (606) 3,529 (1,259) 20,344 (1,865)

TOUMSM e - - 13,100 (563) 2,511 (1,065) 15,611 (1,628)

Other than tourism ... - - 3,715 (43) 1,018 (194) 4,733 (237)

TOtal e - - 24,763 (648) 5,783 (1,516) 30,546 (2,164)
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43. Market risk

Market risk is the current or prospective risk that changes in financial market prices and rates adversely affect the Group's earnings and
equity position due to changes to the value and cash flows of its assets and liabilities.

Market risk arises from imbalances in the Group's balance sheet as well as in market making activities and position taking in bonds,
equities, currencies, derivatives and other commitments which are marked to market.

The Group keeps close track of market risk and separates its exposures for the trading book and the banking book. Market risk in the
trading book arises from market making activities and non-strategic derivatives positions arising from the Group's operations of meeting
customers' investment and risk management needs. Market risk in the banking book arises from various mismatches in assets and
liabilities in e.g. currencies, maturities and interest rates. Market risk in the trading book and in the banking book is managed separately.

Market risk allowance is set by the Board in the Bank's risk appetite and limit frameworks are in place for each trading desk. The Asset and
Liability Committee (ALCO) is responsible for managing the Bank's overall market risk. Risk Management is responsible for measuring and
monitoring market risk exposure, and reporting the exposure, usage and limit breaches.

The Group manages and limits market risk exposure in accordance with its risk appetite and strategic goals for net profit.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in market rates adversely affect net interest income and fair value of interest-
bearing instruments on the Group's balance sheet. The Group's operations are subject to interest rate risk due to mismatches in the fixing
of interest rates between assets and liabilities, resulting in a repricing risk for the Group. The Group also faces interest basis risk between
interest-bearing assets and interest-bearing liabilities due to different types of floating-rate indices in different currencies.

The Group's interest rate risk for foreign currencies is limited as foreign denominated assets predominantly have short fixing periods and
the Group generally applies fair value hedging for its foreign denominated fixed rate borrowings. For domestic rates, longer fixing periods
are more common.

At the beginning of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Icelandic Central Bank lowered interest rates to historic lows which resulted in sharp
increase in demand for non-indexed mortgages with floating rates in 2020 and first half of 2021. Inflation in Iceland, currently at 9.6%, has
exceeded the Central Bank’s target of 2.5% since June 2020 and is expected to remain over the target throughout 2023. The Central Bank
has responded by increasing interest rates by 675bps from its lowest value of 75bps at the start of 2021. From the second half of 2021 to
the start of 2022, this resulted in a sharp increase in demand for non-indexed fixed rate mortgages with corresponding increase in interest
rate risk. The risk exposure has been receding over the course of 2022 and beginning of 2023 as the duration of these loans shortens.

Interest rate risk

The following table shows the Group's interest-bearing assets and liabilities by interest fixing periods. The figures for loans to customers
and borrowings are shown on a fair value basis, see Note 23, and are therefore different from the amounts shown in these Condensed
Consolidated Interim Financial Statements. Defaulted loans are presented at book value, which is based on the value of the underlying
collateral, and are therefore assumed to be independent of interest adjustment periods and placed in the 'Up to 3 months' category.

31.03.2023 Upto3 3-12 1-5 5-10 Over 10
Assets months months years years years Total
Balances with Central Bank .........cccccoovvvviiiieiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeviiins 80,272 - - - - 80,272
Loans to credit INSIULIONS ..........eciieeiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeee s 62,899 - - - - 62,899
LOANS 10 CUSIOMENS ..cvvviiiiiiiieeeiie et aa e eaans 739,123 105,833 241,918 2,402 - 1,089,276
Bonds and debt instruments ...............cceeeeeee. . 58,573 58,298 17,922 9,862 3,592 148,247
Bonds and debt instruments used for hedging ...........ccccuvveeennne - 950 1,756 1,534 4,240
DEMVALIVES .ooviiiiiiiiiiieeee e 149,194 11,140 226,558 - - 386,892
ASSEES .ottt a e e e anae 1,090,061 175,271 487,348 14,020 5,126 1,771,826
Liabilities
Due to credit institutions and Central Bank .. 24,188 - - - - 24,188
DEPOSIES ettt 772,329 2,609 85 - - 775,023
DEMVALIVES ..vvviieeiiciiiiie e et e ettt e e e e e e e e et e e e e e eaanaaee e 246,590 125,816 13,133 - - 385,539
BOITOWINGS ..eiiieiiiiiiiee ettt e e e e e ibbeee e e en 25,698 - 308,303 35,861 11,593 381,455
Subordinated liabilities ............ceeeviiiiiiieciiee e - 6,555 27,087 12,446 - 46,088
Liabilities 1,068,805 134,980 348,608 48,307 11,593 1,612,293
NEt INTEreSt GAP .vviiiriiiiiiieiii e 21,256 40,291 138,740 (34,287) (6,467) 159,533
Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim Amounts are in ISK millions
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43. Market risk, continued
31.12.2022 Upto3 3-12 1-5 5-10 Over 10
Assets months months years years years Total
Balances with Central Bank .........c.oooovvvveiieeiiiiiiiiieee s 114,118 - - - - 114,118
Loans to credit INStIULIONS ..........uoveeiiiiiiiieeee s 45,501 - - - - 45,501
LOANS t0 CUSIOMEIS ...vvviiiiiieieeeiee et e e e eaans 679,615 100,734 234,246 3,076 - 1,017,671
Bonds and debt inStruments ........coooovvvviiiiiieiieeees 79,754 43,433 7,181 5,682 2,124 138,174
Bonds and debt instruments used for hedging ...........cccceecueeennne - 23 1,890 664 1,313 3,890
DEMVALIVES ...vvveiiiieeiieeeiiiee e et e re e nrae e e snaee e nneeeenes 127,576 71,983 231,337 - - 430,896
ASSELES ..ttt 1,046,564 216,173 474,654 9,422 3,437 1,750,250
Liabilities
Due to credit institutions and Central Bank ...........c.ccocoovvvvvvnnnnns 11,697 - - - - 11,697
DIBPOSIES ..vveeeeeieeeeeeenieeteesteesteeanteeteesteesseesneeaneeeneeenseenneenreeneeeas 753,439 1,922 - - - 755,361
DEMVALIVES ....vvieiiiie ittt ettt nnae e e enaeeenes 123,579 292,009 13,445 - - 429,033
BOMOWINGS ...vieiiieiieeiiesiee ettt e e eas 35,373 3,411 298,896 32,446 11,300 381,426
Subordinated liabilities . . - 6,819 29,387 12,104 - 48,310
LIADITITIES ©vvviiiviiiiiiie ettt 924,088 304,161 341,728 44,550 11,300 1,625,827
NEL INLErESt JAP .eoivvreiieiiieriieeieeieeriee e ee et seee e aee e 122,476 (87,988) 132,926 (35,128) (7,863) 124,423

Sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk

The following table shows the sensitivity of the Group's net present value (NPV) of interest-bearing assets and liabilities and variation of
annual net interest income (NII), due to changes in interest rates by currencies. The variation is calculated on the basis of simultaneous
parallel shifts upwards or downwards of yield curves. The choice of shifts is not an estimate of risk likelihood. Behavioral maturities are
taken into account in the NPV calculations, including prepayment likelihood and expected behavior of non-maturing deposits. The change
to NIl is however primarily based on contractual interest rate adjustments where it is simplistically assumed that all rates are equally
sensitive to the presumed change in market rates. Behavioral maturity assumptions are however applied for non-maturing deposits and a
zero percentage floor is applied to deposit interest rates. Changes were made to the NIl calculations in 2022, for the reference date. The
interest rate shifts in both directions take account of the floor on interest rates so that when the floor has an effect then the shifts are

restricted.
31.03.2023 31.12.2022

NPV change in the banking book -100 bps +100bps  -100 bps  +100 bps

ISK, CPIINAEX-NNKEA ...ttt (2,530) 2,863 (1,994) 2,782

ISK, NON iNdeX-INKEA ...t eeeeeneenees (1,378) 1,301 (1,106) 886

Foreign currencies (130) 143 (36) 32

NPV change in the trading book

ISK, CPIINAEX-NNKEA ..ottt 426 (386) 173 (156)

ISK, NON iNAEX-INKE ...ttt nneee s 387 (353) 211 (199)

FOT@IGN CUIMENCIES ...ttt ettt ettt ane e ene s (19) 19 (38) 38

NIl change

ISK, CPIINAEX-NNKEA ....eeiiiiieieiie ettt st e e e e e enes (1,383) 1,383 (947) 947

ISK, NON iNAEX-TNKEA ...ttt (1,157) 577 (2,022) 981

FOr@IgN CUMENCIES .....oiiiiiiiiiii e 70 (73) (83) 71
Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim Amounts are in ISK millions
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43. Market risk, continued

Indexation risk

A significant part of the Group's balance sheet is linked to the Icelandic Consumer Price Index (CPI). For index-linked instruments, principal
and interest payments are adjusted proportionally to the CPI. The Group is exposed to indexation risk as indexed assets exceed indexed
liabilities. Financial instruments held for liquidity or market making purposes are assumed to be on demand.

Book value and maturity profile of indexed assets and liabilities

31.03.2023 Upto1l 1to5 Over 5

Assets, CPI index-linked year years years Total
LOANS 10 CUSTOMIEIS . .oovviiiei ettt e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e saba e e e e e sasbans 8,782 39,647 221,085 269,514
Financial instruments ... 7,564 3,264 9,954 20,782
Assets, CPLINAEX-IINKEA .........ooiiiiiiiiie e e 16,346 42,911 231,039 290,296
Liabilities, CPI index-linked

(DT o To ]| (O PP PP PRPR PP 94,582 22,088 3,612 120,282
BOITOWINGS ..ttt ettt et et e et e et e ekt e e sttt esnt et e snt e e nneeeenneeeenneas 349 70,180 46,937 117,466
Subordinated liabilities . - - 16,259 16,259
Other ....cccceeevvciiiieeeees 79 243 1,402 1,724
Off-balance sheet position ..... 1,964 1,556 - 3,520
Liabilities, CPIINA@X-IINKEA ...........ueiiieeiiiiee et ae e 96,974 94,067 68,210 259,251
Net on-balance sheet POSItION ...........cooiiiiiiiiii e (78,664) (49,600) 162,829 34,565
Net off-balance Sheet POSItION ........c..ueiiiiiiiiiiiiie e (1,964) (1,556) - (3,520)
[0 2 1 o F= 1= Lo RSP SRTRP (80,628) (51,156) 162,829 31,045
CPI balance for prudential consolidation, excluding insurance operations * .......... (79,526) (54,342) 153,503 19,638
31.12.2022

Assets, CPI index-linked

[ Io = T S (o o U] (0] 0 1= PP 8,525 37,589 210,878 221,892
FIiNaNCial INSTIUMENTS ...t e et e e e e e et e e e e e e e aab e eeeaees 5,208 3,435 9,684 15,843
PN = E T O d T [0 LN R T T =T I 13,733 41,024 220,562 237,735
Liabilities, CPI index-linked

(DT o To ]| (O PP PPRPROPIP 89,217 20,240 3,493 97,234
Borrowings 336 67,836 45,661 102,007
Subordinated HADIIIES ........ccvvuiiiiiii e e e e e e e e rraaas - - 15,735 5,337
[© 43 T PRSPPI 1,121 251 1,393 2,672
Off-balance Sheet POSILION ........ciuiiiiiiiiiiiiii e s 1,889 1,520 - 4,467

Liabilities, CPI indexed linked ... 92,563 89,847 66,282 211,717

Net on-balance Sheet POSItION ..........cccviiiiiiiiii e (76,941)  (47,303) 154,280 30,485
Net off-balance ShEet POSILION ..........coiiiiiiiiiiiie e (1,889) (1,520) - (4,467)
CPIDAIANCE ...ttt (78,830)  (48,823) 154,280 26,018
CPI balance for prudential consolidation, excluding insurance operations * .......... (73,444) (33,167) 124,030 17,419

* Consolidated situation as per EU Regulation No 575/2013 (CRR)

Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim Amounts are in ISK millions
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43. Market risk, continued

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk of loss due to adverse movements in foreign exchange rates. The Group is exposed to currency risk through a
currency mismatch between assets and liabilities. Net exposures per currency are monitored centrally in the Bank.

Breakdown of assets and liabilities by currency

31.03.2023

Financial assets ISK EUR USD GBP DKK NOK Other Total
Cash and balances with CB .................. 79,117 416 277 115 75 32 240 80,272
Loans to credit institutions ................... 1,642 17,628 30,366 2,001 2,282 6,143 2,837 62,899
Loans to CUStOMErS .......cccveevveeeiieenns 908,708 117,125 56,898 1,697 27,504 795 1,401 1,114,128
Financial instruments ............cccceeeeeenne 113,228 61,574 9,381 170 317 18,273 2,053 204,996
Other financial assets ...........ccccvvvvnnns 15,034 165 37 10 3 5 3 15,257
Financial assets .........cccccevveeeveinnennnn. 1,117,729 196,908 96,959 3,993 30,181 25,248 6,534 1,477,552

Financial liabilities

Due to credit inst. and Central Bank ..... 4,941 16,435 2,748 - - - 64 24,188
DEPOSIES oo 661,244 37,598 62,718 3,901 3,786 3,746 2,030 775,023
Financial liabilities at fair value ............. 2,150 16,713 1,659 19 - 148 3 20,692
Other financial liabilities ..............c........ 13,485 2,837 6,260 346 987 418 434 24,766
BOMOWINGS ...covveiieiieiicneceeeee e 172,773 194,244 - - - 16,621 7,096 390,734
Subordinated liabilities . 19,452 741 12,869 - - 3,996 9,623 46,681
Financial liabilities ........c.ccccceviieniene 874,045 268,568 86,254 4,266 4,773 24,929 19,250 1,282,084
Net on-balance sheet position ... 243,684 (71,660) 10,705 (273) 25,408 319 (12,716)
Net off-balance sheet position .............. (45,346) 70,129  (11,383) 154 (25,252) (412) 12,110
Net position * ..o, 198,339 (1,531) (678) (119) 156 (93) (606)
Non-financial assets
Investment property ..........ccccceeeeiiinnnns 7,875 - - - - — — 7,875
Investments in associates 770 - - - - - - 770
Intangible assets .........cccocceveeiieiieen. 8,575 - - - - - - 8,575
Tax aSSets .....ccccvvviiiiiiiiieeiiiieee s 332 - - - - - - 332
Assets and disposal groups

held for sale .......ccceeviiiiiiciiic, 61 - - - - - - 61
Other non financial assets ................... 5,221 123 45 67 ?3) 22 4 5,479
Non-financial assets 22,834 123 45 67 3) 22 4 23,092
Non-financial liabilities and equity
Tax liabilities .......coooveviiieiieeeeece 10,840 - - - - - - 10,840
Other non-financial liabilities ................ 27,751 30 5 - 2 - - 27,788
Shareholders' equity ..........c.cccccveeenn. 179,276 - - - - - - 179,276
Non-controlling interest ............ccccoeeee 656 - - - - - - 656
Non-financial liabilities and equity ... 218,523 30 5 - 2 - - 218,560
Management reporting

of currency risk ** ........cccooeiinnnn. 2,650 (1,438) (638) (52) 151 (71) (602)

* The net position of the currency risk is presented in accordance with IFRS.

** The management monitors currency risk with more assets and liabilities underlying as it is considered to be a more accurate measurement of the Group's
currency exposure. The net position, as seen by the management, is the position used for managing the currency imbalance.

Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim Amounts are in ISK millions
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43. Market risk, continued

31.12.2022
Financial assets

Cash and balances with CB ..................

Loans to credit institutions ...................
Loans to CUStOMErS ........ccceeevveeeenneenns
Financial instruments ............cccceeveennne
Other financial assets ..............cccuve....

Financial assets ........cccccccveerviinnnnnen,

Financial liabilities

Due to credit inst. and Central Bank .....
DEPOSIES ..vviieeiiiiiieee et
Financial liabilities at fair value .............
Other financial liabilities .......................
BOMOWINGS ....c..oovieiieiieiiceeee e
Subordinated liabilities .

Financial liabilities .........c.ccccecviveeennns

Net on-balance sheet position ...
Net off-balance sheet position ..............

Net pOSItion * ...

Non-financial assets

Investment Property ........ccoeveeevveeivnens
Investments in associates
Intangible assets .........ccccoevieeeeeniiinnen.
TaX @SSeLS .oovvviieeiieiiiie e
Assets and disposal groups

held for sale .........ccocevvveeeeiiiiiineeees
Other non financial assets ...................

Non-financial assets .............ccccvveeee.n.

Non-financial liabilities and equity

Tax liabilities .........coovviiiiiieeiiiiiiceeee
Other non-financial liabilities ................
Shareholders' equity ..........ccccvveeeeennnnes
Non-controlling interest ...........cccecveene
Non-financial liabilities and equity ...
Management reporting

|
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ISK EUR usbD GBP DKK NOK Other Total
112,744 593 257 127 85 43 269 114,118
1,414 11,884 23,809 3,444 553 1,270 3,127 45,501
888,036 114,378 51,053 1,551 27,965 146 1,628 1,084,757
107,687 62,878 3,443 88 372 18,817 44 193,329
8,239 274 123 11 4 - 1 8,652
1,118,120 190,007 78,685 5,221 28,979 20,276 5,069 1,446,357
9,777 252 231 9 2 - 1,426 11,697
662,541 35,413 46,102 3,058 3,023 3,099 2,125 755,361
1,784 16,970 2,008 1 1 195 38 20,997
5,799 1,234 1,775 257 223 589 222 10,099
158,071 216,045 - - - 15,303 3,144 392,563
18,891 772 13,396 - - 4,383 9,889 47,331
856,863 270,686 63,512 3,325 3,249 23,569 16,844 1,238,048
261,257 (80,679) 15,173 1,896 25,730 (3,293)  (11,775)
(51,950) 81,095 (15,967)  (1,950) (25,649) 3,161 11,260
209,307 416 (794) (54) 81 (132) (515)
7,862 - - - - - - 7,862
787 - - - - - - 787
8,783 - - - - - - 8,783
135 - - - - - - 135
61 - - - - - - 61
5,275 128 66 86 - 11 6 5,572
22,903 128 66 86 - 11 6 23,200
10,303 - - - - - - 10,303
32,816 51 6 - 1 - - 32,874
187,682 - - - - - - 187,682
649 - - - - - - 649
231,450 51 6 - 1 - - 231,508
760 493 (734) 32 80 (121) (509)

of currency risk ** .......cccccvviieinnn.

* The net position of the currency risk is presented in accordance with IFRS.

** The management monitors currency risk with more assets and liabilities underlying as it is considered to be a more accurate measurement of the Group's

currency exposure. The net position, as seen by the management, is the position used for managing the currency imbalance.
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Financial Statements 31 March 2023

58

Amounts are in ISK millions



‘k"f
4
Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

43. Market risk, continued

Sensitivity analysis for currency risk

The table below indicates the currencies to which the Group had significant exposure at the end of the year. The analysis calculates the
effect of a reasonably possible movement of the currency rate against the ISK, with all other variables held constant, on the Consolidated
Income Statement (due to the fair value of currency sensitive non-trading monetary assets and liabilities). A negative amount in the table
reflects a potential net reduction in the Consolidated Income Statement or equity, while a positive amount reflects a net potential increase.
An equivalent decrease in each of the below currencies against the ISK would have resulted in an equivalent but opposite impact (+10%
denotes a depreciation of the I1SK).

31.03.2023 31.12.2022
Currency -10% +10% -10% +10%
EUR ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt 144 (144) (49) 49
64 (64) 73 (73)

5 (5) ?) 3

(15) 15 ®) 8

7 7 12 12)

60 (60) 51 (51)

Equity risk

Equity risk is the risk that the fair value of equities decreases. For information on assets seized and held for sale and equity exposures, see
Notes 29 and 22 respectively.

Sensitivity analysis for equity risk

The analysis below calculates the effect of a reasonable possible movement in equity prices that affect the Consolidated Financial
Statements. A negative amount in the table reflects a potential net reduction in the Consolidated Income Statement or equity, while a
positive amount reflects a potential net increase. Investments in associates are excluded. The result of value-at-risk calculations for the
trading book are shown in the Group's Pillar 3 Risk Disclosures.

31.03.2023 31.12.2022
Equity -10% +10% -10% +10%
Trading book - listed .. (224) 224 (165) 165
Banking DOOK - lISted .........c.oooiiiiiiiii e (474) 474 (477) 477
Banking booK - UNHISTEA ...........oiiiiiiiiiiiiie e (404) 404 (430) 430

Derivatives

Derivatives are a part of the Group's customer product offering. The types of derivatives currently offered are forward contracts, swaps and
options. Eligible underlying market factors are interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equities and commodities. Exposure limits, hedging
requirements and collateral requirements are determined in accordance with the Group's risk appetite and monitored by Risk Management
on a daily basis. The Group also uses derivatives to hedge market risk on its balance sheet. Note 23 provides a breakdown of the Group's
derivative positions by type.

Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim Amounts are in ISK millions
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44. Liquidity and Funding risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group, though solvent, either does not have sufficient financial resources available to meet its liabilities
when they fall due, or can secure them only at excessive cost. Liquidity risk arises from the inability to manage unplanned decreases or
changes in funding sources.

A primary source of funding for the Group is deposits from individuals, businesses and financial undertakings. The Group's liquidity risk
stems from the fact that the maturity of loans exceeds the maturity of deposits, of which 70% is on-demand.

Liquidity risk is one of the Group's most significant risk factors and a great deal of emphasis is placed on managing it. The Asset and
Liability Committee (ALCO) is responsible for managing liquidity and funding risk within the risk appetite set by the Board of Directors. The
Bank's Treasury manages liquidity positions on a day-to-day basis. Risk Management measures, monitors and reports the Bank's liquidity
and funding risk on a daily basis.

The Group's strategy in relation to liquidity risk is to actively manage its liquidity positions and risks to meet payment and settlement
obligations on a timely basis under both normal and stressed conditions. The Group seeks to maintain a stable funding profile which
supports its business strategy and liquidity profile, ensuring that the Group can withstand periods of market turbulence, without reliance on
volatile funding or external support.

Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The maturity analysis is based on contractual cash flows. The amounts are not discounted and include future interest payments, but CPI-
linked amounts do not include accrued indexation due to future inflation. The total amount for each item is higher than the corresponding
amount on the Group's balance sheet, since the amounts on the balance sheet are either at amortized cost and do not contain future
interest payments, or at fair value where future cash flows have been discounted.

Contractual cash flows differ in many ways from expected cash flows. The difference is most significant for deposits on the liability side and
bonds on the asset side. Deposits are always assumed to be withdrawn at the earliest possible date, despite the fact that a large part of the
deposit base is considered to be stable funding where behavioral maturity considerably exceeds contractual maturity. Furthermore,
although contractual cash flows are presented for bonds held by the Bank, a large portion of the bonds are a part of the Bank's liquidity
buffer and are considered to be highly liquid and can be sold or pledged to the Central Bank of Iceland and thus converted into cash at very
short notice.

Contractual cash flow of assets and liabilities

31.03.2023 On Upto3 3-12 1-5 Over5  With no Book
Financial assets demand months months years years  maturity Total value
Cash and balances with CB ................. 23,115 49,654 7,707 - - - 80,476 80,272
Loans to credit institutions ................... 41,415 21,478 10 - - - 62,903 62,899

Loans to customers ......... 4,848 165,740 140,638 487,788 1,211,669 2,010,683 1,114,128

Financial instruments .... 17,069 60,388 58,658 21,130 15,888 42,942 216,075 204,996
Derivatives - assets |eg - 70,543 13,711 27,560 - - 111,814 110,001
Derivatives - liabilities leg . - (64,756)  (10,666)  (26,594) - - (102,016)  (100,434)
Other financial instruments 17,069 54,601 55,613 20,164 15,888 42,942 206,277 195,429

Other financial assets ... . 412 12,661 530 1,654 - - 15,257 15,257

Financial assets ........cccocccevvveiiieennnns 86,859 309,921 207,543 510,572 1,227,557 42,942 2,385,394 1,477,552

Financial liabilities

Due to credit inst. and Central Bank ..... 4,101 20,213 - - - - 24,314 24,188
DEPOSILS wovevvveveiiiieiiiee e 545,764 192,315 12,919 22,323 3,961 - 777,282 775,023
Financial liabilities at fair value ............. - 4,342 6,454 21,559 - - 32,355 20,692
Derivatives - assets leg ........ . - (24,519) (28,134) (14,677) - - (67,330) (58,499)
Derivatives - liabilities leg ....................... - 28,857 34,588 36,236 - - 99,681 79,187
Short position in equity ..........ccccevervrvenees - 4 - - - - 4 4
Other financial liabilities 113 23,170 339 1,145 - - 24,767 24,767
Borrowings .......... . - 10,058 8,194 357,219 51,843 - 427,314 390,734
Subordinated liabilities ..............cc.cccun. - 898 2,384 21,918 39,471 - 64,671 46,681
Financial liabilities .........ccccooeviivieennns 549,978 250,996 30,290 424,164 95,275 - 1,350,703 1,282,085
Net position for assets and liab. ....... (463,119) 58,925 177,253 86,408 1,132,282 42,942 1,034,691 195,467
Off-balance sheet items
Financial guarantees ............cccccvveeenne - 3,402 8,494 4,761 7,100 - 23,757 23,757
Unused overdraft ................ . - 59,962 - - - - 59,962 59,962
Undrawn loan commitments ................. - 46,447 26,540 17,335 2,591 - 92,913 92,913
Off-balance sheet items ..........c.cccc.... - 109,811 35,034 22,096 9,691 - 176,632 176,632
Net contractual cash flow ................. (463,119) (50,886) 142,219 64,312 1,122,591 42,942 858,059 18,835
Arion Bank Condensed Consolidated Interim Amounts are in ISK millions

Financial Statements 31 March 2023 60



“ar
- - - - "“h

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

44. Liquidity and Funding risk, continued

31.12.2022 On Upto3 3-12 1-5 Over 5 With no Book
Financial assets demand months months years years maturity Total value
Cash and balances with CB ................. 18,183 88,515 7,531 - - - 114,229 114,118
Loans to credit institutions ................... 23,904 21,597 31 - - - 45,532 45,501
Loans to customers ... 2,282 139,996 147,972 470,458 1,138,049 - 1,898,757 1,084,757
Financial instruments .... 8,527 77,677 43,773 12,384 15,775 41,749 199,885 193,329
Derivatives - assets leg ..... - 76,104 22,301 32,447 - - 130,852 123,547
Derivatives - liabilities leg . . - (69,826)  (19,032)  (29,503) - - (118361)  (114,031)
Other financial instruments ..................... 8,527 71,399 40,504 9,440 15,775 41,749 187,394 183,813
Other financial assets .............cccvveeee.. 488 1,880 4,935 1,364 - - 8,667 8,667
Financial assets ........cccccccveeiviiinennnn, 53,384 329,665 204,242 484,206 1,153,824 41,749 2,267,070 1,446,372

Financial liabilities

Due to credit inst. and Central Bank ..... 7,233 4,484 - - - - 11,717 11,697
DEPOSIES ..vvvveeeiiiiiiiiieiiiiiee e 545,764 102,796 84,239 20,568 3,795 - 757,162 755,361
Financial liabilities at fair value .. - 1,647 2,973 18,487 - - 23,107 20,997

Derivatives - assets leg ........ . - (25,891)  (25,670) (12,131) - - (63,692) (62,420)

Derivatives - liabilities 16g ..............c.c..... - 27,527 28,643 30,618 - - 86,788 83,406

Short position in bonds used for hedging - 11 - - - - 11 11
Other financial liabilities .............cccc...... 109 8,141 593 1,256 - - 10,099 10,099
BOITOWINGS ...eveeeiiieeeiiee e - 21,755 14,169 338,265 50,794 - 424,983 392,563
Subordinated liabilities ................c.ceeee. - 1,402 1,634 19,685 36,111 - 58,832 47,331
Financial liabilities .........c.ccccccevveeennns 553,106 140,225 103,608 398,261 90,700 - 1,285,900 1,238,048
Net position for assets and liab. ....... (499,722) 189,440 100,634 85,945 1,063,124 41,749 981,170 208,324

Off-balance sheet items

Financial guarantees .............cccocceeeuene - 2,194 10,024 2,058 6,036 - 20,312 20,312
Unused overdraft ................ . - 57,259 - - - - 57,259 57,259
Undrawn loan commitments ................. - 47,464 27,308 27,686 3,430 - 105,888 105,888
Off-balance sheet items ..........c......... - 106,917 37,332 29,744 9,466 - 183,459 183,459
Net contractual cash flow .................. (499,722) 82,523 63,302 56,201 1,053,658 41,749 797,711 24,865

Net Stable Funding Ratio

The Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR) measures the amount of available stable funding (ASF) with the Group against the required stable
funding (RSF) as per the definition of the Central Bank of Iceland rules No. 750/2021. In general, RSF is determined by applying different
weights to different asset classes depending on the level of liquidity. ASF however is calculated by applying weights to the Group's liabilities
depending on maturity and stickiness. The NSFR in total shall exceed 100%.

The NSFR calculations are based solely on figures for the parent company. The Bank's subsidiaries have negligible impact on the funding
ratio.
31.3.2023 31.12.2022

Available Stable FUNGING ......ueiiiiii et e e et e e e sttt e e s ettt e e e e e e e e e e e s 1,148,267 1,109,623

RequIired Stable fUNGING .. .....eieiiii ettt ekt e et e e et e st e et e e e e e e e e nane s 979,338 931,991

Net stable funding ratio 117% 119%
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44. Liquidity and Funding risk, continued

Liquidity coverage ratio

The Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) is one of the standards introduced in the Basel Il Accord. The LCR is the result of a stress test that is
designed to ensure that banks have the necessary assets on hand to withstand short-term liquidity disruptions. More precisely, LCR
represents the balance between highly liquid assets and the expected net cash outflow of the Group in the next 30 days under stressed
conditions.

To qualify as highly liquid assets under the LCR rules, assets must be non-pledged, liquid and easily priced on the market, traded on an
active market and not issued by the Group or related entities.

As of January 2023 rules no. 266/2017 were replaced with rules no. 1520/2022 which reference the EU LCR regulations directly. The
minimum requirement for the total LCR remains at 100% but the requirement for the LCR in ISK changed to 50% and there is no longer any
minimum requirement for the aggregate position in all foreign currencies. Instead the bank is required to maintain an 80% minimum for the
LCR in EUR.

The following table shows the breakdown for the Group's LCR calculations.

31.03.2023 ISK EUR Total
LiQUI @SSEES IEVEI L * ittt e e e ettt e e e e et b e et e e e s et bbb et e e e s snnbb e e e e e ennnbneeaeeans 112,031 53,624 187,500
LIQUIA @SSEES TEVEI 2 ...ttt ettt ettt e s bttt e et e e et e e eneeennn 31,118 - 31,118
LEQUIT BSSBES ..eeiiiiiieieite ettt ettt sttt ettt ettt e bt ekt eh e e s bt e ke e ke e b e e e he e eht e e ab e e bt e bt et e b e be e e 143,149 53,624 218,618
(D70 Lo | TSP P PP OUP VR URTPPON 147,818 12,880 191,102
20T 01 Vo L PRSPPSO 2,901 - 6,460
Other CAS OULTIOWS ...uveeiiiieeeee et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eaaaaeeeeeseeaaaaans 7,870 7,525 12,046
[T s I o TU) 4 {1 1V PSPPI 158,589 20,405 209,608
Short-term deposits with other Banks ** ... e - 13,780 46,695
Other cash inflows . 27,891 7,009 36,963
(2= 1S o I T 011 1o 111V 27,891 20,789 83,658
Liquidity coverage ratio (LCR) ™ % L. ittt e e st e e e e s st b e e e e s e naaaeeeeeans 110% 1051% 174%
31.12.2022 ISK FX Total
LiQUI @SSEES TEVEI L * ettt et e e e ettt e e e e ettt e e e s et bbb et e e e s snsb b e e e e e ennnbneeaeeans 139,562 73,729 213,291
LIQUID @SSEES TEVEI 2 ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et e e n e e et eeeneeennn 23,956 - 23,956
LEQUIT BSSBES ..teiuiieiieieiteeit ettt sttt ettt h e ittt e bt e skt eh e oAbt ekt e ke e b e e e he e e he e e bt e bt e bt et r e e re e 163,518 73,729 237,247
(D70 10| T TP UP O TP VR URPPON 155,507 34,631 190,138
Borrowings ... . 580 73 653
(@)1 =T o= Y] g o 10 1 [0 YRR 9,868 6,266 13,949
[OF=1] o e Y UL 81 1o 1V1V2= 165,955 40,970 204,740
Short-term deposits With 0ther Danks ** ... - 23,388 23,388
(@)1 =T o= Y] a 101 [0 1T 23,854 7,794 31,648
(@ TS 0 o1 OSSR 23,854 31,182 55,036
Liquidity coverage ratio (LCR) ¥ ... ittt s e e e 115% 720% 158%

* Level 1 assets include the Group's cash and balances with the Central Bank, domestic bonds eligible as collateral at the Central Bank and foreign government
bonds which receive 100% weight.

** Short-term deposits with other banks are defined as cash inflows in LCR calculations.

** | CR is defined as: LCR = Weighted liquid assets / (weighted cash outflows - weighted cash inflows) where weighted cash inflows are capped at 75% of
weighted cash outflows.
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44. Liquidity and Funding risk, continued
Composition of liquid assets
The following table shows the composition of the Group's liquidity buffer.
31.03.2023 ISK uUsD EUR Other Total
Cash and balances with Central Bank ..........cccooeeiiiviiiiiieiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeiiiens 79,117 277 416 462 80,272
Short-term deposits with financial iNStItUtIoNS ..........cccocviiiieiieeee - 19,959 13,780 12,956 46,695
Domestic bonds eligible as collateral with Central Bank ............cccccccovvuinees 64,650 - - - 64,650
Foreign government BONAS ........c.cooiiiiiiiiieiiiece e - 3,426 53,208 17,676 74,310
LiQUITILY TESEIVE uiiiieiiie ettt sttt e e st e et s 143,767 23,662 67,404 31,094 265,927
31.12.2022
Cash and balances with Central Bank ..........ccccoooiiiviiiiieiiiiiiiiiiicneeeeeiiiiens 112,744 257 593 524 114,118
Short-term deposits with financial institutions ...............ccccoviiiiiiiiicee - 14,125 4,456 4,807 23,388
Domestic bonds eligible as collateral with Central Bank ............cccccccovvunnes 50,116 - - - 50,116
Foreign government BONAS ........c.cooiiiiiiiiieiiee e - - 55,915 16,435 72,350
LiQUITIY TESEIVE uiiiieiiie ettt et e stae e s 162,860 14,382 60,964 21,766 259,972

LCR deposit categorization

As per the LCR methodology, the Group's deposit base is split into different categories depending on customer type. A second
categorization is used where term deposits refer to deposits with residual maturity greater than 30 days. Deposits that can be withdrawn
within 30 days are marked stable if the customer has a business relationship with the Group and the amount is covered by the Deposit
Insurance Scheme. Other deposit funds are considered less stable. A weight is attributed to each category, representing the expected
outflow under stressed conditions, i.e. the level of stickiness.

The table below shows the breakdown of the Group's deposit base according to the LCR categorization, with the associated weighted
average of the stressed outflow weights.

LCR categorization - amounts and LCR outflow weights Deposits maturing within 30 days
Less Weight Weight Term Total

31.03.2023 stable % Stable %  deposits* deposits
INAIVIAUAIS .o 94,403 11% 120,431 5% 120,493 335,327
Small and medium enterprises ...........cccocceeveeiieiiecnceeieesee e 96,119 10% 17,270 5% 17,220 130,609
Operational relationship . 15,147 25% - 5% - 15,147
(@70 oo =i o] o F- ST SOTPP PR 110,193 40% 15,380 20% 14,669 140,242
Sovereigns, central banks and PSE ...........ccccccceiiiiiiiiiieeiiiiinns 44,099 40% - - 816 44,915
PENSION FUNAS ....vvviiiiiiiiiiieiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e e e e e e e e e e e e aeeaaaaaees 58,113 100% - - 15,842 73,955
Domestic financial entities ...........ccoeeviiiiiiiiiiiiieccceee e, 35,484 100% - - 6,674 42,158
Foreign financial entities ..........cccovveieiiiiiiiiiee e 1,859 100% - - 14,999 16,858
TOTAD e 455,417 153,081 190,713 799,211
31.12.2022
INAIVIAUAIS ..o 99,019 10% 117,733 5% 108,788 325,540
Small and medium enterprises .. 102,870 10% 16,972 5% 10,155 129,997
Operational relationship . 14,801 25% - 5% - 14,801
COIPOTALIONS ...eeeiiiitieiiee ettt eeeeas 108,565 40% 15,493 20% 10,907 134,965
Sovereigns, central banks and PSE ..........c.cccocoiiiiiiciiicciieeee 43,869 40% - - 778 44,647
PeNSION fUNAS .....uviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeee et e e e e e e e aaaees 56,987 100% - - 14,561 71,548
Domestic financial entities ...........cceeeviiiiiiiiiiiiieieeee e, 39,740 100% - - 4,913 44,653
Foreign financial entities ............ccccccceiviiiiiiieee 908 100% - - - 908
TOTAD et 455,538 150,199 161,321 767,058
* Here term deposits refer to deposits with maturities greater than 30 days.
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45. Capital management

Capital adequacy

The focus of capital management at the Group is to normalize the capital structure in the medium term and consequently maintain the
Group's capitalization comfortably above regulatory requirements, including the Pillar 2 and combined capital buffer requirements.

The Group's capital ratios are calculated in accordance with the Icelandic Financial Undertakings Act No. 161/2002 with later changes,
through which CRD V / CRR Il have been adopted. The Group applies the standardized approach to calculate capital requirements for
credit risk, including counterparty credit risk, credit valuation adjustment risk, market risk and operational risk.

The Group's consolidated situation as stipulated in CRR is the Group's accounting consolidation excluding insurance subsidiaries, in
particular Vordur.

Own funds 31.03.2023 31.12.2022
LI €= L =T (U1 Y TP SPPPPPPTN 179,932 188,331
Unaudited interim net earnings (6,284) -

Non-controlling interest not eligible for inclusion iN CETL CAPItal ........ccoiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiieceeciiieee e (656) (649)

Common Equity Tier 1 capital before regulatory adjusStments ...........ccccoooiiiiiiiiic i 172,992 187,682
INEANGIDIE @SSELS ...ttt b e e b e s e e e R r e n e n e (6,601) (6,425)
AdditioNal Value AQJUSTMENES .....coiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiii ittt e e et e e e s bbbttt e e e s s bbb e e e s e e naaeeeeeeaasbbbeeeeesanbbbeeeeeenansnrees (234) (224)
Foreseeable dividend and BUYDACK * ............oiiiiii e (897) (15,980)
Adjustment under IFRS 9 transitional arrangements as amended ...........c..ueiieiiiiiiiiee e 687 1,142
Common EQUItY TIer 1 CAPITAL ...c.viiiieieeiie ettt st 165,947 166,195
Non-controlling interest eligible for inclusion in T1 capital ..........c.ccoooiiiiiiiiie e 103 105
PXe o[ io] g T U LT g o= o] = | PP PRTSPPPPPRN 12,869 13,396
BT o7 T oY - L USRS 178,919 179,696
LA 0153 (U3 =T o] £ 33,812 33,935
Tier 2 instruments of financial sector entities (significant INVESIMENES) ..........ccooviiiiiiiiiic e (1,200) (1,155)
BT A o7 oY1 - L USRS 32,612 32,780
Lo ) 2= U X1V 0 10 (0T [ RPN 211,531 212,476

Risk-weighted exposure amount (REA)

Credit risk, loans and off-balance SNEEL IEIMS ..........uuiiiiiiiiee e e e e e e e e earbaas 730,700 707,479
Credit riSk, SECUIMTIES ANT OTNET ... ...ttt e e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eaeeeeeeeaeaaeeeeeeaeeaaaaeaaaaeas 54,540 57,651
COUNLEIPAITY CrEAIL FISK iiuivtiiiie ettt ettt e e st e e e e ettt e e s e bbb et e e e e st bbbt e e e e e abb b e e e e e enbbeeeeeeennbbneeeeas 16,257 14,645
Market risk due to CUITENCY IMDAIANCE ........ooiiiiiiiiiie ettt e st e et e e st e e snbe e e snneeans 2,851 1,387
Market risk due to trading DOOK POSITIONS .......uvviiiiiiiiiiiie et e e e e e e s st b e e e e s e 8,647 7,493
Credit valuation adjustment 4,931 6,010
(@) oT=T =V i o] g F= U PRSP PPP PPN 89,166 89,166
Total risk-weighted EXPOSUIE @MOUNT .......iiiiiiiiiit ettt ettt e e et e st e e e bb e e tb e e e snbeeesneeeeneeeesneeeennaeeens 907,092 883,831
Capital ratios

[ 1 - o TP UP PSSRSOt 18.3% 18.8%
LI B (1 T T PSP PUPPPPPRPP 19.7% 20.3%
Capital Q0EQUACY FALIO ......ccueeiiiiii ittt e e et e et e et e s e e et e e e n e e e e e ennee s 23.3% 24.0%
Total own funds, including interim profit not eligible for INCIUSION ..o 214,673 212,476
CET1 ratio, including interim profit not eligible for INCIUSION ...........ooiiiiiiii e 18.6% 18.8%
Tier 1 ratio, including interim profit not eligible for INCIUSION .............ccocoiiiiiiii e 20.1% 20.3%
Capital adequacy ratio, including interim profit not eligible for inclusion 23.7% 24.0%

* On 31 March 2023, the deduction consists of an ongoing buyback program from February 2023. On 31 December 2022, the foreseeable dividend and buyback
corresponds to 50% of profits as per the Bank's dividend policy and the remaining part of the buyback authorized by the Central Bank in September 2022.

The Bank has opted to make use of the transitional arrangements for IFRS 9 and Covid-19 in its capital adequacy calculations and this is
reflected in the Group's capital ratios. The transitional arrangements increase the capital adequacy ratio by 0.1 percentage points.
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45. Capital management, continued
Capital ratios of the parent company 31.03.2023 31.12.2022
(O] = I = o O OSSP UPP PSPPIt 18.4% 18.8%
LI 0 = (1 TSP PSP PPRRPI 19.8% 20.3%
(O o1 e= I To L= o (U E= Uy T S PP EUTRTUS PRSP 23.4% 23.9%

The following table outlines the implementation of the capital buffer requirements in accordance with the Icelandic Financial Undertakings
Act No. 161/2002, as prescribed by the Financial Stability Council (FSC) and approved by the FSA.

Capital buffer requirement, % of REA 31.03.2023 31.12.2022
Capital CONSEIVALION DUFFET ..ottt et e ettt e et e e a bt e e e seb e e e snteeenneeeas 2.5% 2.5%
Capital buffer for systematically important INSHIULIONS ..........oiiuiiiiiiiiiiiee e 2.0% 2.0%
Systemic risk buffer * 3.0% 3.0%
Countercyclical capital buffer * .. 2.0% 2.0%
Combined capital buffer reqUITEMENT ..o 9.5% 9.5%

The Bank carries out an ongoing process, the Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP), with the aim to ensure that the
Group has in place sufficient risk management processes and systems to identify, manage and measure the Group's total risk exposure.
The ICAAP is aimed at identifying and measuring the Group's risk across all risk types and ensure that the Group has sufficient capital in
accordance with its risk profile. The FSA supervises the Group, receives the Group's internal estimation on the capital adequacy and sets
the Pillar 2R capital requirements for the Group as a whole following the Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process (SREP). The Group's
own funds exceed the FSA's SREP requirements.

The Pillar 1 and Pillar 2R capital requirements may comprise 56.25% CET1 capital, 18.75% AT1 capital and 25% Tier 2 capital.

Capital requirement, % of REA CET1 Tier 1 Total
Pillar 1 capital FEQUITEIMENT .......iiiiiieiiiiit ettt e sttt e e e e e e e e e s s n bbb e e e e s s bbb e e e e s eansbbeeeesaansbbeeeeas 4.5% 6.0% 8.0%
Pillar 2R capital reqUIrEMENT ¥ ... ... ..o st 2.0% 2.6% 3.5%
Combined BUffer reqUITEMENT * ... e e et e e e e e nbbeeee s 9.3% 9.3% 9.3%
Regulatory capital requirement . 15.8% 17.9% 20.8%
AVAIIADIE CAPITAL ..o e e 18.3% 19.7% 23.3%

* The Icelandic buffer value shown. In the combined buffer requirement, the effective countercyclical capital buffer is determined by calculating the weighted
average of the corresponding buffer levels of each country, the weights being the total risk-weighted exposures for credit risk against counterparties residing in
those countries. The systemic risk buffer only applies to domestic exposures and is calculated using the same weighting method.

** The SREP result based on the Group's Financial Statement at 31 December 2021. The Pillar 2R requirement is 3.5% of risk-weighted exposure amount based
on the Group's prudential consolidation under CRR, which excludes Vordur.

Leverage ratio

The leverage ratio is seen as a complementary measure to the risk-based capital ratios. The ratio is calculated on the basis of the Group's
consolidated situation as per the CRR, which excludes the Group's insurance subsidiaries. The minimum leverage ratio requirement is 3%
as stated in the Icelandic Financial Undertakings Act No. 161/2002.

31.03.2023 31.12.2022

ON-DAIANCE SHEEL EXPOSUIES ...ttt ettt e et e kbt e ekt e e st e et e et e e e sbe e e st e e atnees 1,457,202 1,415,353
Derivative exposures 30,411 32,118
Securities financing transaction exposures . 39,705 10,174
Off-DAIANCE SNEET EXPOSUIES .......eiiiiieei ittt e ettt e s 1ttt e e et e e e e e e e e e e e s ab b et ee s s nabtnreeeeas 57,645 59,723
1,584,963 1,517,368

Total exposure

Tier 1 capital . 178,919 179,696
Leverage ratio 11.3% 11.8%
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45. Capital management, continued

MREL

The Group must fulfil a minimum requirement for own funds and eligible liabilities (MREL) in accordance with the Act on Resolution of
Credit Institutions and Investment Firms, no. 70/2020 and subsequent amendments, which transpose BRRD | and aspects of BRRD Il
(relating to MREL) into Icelandic law. Own funds which are not used to fulfil the combined buffer requirement can be used towards the
MREL requirement. In September 2022, the Icelandic Resolution Authority (IRA) presented the Group with the MREL requirement based on
year-end 2021 financials. According to IRA's methodology, the requirement is calculated as a fraction of total REA but then converted into a
fraction of own funds and eligible liabilities which represents the actual requirement. Both ratios are shown in the table below. An MREL
subordination requirement has not been implemented in Iceland.

Minimum requirement for own funds and eligible liabilities 31.03.2023 31.12.2022
[ 1 T {1 o OSSR 211,531 212,476
Eligible liabilities 160,218 155,667
Own funds and eligible TADITITIES ........oiiiiiieiie ettt et e e e enneee s 371,749 368,143
Combined buffer reqUIrEMENt (CBR) .......iiiuiiiiiieeiiiiii ettt s st e e e e e s e e e e e e bbbt e e e e s s bbb bt e e e s sanbbbeeeeeannnneees 84,360 82,196
Own funds and eligible liabilities NOt USE fOr CBR .......c.uiiiiiiiiiiie e 287,390 285,947
Risk-weighted exposure amount (REA) .........cciiiiiiiiiiiii et 907,092 883,832
Own funds and eligible liabilities not used for CBR (%6 REA) ......cuuiiiiiiiiiiiiie et 31.7% 32.4%
MREL requiremMent (70 REA) ...ttt s et e e e st e e e e e e sene s 23.0% 0
Total liabilities and OWN FUNAS (TLOF) .....iiiiiiieiiie ettt ettt e et e e et e e st e e st e e sbae e s bbeeennneeennnee s 1,485,562 1,446,370
Own funds and eligible liabilities not used for CBR (% TLOF) ....iiuuiiiiieiiiiiiiie ettt e e e e e niaees 19.3% 19.8%
MREL requireMent (%0 TLORF) ...ooiiiie ittt s e et e st e e r e e sb e e e aeeean e e e e nis 14.7% 14.7%
Solvency I

Excess of assets over liabilities in accordance with SOIVENCY I1 .........ccoooiiiiiiiiiiii e 9,461 9,175
Y] o Jo T (o [T F= 1 (=To I F= T o[ =TT 1,175 1,169
Foreseeable dividends .... - -
(@ TV IR 10T o TN 10,636 10,344
Solvency capital reqUIrEMENTS (SCR) .....uuuiiiieiiiiiiiee ettt e e e e s sttt e e e e et bb e e e e s s abbb et e e e s aasbbbeeeesaasareeeeeans 7,677 7,114
1O R I (1o T T TSP P PRV PO PUPROPR 138.5% 145.4%

The solvency capital requirement for the subsidiary Vordur is calculated in accordance with the Icelandic Insurance Companies Act.

46. Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss, or damage to the Group's reputation resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes or systems, from human error or external events that affect the Group's image and operational earnings.

Each business unit within the Group is primarily responsible for taking and managing their own operational risk. Risk management is
responsible for developing and maintaining tools for identifying, measuring, monitoring and reporting the Group's operational risk.

The Group uses the standardized approach for the calculation of capital requirements for operational risk.
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47. Sustainability risk

Sustainability risk is the risk that certain activities or practices compromise the Bank's assets or reputation or the ability of future
generations or segments of society to meet their own needs. This can be due to negative effects on the environment, natural or cultural
resources or social conditions. The Bank's Sustainability Committee is responsible for reviewing the Bank's performance in relation to its
commitments and policies in relation to environmental, social and governance (ESG) factors and aligning the Bank's strategy and risk
appetite with them.

The Green Financing Framework

The Bank's Green Financing Framework was published in 2021. Undir this framework the Bank can issue Green Financing Instruments,
including covered bonds, bonds, loans, commercial paper, repurchase agreements and deposits. The use of proceeds from these
instruments is restricted to the financing of eligible assets as defined in the Framework. Eligible assets are divided into several eligible
categories with inclusion and exclusion criteria. The Framework furthermore details the processes for identifying eligible assets, for
reporting on use of the framework and for external review. Before the introduction of this framework the Bank had a framework for green
deposits but these frameworks have been merged.

Green Financing Instruments 31.03.2023 31.12.2022
[DT=T 0L £ SRRSO 24,039 21,274
1210 01T T [P PP PRTN 97,036 97,405
BOOK VAIUE ...ttt ettt h e h e s bt et R e E e s e e e e ettt e e e n e nr e 121,075 118,679

Identified eligible green assets by category

Sustainable fiShery and @QUACUITUIE ..........ooiiiiiiiiieie e e e ettt e e s s bbb e e e e s snbbeeeeeeannaes 34,494 51,936
RENEWADIE ENEIGY ...ttt sttt et e se e s e e e et e e b e s e e s e e e nre e 104 -
(O[T LI (=T a1 o o] 2= i (o] o TP PRP PP PRPPN 4,815 4,879
[T =T=T O o TU o[ o OSSP UPR 70,993 64,232
=g LT )= 1 (o1 =T 0 Ty YA PO ROPPPPPR 9,790 8,189
Pollution prevention and control and wastewater MaNAGEMENT ...........cuieiiriieiriieeaiieeeieeeeireeeneeeasrbeessebeeesneeeeseeeenns 6,179 6,174
(21001 QA VZ: 11U LIPS 126,375 135,410
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